
With Us. You're Sure 

August 31,2020 

General Manager, 
Listing Department, 
BSE Limited, 
Phiroze Jejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001 

SBIL/F&A-CS/NSE-BSE/2021/123 

Vice President, 
Listing Department, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 
Exchange Plaza, 
Sandra East, Mumbai - 400051 

Sub: Notice of 201
h Annual General Meeting & Annual Report for the FY ended 2019-20 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Pursuant to Regulation 30 read with Schedule Ill of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing 
Regulations) and in accordance with Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Regulations and relevant 
circulars dated May 5, 2020, April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs ('MCA Circulars'), we enclose herewith the Notice of the 201

h Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, September 24, 2020, at 3.00 P.M. 
1ST, through Video Conference I Other Audio Visual Means facility and without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue, along with the Annual Report of the 
Company for FY 2019-20. 

The Annual Report and the Notice of AGM is also uploaded on the Company's website 
www.sbilife.co.in 

You are requested to take note of the above and arrange to bring this to the notice of all 
concerned. 

Thanking you, 

Yours Faithfully, 

Encl.: As above 

SBI Life Insurance Company Limited 
Registered & Corporate Office : Natraj, M. V. Road & Western Express Highway Junction, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 069. 

Tel.: 022 6191 0000/3968 0000 Fax. : 022 6191 0517 Website: www.sbilife.co.in IRDAI Regn. No. 111 CIN: L99999MH2000PLC129113 



























E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM 
 
 

 
To KFin Technologies Pvt.Ltd., 

Unit: SBI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED, 

Karvy Selenium Tower B,  

   Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,  

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, 

Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana – 500 032  

 
Dear Sir/Madam,  
 
Re: Green Initiative in Corporate Governance  
 
I want to receive all communication from the Company in electronic mode. Please register my e-mail id in your records 
for sending communication through e-mail.  
 
Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID:……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

Name of 1st Registered Holder: …………………………………………………………………………………………………………  

Name of Joint Holder(s):………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….  

 Registered Address: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

E-mail ID (to be registered): …………………………………………………………………………………………………………….  

Date: …………………………..  

Signature:…………………………………..  

 
Notes:  
 

1) On registration, all the communication will be sent to the e-mail ID registered in the folio. 
2) The form is also available on the website of the Company www.sbilife.co.in under the heading ‘Investor 

Relations – Information to Shareholders’ by the name “E-Communication Registration Form”.  
3) Shareholders are requested to keep KFin Technologies Private Limited informed as and when there is any 

change in the e-mail address. 
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	 ii.	� Expenses other than those directly related to the insurance business
		�  Expenses other than those directly related to the insurance business increased by 61.0% from ` 0.30 billion to 

` 0.48 billion mainly on account of increase in other expenses by 153.5% from ` 0.09 billion in FY 2019 to ` 0.25 
billion in FY 2020.

	 iii.	 Contribution to Policyholders’ Account
		�  Contribution to policyholders’ account represents amount transferred to policyholders’ account for funding the 

deficits in business segments. During the current year, non-par Individual Life, One Year Renewable Group Term 
assurance (OYRGTA), Annuity and Variable Insurance (VIP) segments incurred loss of ` 4.76 billion.

	 iv.	 Profit after tax
		�  Profit after tax increased by 7.2% from ` 13.27 billion in FY 2019 to ` 14.22 billion in FY 2020. Also, profit before 

tax rose from ` 13.73 billion in FY 2019 to ` 14.14 billion in FY 2020. Tax expense for shareholders decreased from 
` 0.46 billion in FY 2019 to ` (0.09) billion in FY 2020.

	 v.	 Interim dividend (Including dividend distribution tax)
		�  The Board of Directors of the Company have not declared any dividend during the year after taking cognisance of 

the IRDAI circular no. IRDA/F&A/CIR/MISC/099/04/2020 dated April 24, 2020 on ‘Prudent management of financial 
resources of insurers in the context of COVID-19 pandemic’. Consequently, profit carried to balance sheet is 
` 78.82 billion in FY 2020.

C.	 Financial Position/Balance Sheet 
(` in billion)

Particulars
As on

March 31, 2020
As on

March 31, 2019

Sources of funds
Equity capital and reserves (including change in fair value) 87.43 75.76
Policyholders’ Funds/Policy Liabilities 1,531.01 1,351.40
Funds for future appropriations 7.14 2.82
Total 1,625.58 1,429.98
Application of funds
Investments
	 - Shareholders’ 68.28 57.23
	 - Policyholders’ 734.20 644.72
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 785.65 691.29
Loans 3.64 1.73
Fixed assets 5.81 5.95
Current assets and advances (A) 58.21 66.41
Current liabilities and provisions (B) 30.22 37.36
Net current assets (A) – (B) 27.99 29.05
Total 1,625.58 1,429.98

	 Sources of funds
	 i.	 Equity capital and reserves/shareholders’ fund
		  The breakup of capital and reserves is as follows:

(` in billion)

Particulars
As on

March 31, 2020
As on

March 31, 2019

Share capital 10.00 10.00
Reserves and surplus 78.84 64.60
Credit/(Debit) fair value change account (1.41) 1.16
Equity capital and reserves/shareholders’ fund 87.43 75.76

		  a.	 Equity share capital
			�   Equity share capital of the Company comprises 1,000,026,295 equity shares of face value of ` 10 each 

(1,000,000,000 equity shares as on March 31, 2019). Out of the total equity share capital, 576,000,000 
(57.6%) equity shares are held by the State Bank of India (621,000,000 (62.1%) as on March 31, 2019). 
52,007,092 (5.2%) equity shares are held by the BNP Paribas Cardif (77,007,092 (7.70%) as on March 2019). 
During the year ended March 31, 2020, there was no capital infusion by the promoters.
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			�   The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited (BSE) on October 03, 2017.

		  b.	 Reserves and surplus
			�   Increase in reserves and surplus is on account of profit earned during the year and increase in securities 

premium as a result of issue of stock options.

		  c.	 Fair value change account
			�   Fair value change account represents unrealised gains (net of unrealised losses) on equity and mutual fund 

holdings in shareholders’ investments as on the respective balance sheet dates. The decrease in fair value 
change is predominantly because of the sharp fall in the equity market in March 2020.

	 ii.	 Policyholders’ Funds
		  The summary of policyholders’ funds is as follows:

(` in billion)

Particulars
As on  

March 31, 2020
As on  

March 31, 2019

Policyholders’ traditional liabilities 745.36 660.10
Credit/ (debit) fair value change account (15.87) 10.56
Policy liabilities 761.23 649.54
Policyholders’ linked liabilities 785.65 691.29
Linked liabilities 763.01 605.92
Credit/ (debit) fair value change account (28.61) 51.61
Funds for discontinued policies 51.25 33.76
Total Policyholders’ Funds 1,531.01 1,351.40

		  a.	 Policyholders’ traditional liabilities
			�   Fair value change account represents unrealised gains (net of unrealised losses) on equity and mutual fund 

holdings in non-linked policyholders’ investments as on the respective balance sheet dates. The decrease in 
fair value change is predominantly because of negative performance by Indian equity markets.

			�   The movement in policy liabilities is a consequence of various factors such as receipt of premium (both new 
business and renewal), surrenders and other claims, various actuarial assumptions and other factors varying 
on a product to product basis.

			�   The reserves on traditional policies are estimated by using prospective gross premium valuation method. 
Mathematical reserves are calculated based on future assumptions having regard to current and future 
experience e.g. interest rates, inflation, mortality, morbidity and expense.

		  b.	 Policyholders’ linked liabilities
			�   The policyholders’ linked liabilities represents the unit liability in respect of linked business and has been 

considered as the value of the units standing to the credit of the policy holders, using the Net Asset Value 
(NAV) as on the valuation date.

	 iii.	 Funds for future appropriation
		�  Funds for future appropriation amounting to ` 7.14 billion is appearing in the participating segment. It represents 

funds, the allocation of which, either to participating policyholders’ or to shareholders’, has not been determined 
as on the balance sheet date.

	 Application of Funds
	 i.	 Investments
		  The summary of investments as on balance sheet dates is as follows:

(` in billion)

Particulars
As on  

March 31, 2020
As on  

March 31, 2019

Investments
- Shareholders' 68.28 57.23
- Policyholders' (Non Linked) 734.20 644.72
Assets held to cover Linked Liabilities 785.65 691.29
Total 1,588.13 1,393.25
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		�  Total investments grew by ` 194.88 billion (14.0%) from ` 1,393.25 billion as on March 31, 2019 to ` 1,588.13 
billion as on March 31, 2020. Equity investment portfolio constitutes 21% and debt portfolio constitutes 79% of 
the total AUM as on March 31, 2020. For detailed category-wise breakup of investments, refer Schedule 8, 8A and 
8B of the financial statements.

		�  Shareholder’s portfolio grew by 19.3%, non-linked policyholder’s investment grew by 13.9% and unit-linked 
assets grew by 13.7% as compared to previous year ended March 31, 2019.

		�  Increase in policyholders’ portfolio is attributable to increase in premium and investment income offset by net 
outgo due to operating expenses and claims. The Company’s investment philosophy has always been to maximise 
returns at an optimal level of risk on a continuous long-term basis. This calls for investing in high-quality securities, 
which are suitably matched to the duration of its liabilities. The Company invests strictly within the framework of 
rules and regulations prescribed by IRDAI. Further, the Company has implemented sound and robust investment 
risk management systems and processes.

	 ii.	 Loans
		�  Loans comprises loan against policy and corporate loans. Loans increased from ` 1.73 billion to ` 3.64 billion 

during the year. Loans disclosed in balance sheet are net of provision for standard assets made in accordance 
with IRDAI investment regulations and master circular on preparation of financial statements and filing of returns 
of life insurance business. The Company has no Non-Performing Asset (NPAs) as on March 31, 2020.

	 iii.	 Fixed assets
		�  Fixed assets (net of depreciation) have decreased marginally from ` 5.95 billion to ` 5.81 billion. There were no 

major capital expenditure incurred during the year.

	 iv.	  Net current assets
		�  Net current assets decreased by 3.7% from ` 29.05 billion to ` 27.99 billion. Current assets declined by 12.3% 

from ` 66.41 billion to ` 58.21 billion and current liabilities have also reduced by 19.1% from ` 37.36 billion to 
` 30.22 billion.

		  a.	 Current assets and advances
			   The summary of current assets and advances is as follows:

(` in billion)

Particulars
As on  

March 31, 2020
As on  

March 31, 2019

Cash and bank balances 14.23 24.21
Advances
Prepayments 0.41 0.23
Advance to suppliers and employees 0.12 0.21
Other Assets
Income accrued on investments 31.00 28.18
Outstanding premiums 4.51 3.01
Due from reinsurers 0.04 0.26
Security deposit 1.17 1.17
GST and Service tax advance and unutilised credit 0.99 1.08
Assets held for unclaimed amounts (including income accrued) 3.27 4.26
Other receivables (including agent balance) 2.47 3.80
Total current assets 58.21 66.41

			   Some of the key items impacting current assets and advances were:

			   i.	� The cash and bank balances represent premium collected during last few days of the financial year, 
including fixed deposits held with banks, cheques on hand and cheques deposited but not cleared

			   ii.	� Income accrued on investments represents interest income accrued, however not due as on March 31, 
2020. It is mainly on government securities, debentures and fixed deposits. The increase is attributable 
to the increase in the debt investments of the Company

			   iii.	� Outstanding premium represents the premium due but not received on traditional products as on 
March 31 and which are within the grace period

			   iv.	� Due from reinsurers represents amounts to be received from reinsurers regarding claims admitted by 
the Company. This amount is net of premium ceded to reinsurers
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			   v.	� Security deposits represent deposits placed for premises taken on lease for setting up branches, as well 
as for leased accommodations for employees, electricity deposits, telephone, legal deposits and other 
utility deposits. It also includes margin money kept with Clearing Corporation of India Ltd. (CCIL) for 
trading in government securities

			   vi.	� GST and Service tax advance and unutilised credit represents Central Value Added Tax (CENVAT) credit, 
which will be utilised in the future for set off against payment of GST liabilities

			   vii.	� Pursuant to IRDAI circular on ‘Handling of unclaimed amounts pertaining to policyholders’, the Company 
has created a single segregated fund to manage all the unclaimed monies with effect from April 1, 2016. 
Amount standing in the segregated fund for unclaimed amounts is ` 3.27 billion as at March 31, 2020

			   viii.	� Other receivables represents the sales proceeds pending to be received (but not overdue) on sale of 
investment securities, dividend receivable and amount receivable from unit-linked funds etc.

		  b.	 Current liabilities and provisions
			   The summary of current liabilities is as follows:

(` in billion)

Particulars
As on  

March 31, 2020
As on  

March 31, 2019

Current liabilities
Agent balances 0.58 0.62
Balance due to other reinsurers 0.20 0.13
Premium received in advance 0.05 0.22
Unallocated premium and other deposits 3.18 3.29
Sundry creditors 7.10 6.15
Due to subsidiaries/ holding companies 0.56 0.51
Claims outstanding and annuities due 2.50 1.13
Unclaimed amounts of policyholders 3.27 4.26
Others 10.40 17.47
Provisions
Provision for tax 1.19 0.63
Provision for employee benefits 1.19 0.96
Provision for interim dividend - 2.00
Total current liabilities and provisions 30.22 37.36

			�   Some of the key items impacting current 
liabilities and provisions are explained below:

			   i.	� Agents’ balances represents amount 
payable to insurance advisors towards 
commission as on the balance sheet 
date. Amount outstanding is mainly 
attributable to business sourced during 
the last month of the financial year

			   ii.	� Premium received in advance 
represents premium paid in advance by 
policyholders, which will be recognised 
as premium income on the due 
date of the policy

			   iii.	� Premium and other deposits are 
primarily attributable to monies 
received from policyholders but 
pending to be allocated on issuance 
of insurance policy. It mainly includes 
amount received during the last few 
days where policy could not be issued 
due to underwriting requirements or 
pending documents.

			   iv.	� Sundry creditors represent amounts 
payable to various service providers 
towards goods and services availed by 
the Company, along with the provision 
for the services availed or goods 
received but invoices are not received

			   v.	� Policyholders’ claims outstanding 
represents amounts payable to 
the policyholders for all claims viz. 
death, survival, surrenders, annuity, 
etc. that are intimated to the Company 
and are outstanding as on date due 
to pending investigation as a part 
of the normal claim process or are 
pending due to documents pending 
from policyholders

			   vi.	� Other liabilities include amount to 
be paid for securities purchased 
including brokerage, statutory liabilities 
payable and amount payable to 
unit-linked funds etc.
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			   vii.	� Provision for tax is shown net of 
advance tax paid by the Company

			   viii.	� Provision for employee benefits 
represents the Company’s liability 
towards gratuity, leave encashment 
and long-term service award, 
computed as per the requirements of 
Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) on 
Employee Benefits

D.	 Cash Flow Statement
	 The summary of Cash Flow Statement is given below:

(` in billion)

Particulars
Year ended  

March 31, 2020
Year ended  

March 31, 2019

Net cash generated from/
(for) operating activities

192.99 134.73

Net cash generated from/
(for) investing activities

(169.87) (135.53)

Net cash generated from/
(for) financing activities

(1.98) (2.41)

	 Cash flows from operating activities
	� Net cash flows generated from operating activities 

increased from ` 134.73 billion in FY 2019 to ` 192.99 
billion in FY 2020. This growth was primarily due to a 
rise in premium collection, which is partially offset by 
increase in policy benefits paid and commission and 
vendor payouts.

	 Cash flows from investing activities
	� Net cash flows used in investing activities increased 

from ` 135.53 billion in FY 2019 to ` 169.87 billion in 
FY 2020. This rise was primarily due to an expansion in 
investment in bonds, government securities, etc.

	 Cash flows from financing activities
	� Net cash flows used in financing activities decreased 

from ̀  2.41 billion in FY 2019 to ̀  1.98 billion in FY 2020.

VIII.	 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

	� Following are the key parameters on which 
performance of the Company is measured:

i.	 Market share, product mix and distribution mix
	 Market Share
	� The Company’s individual rated premium 

increased from ` 89.55 billion in FY 2019 to ` 97.72 
billion in FY 2020.

	� The Company’s market share in individual rated 
premium expanded over the years on account of 
growth in individual regular new business premium. 
Individual new business premium rose by 16.7% from 
` 96.36 billion in FY 2019 to ` 112.45 billion in FY 2020.

	� The Company’s individual rated premium private 
market share increased from 22.3% in FY 2019 to 
23.2% in FY 2020 and total market share has grew 
from 12.9% in FY 2019 to 13.3% in FY 2020.

   Total Market Share   Private Market Share 

IRP Market Share (%)

FY18 FY19 FY20FY17

20.7

11.2 12.3 12.9 13.3

21.8 22.3 23.2

	 Product mix
	� The Company has maintained a balanced product mix 

over the years. With the increasing awareness for 
pure protection products, share of protection in new 
business premium has enlarged over the years.

	� During FY 2020, the Company enhanced focus on 
protection business across individual and group 
segments. Hence, there is a rise in the share of new 
business protection business from 11.9% in FY 2019 
to 12.5% in FY 2020 and increase in share of non-par 
business from 34.2% in FY 2019 to 44.3% in FY 2020.

NBP Product mix (%)

12.511.95.54.8
Share of protection (%)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

10.8

44.3

48.7

34.2

53.0

25.5

56.0

38.7

50.5

  Par         Non Par         ULIP

18.5 12.8 7.0

	 Distribution mix
	� The Company continues to ensure diversification 

and strengthening of its distribution channels. 
All key distribution channels of the Company have 
demonstrated growth over the years. The share 
of Banca channel has increased over the years. 
For FY 2020, the share of Banca channel was 60.3%. 
Apart from agency and bancassurance channel, others 
comprise the Company’s corporate agents, brokers, 
micro agents and Common Service Centre (CSC), 
Insurance Marketing Firm (IMF) and direct business.
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NBP channel mix (` in billion)

FY17 FY19FY18 FY20

62.4 63.8 60.3

19.9

19.8

165.92137.92109.66101.44

21.3

14.9

25.1

12.5

22.3

24.7

  Banca %         Agency %         Others %

53.0

ii.	 Assets under management (AUM)
	� The AUM has significantly grown over the years 

due to increasing premium inflows. The Company 
registered a growth of 13.7% from ` 1,410.24 billion 
in FY 2019 to ` 1,603.63 billion in FY 2020. It has a 
consistent debt-equity mix of 79:21 and over 90% of 
the debt investments are in AAA rated and sovereign 
instruments as on March 31, 2020.

Assets under Management (` in billion)

FY17 FY19FY18 FY20

47.3 49.0
49.0

51.0

1,603.631,410.241,162.61977.37

51.052.754.4

  Linked %         Non Linked %

45.6

iii.	 Cost efficiency
	� The Company is continuously focusing on cost 

containment activities to reduce operating expenses. 
The Company’s ‘Operating Expense to Gross Written 
Premium (GWP) Ratio’ is one of the lowest among 
private life insurance players on a consistent basis. 
The total cost ratio has also declined over the years.

 Total Cost Ratio Commission Ratio* Opex Ratio
*Commission expense is inclusive of Rewards

Cost ratios (%)

13.72
11.56 11.20 10.52 9.94

8.04

5.68

6.80

4.76

6.59

4.61

6.34

4.17

5.94

4.00

FY17 FY18 FY20FY19 FY19

	� Total cost ratio is calculated as operating expenses, 
commission, provision for doubtful debts and bad 
debts written off divided by gross written premium.

iv.	 Customer satisfaction
	� The Company promotes ethical sales and 

aims to improve overall customer experience. 
Continuous customer engagement and awareness 
campaigns have reduced misselling complaints and 
surrender ratio.

0.20

0.14

0.10
0.09

Unfair Business Practices (%)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
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8.7

7.2

5.2

3.9

Surrender Ratio* (%)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

* Surrender ratio-individual linked 
products (Surrender/average AUM).

v.	 Profitability and net worth
	� Profits witnessed an increase of 7.2% from ` 13.27 

billion in FY 2019 to ̀  14.22 billion in FY 2020. Net worth 
of the Company has also consistently increased from 
` 55.52 billion in FY 2017 to ` 87.43 billion in FY 2020.

9.55

11.50

13.27
14.22

Profit after Tax (` in billion)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

55.52

18.6

65.28

19.0

75.76

18.8

87.43

17.4

Networth (` in billion)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

Return on Equity (RoE) %

vi.	 Solvency
	� Solvency is a regulatory measure of capital adequacy. 

It is expressed as a ratio of available capital and required 
capital. It is critical in determining any organisation’s 
ability to meet future contingencies and fund growth 

plans. As on March 31, 2020, the Company has a 
solvency of 1.95 against the mandatory requirement 
of 1.50. There has been no capital infusion in the 
Company after FY 2008.

2.04 2.06
2.13

1.95

Solvency Ratio

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

vii.	 Persistency
	� Persistency is a key parameter for insurance companies. 

It measures the proportion of policy holders who have 
continued with their policies. It indicates the ability of 
the Company to retain customers. Maintaining a high 
level of persistency is critical as it provides scope 
of regular revenues through renewal premiums. 
The 13th month persistency ratio (based on premium) 
has increased from 81.1% in FY 2017 to 86.1% in 
FY 2020. Persistency based on regular premium has 
also increased across all cohorts. The 13th month 
persistency based on regular premium increased 
from 81.3% in FY 2018 to 83.7% in FY 2020. And the 
13th month persistency for agency channel improved 
from 87.2% in FY 2019 to 87.6% in FY 2020 and for 
Bancassurance channel has decreased marginally 
from 83.8% in FY 2019 to 83.5% in FY 2020.

Persistency (%)

81.1

62.5

83.0

63.9

85.1

66.4

86.1

67.3

ChinaFY17 ChinaFY18 ChinaFY19 ChinaFY20

  13th Month         49th Month
	� Note: The persistency ratios are calculated as per IRDA/ACT/

CIR/MISC/035/01/2014 circular dated 23rd January 2014. Single 
Premium and Fully Paid-Up policies are considered in above 
calculation. Group Business where persistency is measurable is 
included. Persistency Ratios are calculated using policies issued 
in March to February period of the relevant years.
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viii.	� Embedded value and Value of New Business (VoNB) margin 
analysis

	 	� Embedded value of the Company increased 
from ` 224.02 billion on March 31, 2019, to 
` 262.91 billion as on March 31, 2020 showing a 
growth of 17.4%

	 	� VoNB rose from ̀  17.19 billion in FY 2019 to ̀  20.12 
billion in FY 2020, registering a growth of 17.0%

	 	� VoNB margin also grew from 17.7% in FY 2019 to 
18.7% in FY 2020

	� Embedded value increased on account of value of 
new business added. Improvement in persistency also 
contributed to the increase in VoNB margin.

15.4
16.2

17.7
18.7

165.38
190.70

262.91

  Embedded Value         VoNB Margin

Embedded Value (` in billion) and VoNB Margin (%)

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

224.02

(` in billion)Analysis of movement in IEV

Opening IEV Unwinding Operating
Experience

Variance

Change in
Operating

Assumptions

Economic
Assumption

Change &
Variance

Closing IEVVoNB

224.02
20.12

19.04 5.60 1.18

(7.05)

262.91

	 Sensitivity analysis
Scenario Change in EV% Change in VoNB%

Reference rate +100 bps (3.4) 1.7
Reference rate -100 bps 3.6 (1.8)
Decrease in equity value 10% (1.4) -
Proportionate change in lapse rate +10% (1.3) (5.8)
Proportionate change in lapse rate -10% 1.3 5.7
Mortality/morbidity +10% (2.3) (8.9)
Mortality/morbidity -10% 2.3 8.9
Maintenance expense +10% (0.6) (2.2)
Maintenance expense -10% 0.6 2.2
Mass Lapse for ULIPs in the year after the surrender penalty period of 25%* (2.2) (7.7)
Mass Lapse for ULIPs in the year after the surrender penalty period of 50%* (5.3) (18.5)
Tax Rate Change to 25% on normal tax rate basis (8.4) (15.6)

	� *Mass lapse sensitivity (of 25% or 50%) for ULIP business is applied at the end of surrender penalty period as defined by APS 10, which is 
taken to be the beginning of 5th policy year for current generation of our ULIP products.
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IX.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

	� The Company has aligned its internal financial control 
system with the requirements of the Companies 
Act 2013, on lines of globally accepted risk-based 
framework as issued by Committee of Sponsoring 
Organisations (COSO). The internal control framework 
is intended to increase transparency and accountability 
in an organisation’s process of designing and 
implementing a system of internal control. 
The framework requires it to identify and analyse risks 
and manage appropriate responses. The Company has 
successfully laid down the framework and ensured its 
effectiveness. Its internal financial control framework 
is based on ‘three lines of defence model’. It has laid 
down standard operation procedures and policies to 
guide the business operations and has a well-defined 
delegation of power with authority limits for approving 
revenue and capital expenditure. Statutory, Concurrent 
and Internal Auditors undertake testing of the control 
environment of the Company. It also has a Chief Audit 
Officer with a dedicated in-house internal audit team 
which is commensurate with the size, nature and 
complexity of operations of the Company. The internal 
audit plan covers Information System Audit, different 
process audit as well as transaction based audits at 
the Head office, Regional Offices and across various 
branches of the Company. The approach of the audit 
is to verify compliance with the regulatory, operational 
and system related controls.

X.	 MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

	� We believe that our employees are our most valuable 
assets. They play a pivotal role in achieving all our 
business objectives as well as partner us in fulfilling 
our social responsibilities. Our endeavour is to attract 
the best and the brightest individuals, provide them 
with rich developmental opportunities, support them 
to maintain a healthy work-life balance and recognise 
their achievements through various rewards & 
recognition schemes.

	� We have a robust selection process which identifies 
the best fit for the company. The induction and 
hand-holding process consists of tailor made induction 
programs developed and improvised constantly to 
equip the new recruits with knowledge and skills to 
excel in their role and deliver the highest order of 
customer satisfaction.

	� Our rewards philosophy comprises of a mix of 
salary, benefits, and various short and long term 
incentives. It is designed to encourage our employees 
for superior performance, producing better results 
and thus creating customer delight. The benefits 
offered to the employees are designed to provide 
them a sense of security and fulfil their personal 
and professional aspirations. For example, we offer 
medical insurance top up options for our employees 
as well as their family members. A facility of annual 
Health Check-up was introduced during the year for 
employees through a healthcare aggregator on a 

Pan India level. Not only are the female employees 
provided fully-paid maternity leave, but the male 
employees are also provided fully-paid paternity leave. 
Employees are well supported during their life-cycle 
events by facilities like sabbatical leave, child adoption 
leave and study leave which provide them a flexibility 
to balance career and personal life events effectively. 
The employees are encouraged to acquire higher 
industry specific functional and technical qualifications 
and are rewarded suitably.

	� The Employee stock option scheme of the company 
aims to incentivize high performers by aligning their 
interests with those of the shareholders; creating a 
win-win situation for both employees and shareholders. 
It assists the Company in long term value creation as 
the focus will be to ensure sustainability of business 
results over a period of time. During FY 2019-20, the 
company granted 959,350 options to its employees, 
which will vest over a period of 3 years. The vesting 
of options is dependent on achievement of certain 
performance criteria.

	� Our performance management system, LEAP 
(Leading through Excellence And Performance), is 
based on balanced scorecard approach. This tool 
provides a framework for setting clear expectations, 
providing positive feedback and delivering an effective 
performance assessment, where the rewards are 
directly linked with overall company dashboard 
performance. Apart from balanced scorecard, 
the LEAP process is complemented by Individual 
Development Plan (IDP). Under IDP, customized 
personal development sessions are conducted. 
The program focuses on strategic thinking, capability 
building, and execution excellence.

	� We put concerted efforts in talent management 
practices to ensure that the Company consistently 
develops inspiring, strong and credible leadership. 
To achieve this, we focus on giving cross-functional 
exposure to our people, thus effectively multi-skilling 
them. These people practices create a workforce that 
is more flexible and efficient in responding to customer 
needs and market demands. Such exposures ensure 
that an individual taking on a new role, also has the 
skills to handle it.

	� To promote collaboration and a sense of belongingness, 
we drive employee engagement through various team 
events like off-site meet, team dinner, annual day 
event “Sangam” where employees and their families 
come together and join in the celebrations.

	� The company, one of the most trusted private Life 
insurance brands, is now more than 19 years old. 
Our family has grown from 14,961 employees as 
on March 31, 2019 to 16,759 employees as on 
March 31, 2020 i.e. a growth of 12%. The average age 
of employees is around 36 years. The average tenure 
is around 4 years and 7 months which demonstrates 
a sense of belongingness resulting from the mutual 
trust between employees and the organization.
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To,
The Members of
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited

The Directors are pleased to present the 20th Annual Report of SBI Life Insurance Company Limited (“SBI Life” or “the 
Company”) along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

1.	 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

	 The summary of the financial performance of the Company for FY 2020 is presented below:

(` billion)

Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019

A.	 Financial Parameters:
	 Gross Written Premium (GWP) 406.35 329.89
	 -	 New Business Premium (NBP) 165.92 137.92
	 -	 Renewal Premium (RP) 240.42 191.97
	 Profit / (Loss) before taxation 17.90 16.42
	 Provision for taxation 3.68 3.15
	 Profit / (Loss) after taxation 14.22 13.27
	 Profit at the beginning of the year 64.60 53.74
	 Total profit available for appropriation 78.82 67.01
	 Interim/ Final dividend (including dividend distribution tax) - 2.41
	 Profit carried to the balance sheet 78.82 64.60
	 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

	 -	 Basic (in `) 14.22 13.27

	 -	 Diluted (in `) 14.22 13.27

	 Net worth 87.42 75.76
B.	 Business Parameters:
	 Indian Embedded Value (IEV) 262.91 224.02
	 Annualized Premium Equivalent (APE) 107.37 97.02
	 Value of New Business (VoNB) 20.12 17.19
	 New Business Margin (VoNB Margin) 18.7% 17.7%
	 Assets under Management (AUM) 1,603.63 1,410.24
	 Individual Rated Premium (IRP) 97.72 89.55
	 Total Protection NBP (Individual + Group) 20.82 16.43
	 Total Protection NBP Share 12.5% 11.9%
	 NBP Product mix (%) (Par/Non Par/ULIP) 7/44/49 13/34/53
	 NBP Channel mix (%) (Banca/Agency/others) 60/20/20 64/21/15
	 Operating expense ratio 5.9% 6.3%
	 Commission ratio$ 4.0% 4.2%
	 Total cost ratio* 9.9% 10.5%
	 Solvency ratio 1.95 2.13
	 Persistency ratio (13th month on premium basis) 86.14% 85.07%
	 Number of new policies issued (in 000’s) 1,551.86 1,526.14

	 $ Commission ratio = Commission (including rewards) / Gross Written Premium (GWP)
	 * Total Cost= Operating expenses + Commission + Provision for doubtful debt + Bad debts written off

2.	 HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

	� The Company witnessed a growth and consistent performance in FY 2020. The key financial parameters of the 
Company are as follows:

	 	 New Business Premium (NBP) has increased by 20% from ̀  137.92 billion in FY 2019 to ̀ 165.92 billion in FY 2020.

	 	� Individual rated premium (IRP) has increased by 9% from ` 89.55 billion in FY 2019 to ` 97.72 billion in FY 2020 
with Private market share of 23.2%.
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	 	� Total protection new business premium has 
increased by 27% from ` 16.43 billion in FY 
2019 to ` 20.82 billion in FY 2020. The share 
of total protection NBP (individual and group) 
has increased from 11.9% in FY 2019 to 
12.5% in FY 2020.

	 	� Individual protection business has increased 
by 42% to ` 5.29 billion in FY 2020 from ` 3.71 
billion in FY 2019.

	 	� APE has increased by 11% to ` 107.37 billion 
over previous year.

	 	� GWP has increased by 23% to ` 406.35 billion 
primarily due to increase in renewal premium by 
25% from ` 191.97 billion to ` 240.42 billion.

	 	� The Company’s profit after tax grew by 7% 
to ` 14.22 billion in FY 2020 from ` 13.27 
billion in FY 2019.

	 	� The operating expense ratio (Operating Expense 
to GWP) stands at 5.9% in FY 2020 as against 
6.3% in FY 2019.

	 	� AUM has grown by 14% from ` 1,410.24 billion 
as of March 31, 2019 to ` 1603.63 billion as of 
March 31, 2020 with debt-equity mix of 79:21.

	 	� Solvency ratio of the Company stands at 1.95 
as against the regulatory requirement of 1.5 
indicating the strong & stable financial health 
of the Company.

	 	� The 13th month persistency ratio (based on 
premium) improved by 107 bps to 86.14% in FY 
2020 from 85.07% in FY 2019.

	 	� Indian Embedded Value of the company stands at 
` 262.91 billion, as on March 31, 2020 as compared 
to ` 224.02 billion as on March 31, 2019.

	 	� Value of New Business grew by 17% from ̀  17.19 
billion to ` 20.12 billion in FY 2020 leading to an 
increase in value of new business margin from 
17.7% to 18.7% in FY 2020.

	 	 Distribution reach
		�  The Company, with a view to increase the market 

share and serving underpenetrated market, 
continues to emphasise on the expansion of its 
distribution reach through opening up of new 
offices, quality recruitments and new business 
partnerships. As at March 31, 2020, the Company 
has 937 offices, 130,418 Insurance Advisors (IAs) 
and 53,096 Certified Insurance Facilitators (CIFs) 
across the country as against 908 offices, 123,613 
IAs and 58,995 CIFs as on March 31, 2019.

		�  The Company has obtained necessary regulatory 
approvals for opening branch office in Kingdom 
of Bahrain from IRDAI and Central Bank of 
Bahrain (CBB) for carrying out life insurance 
business. However, the Board of Directors in its 
meeting held on January 22, 2020 have resolved 

to surrender the Certificate of Commencement 
issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) and 
to withdraw all the resources of the Company in 
accordance to the applicable laws.

	 	 Distribution Mix
		�  During the year the Company collected New 

Business Premium of ̀  165.92 billion, comprising 
of ` 99.97 billion from ‘Bancassurance’ which 
represents company’s largest distribution 
network, ` 33.08 billion from Retail Agency, and 
`  32.87 billion from other distribution  channel 
which includes direct sales, sales by non- 
bancassurance corporate agents, brokers, 
micro agents, common service centres (CSC), 
insurance marketing firms (IMFs) and Web 
aggregators.

		�  The Company’s direct sales primarily comprise 
sale of group products, as well as standardised 
individual products sold through online offerings.

3.	 INDUSTRY AND COMPANY OUTLOOK

	� It was a challenging year for the Indian economy. 
India saw a decline in its growth rate from 7% in 
FY 2019 to 4.5% in FY 2020. The slowdown was 
attributed to weakened investments, slow domestic 
consumer demand and some turbulence in the 
non-banking financial institutions. Various international 
organizations such as World Bank, International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) and rating agency Moody’s 
have cut down the GDP growth forecast for India. 
Disinvestment of PSUs, merger of public sector banks, 
incentivizing start-ups and MSMEs and reduction in 
corporate tax rate were some of the steps taken by 
the government to bring India back to growth track.

	� As the world economy struggles to fight against 
COVID-19, India is no exception to it. Slowdown in 
consumption, curbs on travel and other restrictions 
would hurt businesses and bring down the growth 
in the current year. One of the rating agencies has 
slashed India’s growth to 2.5% in 2020.

	� Having said that, the fundamentals of the Indian 
economy remains strong. If India is able to control the 
spread of the pandemic, this seems to be a temporary 
moderation in the GDP growth rate and the economy 
will be expected to bounce back in the coming quarters. 
The government has already taken various measures 
like rate cuts, liquidity infusion, loan moratorium for 
borrower and many more to revive the economy.

	� Life insurance business in India is likely to contract 
in 2020, with growth declining 0.9% in 2020, 
compared to 8.8% growth recorded in 2019, due 
to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent 
lockdown. Further, India’s life insurance market is 
forecasted to grow at a compound annual growth rate 
(CAGR) of 5.3% during the forecast period 2019-2023. 
(Source: data and analytics company GlobalData)
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	 Key challenges are listed below:

	� Low interest rates and persistent barriers to growth: Low 
interest rates, stagnant growth and the growing 
likelihood of a global recession define the challenging 
economic reality for insurers around the world. 
These dynamics place real pressure that insurers feel 
not only on their bottom lines, but also in their strategic 
plans, transformation programs and new product.

	� Low interest rates are the biggest challenge to growth, 
especially for life insurers. These conditions are the 
new normal, the latest round of monetary easing 
is increasing the pressure and negative yields are 
now appearing in both government bonds and the 
corporate market. Weakening GDP growth and trade 
tensions further complicate the macro outlook for 
insurers. The increasing likelihood of the next financial 
crisis as investors hunt for yields may push them 
toward increasingly riskier asset classes.

	� All of these forces add up to a major challenge for 
insurers, especially given that insurers derive majority 
of their profits from investment income. The erosion 
of investment returns from low interest rates, 
tightening spreads and inverted yield curves will not 
only undercut this critical source of profitability, but 
also potentially put ratings at risk.

	� Shifting demographics: Demographic shifts around 
the world present insurers with both risks and 
opportunities. Aging populations and low birthrates 
are a challenge in many markets. In contrast, growing 
middle classes in a number of developing countries 
have been a huge boon to insurers.

	� In many developing market especially Asia, are 
experiencing stronger growth and a growing middle 
class. Market dynamics in many of these countries 
are favorable to insurers. For instance, demand for 
insurance policies rises where consumers place a 
high value on savings and preparing for the future. 
Similarly, the importance of private insurance is 
elevated when government-sponsored social programs 
are relatively weak. Finally, as an economy develops, 
small to medium enterprises (SMEs) start looking for 
insurance coverage and larger companies need help 
in protecting themselves across complex value chains 
that often span across multiple countries or regions.

	� Rising customer expectations: Customer expectations 
- largely around digital channels and bespoke 
experiences - have been rising and will only get higher 
in the near future. Creating unique and personalized 
customer experiences has been a priority for many 
years, indicating that many companies are still playing 
catch-up and remain vulnerable to non-traditional 
players. Thus better customer experiences have 
been a priority for years - and will remain one for the 
foreseeable future.

	 Regulatory update:
	� FY 2019-20 witnessed the notification of several key 

orders and circulars by the IRDAI. This includes a 

circular on guidelines to be followed in the preparation 
of financial statements by life insurers. The insurance 
industry looked poised to experience growth and 
innovation, with IRDAI inviting applications for 
Regulatory Sandbox and constituting a committee for 
the scrutinisation of the applications received.

	� Additionally, the regulator has issued various 
regulations/circular for the life insurance sector 
such as IRDAI (Appointed Actuary) (Amendment) 
Regulations, 2019, IRDAI (Unit linked insurance 
products) Regulations, 2019 and IRDAI (Non- linked 
insurance products) Regulations, 2019, Master Circular 
on Point of Sales (POS) Products and Persons - Life 
Insurance, Revised guidelines on Stewardship Code 
IRDAI circulars in respect of COVID-19 etc.

	 The Company strategy focuses on the following:

	 1.	� Leveraging life insurance industry growth 
through deeper penetration, increasing share of 
protection business and increasing market share 
through a balanced portfolio of protection and 
savings products.

	 2.	� Increasing geographical reach by using our 
expansive distribution network and strengthening 
our distribution mix by leveraging relationships 
with new corporate agents, broker partners and 
web aggregators.

	 3.	� Maximising customer satisfaction by offering 
comprehensive suite of products of transparent 
nature at competitive prices and improving 
customer experience from client on-boarding to 
claims settlement.

	 4.	� Digitisation and automation of sales processes to 
improve distribution and operational efficiencies.

4.	 COVID 19

	� The COVID-19 Pandemic has spread with alarming 
speed, infecting millions and bringing economic 
activity to a near-standstill. It has pushed businesses 
across sectors to change the way they operate and the 
insurance industry is no exception. From selling new 
policies to settling claims, the extended lockdown in the 
wake of COVID-19 has pushed companies to depend 
heavily on their digital architecture through online 
business. The main concern for the Company is the 
protection of its employees, its distribution partners’ 
health and safety along with business continuity.

	 Business Continuity
	� This nation-wide lockdown required the Company 

to activate its Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to 
enable operations to run with minimal disruptions. 
The Company had made a quick transition to Work 
from home (WFH) with the use of portable devices 
through Company’s Virtual Private Network (VPN) 
to the employees ensuring requisite data security 
controls. The Company also continued to deliver to its 
customers by providing 24x7 availability through our 
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digital platforms. The Company identified immediate 
significant challenges to alter operations based on 
advisories issued by government as a part of Business 
Continuity Plan to ensure compliance as well as 
effective conduct of operations.

	 Information & Cyber-security
	� Activating remote working comes with its own 

set of challenges, including managing information 
security, infrastructure and vulnerability to phishing 
attacks. Technology infrastructure has made sure that 
working from home doesn’t mean working without 
security. Continuous monitoring is in place to ensure 
information security to be of utmost importance along 
with business continuity. Necessary steps will be taken 
to mitigate any risks relating to information & cyber 
security. As the processes of the Company are mostly 
system driven, there have been no material change in 
the controls or processes and all the material controls 
are found to be operating effectively.

	 New business
	� The drive taken by the Company in the recent past to 

migrate from physical forms to digital onboarding of 
the customers has helped us in a big way to source 
the proposals based on the insurance needs and 
requirements of the customers in this pandemic. 
The pandemic is having a huge psychological impact 
on the consumers’ behavior, we believe that in short 
to medium term the protection products along with 
long term investments products will gain momentum 
and insurance will be more prioritized for financial 
immunity and safeguard of family from uncertainty of 
life and health.

	 Risk assessment
	� The Company has assessed various risk scenario like 

short term outbreaks to medium term pandemic and 
to long term pandemic. In such stress scenarios, the 
Company has reassessed financial risk, operational 
risk and business continuity measures. The Company 
has re-evaluated mortality and morbidity assumptions, 
persistency, growth & projections, reinvestment 
strategies, duration & asset liability management, etc.

	� The Company invests in well diversified investment 
portfolio consisting of Government Securities, bonds & 
debentures, equity shares, money market instruments, 
fixed deposits, etc. The Company’s major investments 
are in large cap Nifty 50 Index stocks, sovereign and 
AAA rated securities with strong group backing which 
indicate safe and reliable assets quality. The substantial 
portions of the investments are readily marketable 
providing sufficient liquidity. The Company do not 
have major concentration in any major industry, which 
might have adversely impacted due to COVID-19. 
The Company has evaluated the recoverability of all 
its investments and expects to recover the carrying 
amount of these assets. The Company has considered 
internal and external sources of information including 
credit reports, economic forecasts and industry data in 

assessing and evaluating the impact of this pandemic 
COVID-19 on the business operations and financial 
results of the Company.

	� The Company has evaluated its liquidity position and of 
recoverability and carrying value of its currents assets 
majorly consisting of accrued investment income 
and other receivables. Based on the assessment, the 
Company expects to recover the carrying amount of 
all these assets.

	� Impact of Covid-19 on policy liabilities would be on 
account of factors like discount rate and mortality 
assumptions used for valuation. There is reasonable 
level of prudence provided in the valuation interest 
rate assumption.

	� It is expected that due to this pandemic there would 
be increase in mortality claim since the pandemic has 
been affecting individual lives. The valuation mortality 
assumption has reasonable prudence to take care of 
fluctuations in claim. Also, reinsurance arrangements 
are in place to reduce the risk exposure.

	� The customers utilized the grace period in making 
the renewal payments in early months of FY 21. 
Renewal trends can be expected to gradually pick 
up and accordingly persistency should be seen 
maintained at the current levels.

	� Based on the Company’s current assessment of the 
business operations over the next year, it expects 
the solvency ratio to continue to remain above the 
minimum limit requirement of the IRDAI.

	 Future outlook
	� The impact of COVID-19 has already been significant 

on the global economy. However, the future impact of 
COVID-19 on business operations of the Company and 
the additional requisite mitigation measures that will 
be required by Company will be based on how long 
the pandemic lasts and what happens once normality 
returns. A lot depends on the availability of an approved 
vaccine as well. The actual impact of COVID-19 may 
differ from that estimated at present. The Company will 
continue to closely monitor any future developments 
relating to COVID-19 which may have any impact on 
the business and financial statements. 

5.	 DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

	� The Company’s profit after tax grew by 7% to 
`14.22 billion in FY 2020 from `13.27 billion in 
FY 2019. The Board of Directors of the Company 
has not declared any dividend during the year 
after taking cognizance of the IRDAI circular no. 
IRDAI/F&A/CIR/MISC/099/04/2020 dated April 24, 2020 
on “Prudent management of financial resources of 
insurers in the context of Covid-19 pandemic”.

	� The Company has carried forward ` 14.22 billion to its 
reserves and surplus, and had accumulated balance of 
`78.8 billion as on March 31, 2020.

93

Integrated Annual Report 2019-20



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTD.)

	� In terms of Regulation 43A of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”) the Dividend Distribution 
Policy of the Company is disclosed on the website 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/dividend-distribution-policy

	� The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid 
and unclaimed dividend on the Company’s website: 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/en/about-us/investor- 
relations

6.	 CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING

	� During the year there was no fresh capital infusion 
by the promoters in the Company. The authorized 
share capital and paid up share capital of the 
Company stands at ` 20.00 billion and ` 10.00 billion 
respectively. The shareholding pattern during the 
year under review is in compliance with the statutory 
requirement. The shareholding pattern is provided as 
a part of Form No. MGT-9 which is annexed to this 
Report and under Schedule – 5A which forms part of 
the Financial Statement.

	� During the year, State Bank of India (Promoter) has 
sold 4.5% stake i.e. 45,000,000 equity shares of ` 10 
each at an average price of `785.18 per share for a 
consideration of ̀ 35.33 billion. BNP Paribas Cardif S.A. 
(Promoter) has sold 2.5% stake i.e. 25,000,000 equity 
shares of ` 10 each at an average price of ` 680.77 per 
share for a consideration of ` 17.02 billion.

	� During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company 
has allotted 26,295 equity shares of ̀  10 each pursuant 
to exercise of stock options by the eligible employees. 
This allotment has resulted in increase in paid-up 
equity share capital by ` 263 thousands and securities 
premium by ` 14,527 thousands.

7.	 INCLUSION IN ‘FUTURES & OPTIONS’ SEGMENT OF NSE

	� The National Stock Exchange (NSE) notified on 21 
April, 2020, that F&O contracts of SBI Life Insurance 
Company would be available for trading with effect 
from 4 May, 2020.

8.	 INCLUSION IN MSCI EMERGING MARKETS INDEX

	� Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) in its 
semi-annual review of Global Standard Indexes 
on November 7, 2019, announced the inclusion of 
SBI Life in the MSCI Emerging Markets Index from 
November 26, 2019.

9.	 DEPOSITS

	� During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public as per Section 73 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

10.	 AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

	� The Company has received various awards during the 
year across financial reporting, brand management, 
technology etc. Brief highlight of some of the major 
awards are mentioned below:

	 	� Won the ‘Gold Shield’ for excellence in Financial 
Reporting by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) for FY 2018-19.

	 	� Won the Life Insurer of the Year 2019 – by 
Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce 
(FICCI)

	 	� Won the Best Life Insurance Company 2019 
- Emerging Asia Insurance Awards by Indian 
Chamber of Commerce (ICC)

	 	� Won the Gold in Best Content Marketing Launch 
award by Afaqs Foxglove Awards 2019

	 	� Won the Silver in Best Brand Film BFSI Award by 
Indian Television Brandvid Awards 2019

	 	� Won Gold and Silver in Best Social Media Brand 
Cause Marketing and Best BFSI (Insurance) Brand 
on Social Media respectively at Social Samosa’s 
Sammie2019 Best Social Media brands awards

	 	� Won Gold in the ‘Experiential’ category at 
‘Indian Content Marketing Awards 2019’ 
by Exchange4media

	 	� Won the Bronze in the ‘Best Campaign for 
CSR/Social Good’ category at the ‘DMA ASIA 
ECHO Awards, 2019’

	 	� Won the Smart Life Insurance Company at ET 
Insurance Summit 2019 by The Economic Times

	 	� Won the ‘Best Use of Integrated Marketing’ at the 
Indian Marketing Awards 2019

	 	� Won ‘Silver’ for the ‘Best Integrated Marketing 
Campaign’ and ‘Best Campaign- BFSI at the ET 
Brand Equity DigiPlus Award

	 	� Won the Financial Services Company of the Year 
Award 2019-20 at VCCircle Awards 2020

	 	� Won Gold award - Life Insurance Provider of 
the Year 2019 (Private Sector) at Outlook Money 
Conclave and Awards 2019

	 	� Won the ‘Best Sales Enablement Technology’ 
award at The Customer Fest Awards, 2020

	 	� Received the Company Performance Award, 2019 
under the category ‘India’s Leading Life Insurance 
Company - Private’ at the BFSI Summit & Awards 
by Dun & Bradstreet

	� As we work to deliver performance with purpose, we are 
proud that numerous organisations have recognised our 
efforts and achievements. These awards demonstrate 
the Company’s commitment to achieve excellence, 
across all spheres of its activities and operations.
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11.	 PRODUCTS

	� SBI Life has a wide range of products catering to 
various customer needs in the life, health, pension 
& micro-insurance segments. These products are 
customer centric, simple to understand and have 
competitive features.

	� To maintain its competitive edge in the market, the 
Company has reviewed and modified thirty-three 
existing products & six riders (individual and group) 
during FY 2020. The products pertaining to various 
categories such as Protection Plans, Retirement 
Solutions, Wealth Creation Plans, Savings Plans & Child 
Plans were modified in line with the IRDAI (Insurance) 
Product Regulations, 2019.

	� The following two products were already compliant 
with the IRDAI (Insurance) Product Regulations, 2019.

	 1)	� SBI Life - Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima 
Yojana (UIN:111G102V01)

	 2)	 SBI Life - Swarna Jeevan (UIN:111N049V04)

	� In addition to the two products above, five Group 
riders are also compliant with the Regulations.

	� The Company had also launched one new product, 
SBI Life- Smart Platina Assure (UIN: 111N126V01) 
and modified four existing products prior to the 
implementation of the IRDAI (Insurance) Product 
Regulations, 2019 in view of the changing interest rate 
scenario and to accommodate market demand.

	� In view of the changing market demand and Regulations, 
eight products and three riders (individual and group) 
were withdrawn from the market during the year.

12.	 CUSTOMER AND PARTNER SERVICE ENABLEMENT

	� During the year under review, the Company has been 
in a position to handle a total volume of 15.51 lacs 
Individual NOP’s and total Premiums of ̀  165.92 billion 
in New Business, resulting in an increase of 20% in 
total New Business growth.

	� Apart from this, the company has also managed 
to collect Renewal Premium of ` 240.42 billion, 
showing an increase of 25% in Renewal Premium 
Collection Business.

	� The company is continuously striving to achieve and 
scale new heights of performance and raising the 
bar, by improving its processes, training and reskilling 
resources and improving the various digital platforms 
launched for its stake holders- Its Customers, 
Distributors and Business Partners. We strongly 
believe, that in the present day digital world, it is 
extremely necessary to empower the stakeholders 
digitally, and have been taking several steps towards 
the same. While working towards raising the bar 
in “End to End” digital services, the company also 
understands that customers and partners come from 
varied demographics and there is never a single “One 

Size fits all” solution. Entire endeavours towards 
continuous improvements is undertaken with this in 
mind; where aim is to create a balance between the 
needs of diverse groups of customers and equally 
diverse distribution partners.

	� The snapshot of the various activities undertaken by 
various departments under the overall Operations 
Business Unit, which are highlighted below:

	� List of activities that the Company executed which 
benefitted more than one department in the 
Operations team.

	� Entering into an arrangement with IIBI for Information 
Sharing:

	� Insurance Information Bureau of India (IIBI) maintains 
a central repository of all* the policies of participating 
insurance companies. The information is maintained 
at individual policy level and includes, personal details 
of lives insured (LA) as well as Underwriting decisions 
and Claims related information. The participating 
companies can get the facility to query on this entire 
database. It is particularly useful at the time of New 
Business Underwriting and also during Claims 
assessment / Settlement as it helps in getting all the 
information in respect of the insurance policies held 
by the Life Assured (LA) taken from other insurance 
companies. Other information, such as whether any 
of the LA’s proposals was ever declined / accepted 
with extra rating etc., by other companies is also 
made available. This information proves very vital in 
detecting various Non disclosures / claim frauds.

	� SBI Life entered into an agreement with IIBI and 
started participating in the IIBI data module (Quest) 
from October 2019. The company is now in a position 
to mitigate the risks of non-disclosure / wrong 
disclosure to a large extent. (*as agreed upon by the 
participating companies).

	� SBI Life was the first company to have an API 
Integration with IIBI where in this information is 
received by us directly on real time basis, as and when 
we seek the necessary information.

	� Teams benefited - New Business, Underwriting, & Claims 
management.

	� Making use of WhatsApp for various communications with 
customers:

	� Initiated communication through what’s app 
messenger for information on various events starting 
from the on boarding stage. Currently communication 
is sent on events like proposal login, requirements 
raised, policy issuance, Policy Dispatch, Downloading 
of E-Policy document & intimation on return 
undelivered. These communications are sent only 
to those customers who have provided consent for 
receiving WhatsApp communication. Going ahead, 
the plan is to take the customer’s consent during 
proposal journey in M-connect app and intimations 
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through What’s App for all pre and post issuance 
related matters will be sent.

	� Customer can now opt to connect over WhatsApp 
by a missed call on 9029006575. In the year under 
review, we already have over 16 lakh customers who 
have opted for WhatsApp services. We have sent 
renewal premium receipts to over 18 lakh customers. 
Over 10 lakh premium receipts have been sent in 13 
Regional languages also. Once registered, customers 
can also chat with our Chabot on WhatsApp and get all 
key policy information and even get a premium quote 
and payment link.

	� Teams benefited - New Business, Underwriting, Policy 
Servicing & Renewal management.

	 A.	 New Business
		�  The New Business Department is pivotal in 

ensuring a smooth on-boarding experience to 
the customers as well as sourcing partners. 
The initiatives taken throughout the year are 
focussed on improving the customer on-boarding 
experience through improving the processes 
thereby leading to faster issuance, digitization 
and better communication.

		�  Know Your Customer (KYC) verification through 
AADHAR on Digital platforms:

		�  KYC verification of the customer through 
AADHAR has been enhanced by adding QR code 
scanning that is available in the AADHAR card 
of the customer.

		�  Subsequently, in addition to QR code scanning 
second option to do KYC verification has also been 
introduced by incorporating offline e-KYC method. 
Through this mode, customer has the benefit of 
non-submission of any hard copy of AADHAR 
towards KYC & age proof. Along with it, Offline 
e-KYC takes care of basic KYC of customer and 
no additional KYC document is required. This has 
eased the KYC verification process of customers 
by enabling them to complete the KYC in one go 
and made it a seamless journey for customer. 
Offline e-KYC also works as a Risk mitigation tool 
as customer credential are authenticated as part 
of the process and it completely rules out the risk 
of uploading any invalid / fraudulent document. 
Offline e-KYC has also helped to increase our 
Digital FTR percentage, eventually reducing 
the overall TAT.

		�  Optical Character Recognition (OCR) Technology in 
Digital platforms:

		�  The company achieved a penetration of 98% 
in Digital adoption under the period of review. 
The major issue faced in the on-boarding 
journey was that of upload of correct and valid 
Images, which has a direct impact on the overall 
performance parameters of the company. 
In order to tackle this issue, digital applications 

(m-Connect / Parivartan) was enhanced to 
recognize the correct document that is submitted 
against the selected Official Valid Document 
(OVD). This feature has been introduced for five 
OVD’s viz.; AADHAR card, Driving License, Voter 
ID card, PAN card & Passport. This has increased 
the receipt of the correct KYC documents at 
the sourcing stage itself to a large extent. 
OCR technology has helped in Risk Reduction 
by making sure that only correct images are 
uploaded thereby enhancing the Quality index.

		  Automation of Proposal Deposit Refund:
		�  One of the important parameters of PPI 

(Protection of Policy Holder Interest) guideline 
is to refund any Proposal Deposit that could not 
be accounted for issuance within a stipulated 
TAT. To avoid any deviation, the identification of 
Proposals for refund under various categories 
of Proposal Deposit Refund has now been 
automated. This has not only resulted in 
adherence to PPI guidelines and other Regulatory 
provisions but also ensured reduction of manual 
intervention in the process.

		  Automation of Proposal Deposit Unclaimed Movement:
		�  Proposal Deposit amount that could not be 

adjusted / policy issued or refunded, for any reason 
within 180 days have to be mandatorily moved 
to Unclaimed account, as per IRDAI regulation. 
Looking at the huge volumes handled, manually 
identifying such cases is a cumbersome activity 
and further any delay in movement to unclaimed 
fund not only creates regulatory violation but due 
to change in NAV of unclaimed fund, it may also 
account financial loss to the company based on 
the profit / loss as per the NAV. Thus, this entire 
process from identification of the transaction to 
transfer the same to the Unclaimed Account has 
now been automated.

		�  Policy Document development: Revision in Regulatory 
Guidelines

		�  Introduction of new product guidelines for all 
Pension, ULIP & Traditional policies necessitated 
the development of fresh policy documents 
templates for all newly launched products. 
Massive exercise of changing the template of 
all products was successfully undertaken well 
within prescribed timelines.

		�  Expanding policy dispatch process through private 
couriers:

		�  The company was looking at addressing the one 
of the customers’ concerns i.e. non-receipt of 
policy bonds, which constitute on an average 
0.13% of total policies dispatches. These policies 
were being returned undelivered. The company 
now has tied up with local couriers to deliver the 
policies in Major metros like Mumbai, Delhi and 
their surrounding areas like Thane, Navi Mumbai, 
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and NCR on pilot basis from November 2019. 
Initial results of utilization of local couriers have 
been very encouraging in terms of delivery 
percentage, including the delivery TAT and also 
procuring the POD’s. Accordingly, the Company 
has drawn out plans to further expand the 
services to other cities on Pan India basis.

		  Increased Digital Adoption in RiNn Raksha:
		�  Digital adoption is one of the major tool that is now 

widely used by the customer for all modes i.e. 
for proposal login, premium payment, servicing 
requests, etc. For RiNn Raksha proposals (Credit 
Life plans) it was deeply focused throughout the 
year 2019-20. We are happy to inform that the 
Digital adoption of proposal login for RiNn Raksha 
proposals has increased from earlier 94.70% as 
in April 2019 to 99.40 % in March 2020.

		�  The percentage of premium received through 
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) has also improved 
from the earlier 83.31% as in April 2019 to 93.60 
% as in March 2020. This achievement is a result 
of various development and initiatives taken by 
both IT and Operations of the Bank and SBIL 
e.g. Real time EFT, making EFT mandatory for 
SBI proposals & regular communication of digital 
adoption to region and Credit Life Manager’s 
via auto-mailers.

		  RiNn Raksha Certificate of Insurance. (CoI)
		�  On initial dispatch of CoI - initiated an SMS 

in which bitly link of Speed Post and Blue dart 
website is provided to enable the customer to 
track the delivery details. Copy of CoI is now 
directly being dispatched to the sourcing Bank 
branches for their records.

		  Email / SMS Intimation for Proposal Deposit Refund:
		�  Proposal deposit refund happens through 

electronic mode of payment only (Direct 
remittance to Bank account). Sometimes it takes 
time for the physical letter to reach customer 
and customer is not aware of the reason of this 
credit into his account. In order to bridge this 
gap, department initiated an SMS / Email service 
to the customer that goes on the same day of 
the crediting of the amount resulting into faster 
intimation to the customer regarding the nature 
of Credit received.

	 B.	 UNDERWRITING
		�  Underwriting is a critically important function that 

aims at assessing and booking of the correct risk 
with adequately understanding the same based on 
the information provided. Underwriting guidelines 
are subject to change with the introduction of new 
products / processes / systems or revision in legal 
and regulatory aspects. In line with the focus on 
digitalization, various initiatives were undertaken 
in the year under review to ensure simplified and 
seamless processing and issuance of proposals.

		  Individual Business:
		  	 Digital Moral Hazard Report (e-MHR)
			�   Introduction of e-MHR has eased the 

process of physical paper submission of 
MHR. The digital format of MHR is now 
authenticated through the digital credentials 
of the person submitting the said MHR. It is 
validated through an OTP sent on registered 
mobile number of sales intermediary. 
Digital MHR can also be submitted through 
Smart Advisor Application developed by the 
company especially for the sales personnel.

		  Additional measures for Risk mitigation
		  	� Introduction of negative location guidelines in NB 

Workflow:
			�   This has been introduced with an aim to 

curtail adverse selection of lives and also 
adverse claims. Proposals sourced from 
negative location (locations where early 
claim ratio is high) are identified in Workflow 
system itself. Differential underwriting 
guidelines are then applied for such 
proposals for better assessment of the risk.

		  	� Use of surrogate documents for underwriting of 
Term insurance proposals:

			�   Financial underwriting for term plans is an 
important function and have been extended 
to offer pure term cover basis surrogate 
documents for occupations such as 
Businessman / Self-employed categories / 
Housewives and Agriculturists (which was 
not provided earlier) provided they meet 
certain basic criteria’s. SBIL has started 
offering Term life plans to Retired Defense 
personnel also.

		  	� Conducting of required Medical through 
Videography: Video MER

			�   A new process has been launched by the 
company for compliance of mandatory 
medical reports through video MER. In this 
process certified technicians conduct the 
required medical through home visit under 
the supervision of Doctor sitting at central 
location of TPA. The process eliminates 
major risk of impersonation and at the 
same time ensures accuracy in medical 
examination without customer requiring to 
visit the medical center.

		�  Important changes in Underwriting guidelines and 
processes in Credit portfolio (RiNn Raksha):

		  	 Increase in Auto Underwriting limits:
			�   Auto Underwriting limits have been revised 

to ease the processing of cases. The limit has 
been revised to ` 1 crore for SBI Home loan.

		  	 Revision in financial underwriting requirements:
			�   The financial underwriting guidelines have 

been reviewed taking into consideration the 
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verification of financial documents by the 
Bank. The guidelines have been eased for 
various categories of loans offered by SBI.

		  	 Revised Medical grid:
			�   Based on our past experience the Medical 

grids have been revised with provision of 
Tele MER for SBI Master Policy

	 C.	 POLICY SERVICING AND RENEWALS
		�  Renewal is an important function of the company 

and this also helps us to understand the quality 
of sales and also what the customer feels about 
the product and the company. This is also an 
important parameter in assessing the persistency 
of the policies and how long the customer is 
staying with the company and paying their 
premiums regularly.

		�  The company has taken lot of steps to improve 
the Renewal and in return the persistency of 
the policies thereby creating a good value for 
the customer, company and shareholders. 
Major initiatives being given below:

		  	 Revival Mela:
			�   During the period under review, a Revival 

campaign was launched with the motive of 
reviving lapsed policies and rebuilding the 
relationship with our policyholders. A total 
of over 45K polices were revived leading to 
a renewal collection of over ` 1.70 billion. 
Strategic inputs generated through Revival 
Analytics were utilized to identify likelihood 
of revival of any policy. The scope of analytics 
has been broadened this year and lapse 
policies are categorized into four different 
categories i.e. High Likely, Likely, Moderate 
& Unlikely. This has helped the company to 
further improve the persistency.

		  	 Renewal Digiconnect Smart Advisor:
			�   In Smart Advisor application comprehensive 

renewal and persistency related information 
has now been provided to make it a single 
platform for policy renewal follow-up. 
This is now available on Smart Advisor, 
android application available for Sales 
hierarchy, and also introduced Smart Advisor 
Desktop for Operations hierarchy.

			�   One of the most unique features added to 
the Smart Advisor app is - facility to “Click to 
Call/SMS” using which sales and operations 
personnel can contact customer directly 
from application screen by just clicking 
on the icons. User can capture calling 
remarks in Smart Advisor and can also 
access call centre remarks and dispositions. 
Smart Advisor also provides end-to-end 
e-Revival facility including online e-DGH 
submission and online payment facility 
allowing customer to revive policy instantly.

		  	 Personalized payment link: -
			�   Personalized bit.ly link that redirects 

customer directly to payment getaway 
page has been developed for every 
policy, making premium payment process 
simplified for customers. The links are sent 
to the customers before the due period and 
also during the grace period of the policy. 
This functionality was used during Revival 
Campaign period directing customers to pay 
only the outstanding premium dues, where 
there was no need of revival requirements.

		  	 Centralized Surrender Prevention Calling: -
			�   In order to prevent surrender, of the existing 

policies, in a proactive manner, centralized 
Surrender Prevention calling has been 
activated through the outbound call centre. 
The calling is done by a specially trained 
team having detailed knowledge about 
products, processes and the corresponding 
advantages which help them to convince 
customers to continue the policies till the 
end of its term. A total of 1,589 policies 
have been retained in FY 2020 through 
Centralized Surrender Prevention Calling 
activity. This activity is over and above the 
“face-to-face” counselling activity undertaken 
in the branches by Operations employees.

		  	 Customer Self Service Portal (CSSP):
			�   In view of changing dynamics and increasing 

digitization of services across platforms, 
all new customers are being registered 
on our My Policy – Customer Self Service 
Portal, to enable customers to have one 
view of all their policies and also do various 
transactions online. In our endeavour to 
add newer features, we had included new 
services as frequency change, renewal 
premium direct debit Hit Date change, 
Convert Physical policies to Demat policies, 
generation of loan quotation against policies, 
Partial Withdrawal quotes, Alternate mode 
payment status enquiry. CSS portal is now 
integrated with our core system, and lot of 
requests from customers gets processed 
on real-time basis. Keeping customer 
convenience in mind, CSS Registration 
has been simplified using mobile and OTP 
authentication. In the year under review, a 
total of over 1.40 lakh new customers were 
on boarded on the customer self-service 
portal (CSS Portal).

		  	 Easy Access:
			�   Mobile application for customers. 

The Easy Access mobile application has 
been developed for SBI Life for customers 
that allows them to pay renewal premiums, 
check various insurance plans, submission 
of eCOE by annuity subscribers, use the 
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premium calculator, buy online products, 
check out for useful insurance related links. 
In the year under review, over 48K new 
customers were on boarded on the easy 
access application.

		  	� Premium collection through Partners including 
other Banks:

			�   In an endeavour to expand our reach to the 
customer and help them in easily paying of 
their renewal premiums, the Company has 
tied up with “City Union Bank” services for 
renewal premium collection. Now customers 
can now pay their renewal premium 
throughout the Bank branches of City Union 
Bank. Have also applied with NPCI to get 
on boarded as “Biller” on the Bharat Bill Pay 
system. This shall provide much wider reach 
on the online payment platform.

		  	 E-NACH:
			�   Functionality to electronically set auto pay 

instructions for renewal premium payments 
has been made available. This functionality 
will currently enable setting up of electronic 
standing instructions on bank accounts 
online through net banking or Debit Card 
credentials for more than 20 partners as part 
of the new business journey as well as for 
already issued policies.

		  	 E-DGH:
			�   E-DGH (Declaration of Good Health on 

electronic platform) Option for revival of 
policies was enabled through E-KYC Aadhaar 
based authentication process, which 
was subsequently modified to Company 
OTP based process. This has enabled our 
customers to revive the policies online 
eliminating the need for a walk-in.

	 D.	 CLAIMS
		�  Claims Management is the vital part of the 

insurance business. This is actually the “moment 
of truth” for the life insurance customer.

		�  At SBI Life, customer focus at claims stage is 
ensured by providing efficient services, striving 
to exceed the customer expectations by creating 
avenues for increasing self-service facilities 
through various Digital Initiatives.

		�  In the year under review, the claim settlement 
ratio for individual policies stood at 94.52% and 
for Group policies at 98.89% thereby giving an 
Overall Claims Settlement Ratio for the company 
at 97.04%. (Note – 97.04% is inclusive of 0.11% 
of settled claims but could not be paid due to 
open title issues).

		  Customer Centric Process Enhancements:
		  Electronic Certificate of Existence (e-COE):
		  	� For Senior Citizens, to reduce the pain of 

travelling to SBI Life Offices, have launched 

the e-COE facility through company’s mobile 
based application “Easy Access App” during 
the year under review.

		  	� Customers are enabled to record 
a small video and upload their 
photo in this App from their home. 
Customers will get an acknowledgement 
instantly. Excellent response has 
been received for this facility from the 
customers across India.

		  	� This facility is provided for customers of 
both Individual Policies and Group Policies.

		  Various Digital Touch points:
		  1.	� Facility to upload documents through Bit.ly 

link for Maturity Claims, Unclaimed Amounts.

		  2.	� Enabling the customers to submit the 
documents of both Maturity Claims and 
Death Claims on the company Website.

		  3.	� Customers can submit the documents to 
our generic mail-ids as well.

	 E.	 GROUP OPERATIONS
		  	� Digital journey for SBI staff members covered 

under Old Swarnaganga Scheme for exercising 
option for cover post retirement:

			�   Online platform developed in Group 
Customers Portal to facilitate State Bank of 
India (SBI) staff members covered under Old 
Swarnaganga Scheme to submit their option 
at the time of retirement.

			�   With this facility SBI staff need to visit SBI Life 
branch office and can initiate their option viz.

			   (a)	 To opt for risk cover till 65 years of age (or)

			   (b)	� Opt for withdrawing the maturity benefit 
and discontinue the risk cover (or)

			   (c)	� Opt for getting the accumulated fund 
value with accrued interest earned on 
the accumulated fund till 65 years of 
age for maturity.

		  	� Automation of Sampoorn Suraksha Reinsurance 
activity in RENOVA:

			�   Re-insurance activity, that was handled 
manually has been automated in RENOVA 
since December 2019.

		  	� Automation of endorsements of Mid joiner & Mid 
Leaver and Increasing Sum Assured:

			�   Under GTI Sampoorn Suraksha the 
endorsements that were handled manually 
for Mid-Joiners, Mid-Leavers and Increase 
in Sum Assured was automated in order to 
enhance productivity and quality.

		  	 New Enrolments under PMJJBY Scheme –
			�   During the period under review, a total 51.38 

lakhs fresh members were enrolled against 
the 14.38 lakhs members enrolled in the 
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corresponding period of the last financial 
year achieving a growth of 257.30% in new 
enrolments. As on March 31, 2020, there 
were total 106.47 lakhs active members 
under PMJJBY Scheme.

		  	 Settlement of claims under PMJJBY Scheme –
			�   During the year under review, the company 

settled 10,871 claims and thereby achieved 
the claim settlement ratio of 99.97%.

		  	� New Enrolments under Sampoorn Suraksha 
(YONO) –

			�   During the period under review, a total 1.60 
lakhs new members were enrolled thus total 
lives covered under Master Policy reaching 
to 2.02 lakhs as on March 31,2020. In this 
policy group member can avail upto ` 20 
lakhs sum assured risk coverage just in three 
clicks, a most seamless process enabling 
issuance of Certificate of Insurance instantly 
on completion on-boarding process.

	 	� Auto SMS for PMJJBY claim intimations/payments 
and claim requirements:

		�  The company has initiated auto SMS process for 
the PMJJBY claimants that helps the claimants 
to get the information regarding the settlement 
of the claims and pending claim requirements 
on their mobiles.

	 F.	 CLIENT RELATIONSHIP & CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT
		�  The Client Relationship department is pivotal in 

ensuring that customer queries and grievances 
are resolved swiftly to the full satisfaction of the 
customer within defined timelines. The Client 
Relationship includes both the reactive (efforts 
to solve customer issues) and proactive 
(measures taken to ensure long term relationship 
with customers) functions performed by the 
team. Therefore, company’s initiatives in the 
year under review has been to empower its 
employees to improve the query / grievance 
handling mechanisms.

	 	� Upgradation of Customer Relationship Management 
(CRM) Module: -

		�  CRM Next, is an automated workflow that has 
been created for handling customer grievances, 
obtaining sales comments & recommendation 
from the Regional Leadership group, 
initiating investigation wherever necessary, 
and seeking necessary approvals from the 
Competent Authority.

		�  Under the Customer 360-degree view, the 
details of all the policies held by customer 
and his service request history is maintained. 
Additionally, real time information on the plan 
details, service history records of the policy life 
cycle along with the policy status is provided, 
that helps in resolution of customer grievances. 

With the launch of CRM Next, have moved 
towards a paperless complaints handling 
process. The enhanced features of CRM Next 
module (Gold 5.5) has been implemented to bring 
more simplicity in functionality and strengthening 
system controls. This has brought in perfectly 
consistent & coherent workflow with better 
record maintenance and process efficiency. 
It has also helped in providing comprehensive 
resolution and reducing the overall resolution 
time of complaints.

	 	 Parivartan: -
		�  This is a module designed to empower SBI 

(Partner Banks) to log in SBI Life customer 
queries / complaints received at their end for 
better tracking and faster resolution of queries / 
complaints. The web based real-time integration 
of Parivartan module with our CRM Next module 
has also been established. Now, this module has 
provision for registration of customer’s queries 
/ complaints and to display reverse feed details 
such as TAT, status and disposition details of 
queries / complaints along with dashboard 
report to users.

	 	 Contact Center :
		�  The call center handled around over 18 lac calls 

during the financial year, 53% of these calls were 
answered by the call center agents and 47% of 
the calls were responded by IVR. The connectivity 
issues noticed and were addressed by changing 
the service provider and getting in better services. 
This has help in reducing the complaints of Toll 
Free number not getting connected and has also 
brought down the call drop rate to 0.82% which 
was above 7% in the earlier years.

		�  Initiative to integrate the CRM next has empowered 
the call center and has seen improvement in 
providing final resolution to customer queries. 
This has helped in closing 96% of calls at the first 
instant itself without transferring the call to the 
branches for final resolution. The email closure 
responses from the call center have also seen 
an improvement in providing resolution to the 
customer queries that was at 84% compared 
to earlier 51%.

		�  The overall impact of all the above initiatives and 
improvement could be noticed in the Turn Around 
Time (TAT) of complaints and queries received by 
the company. The overall TAT of complaints of 
the company had seen an improvement to 4.09 
days which got deceased by two days (6.22 days) 
compared to the previous year. It is also noticed 
the overall TAT of Queries handled has also 
improved to 0.62 days compared to 1.2 days in 
the previous years

		�  Customer Engagement Department has initiated 
multiple initiatives by bringing in technology 
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for the benefit of the customers. Some of the 
Customer Centric initiatives in the FY 2020 are 
mentioned below:

	 	� Initiatives that improves Services offered by the 
company

		�  The company has introduced SMS services for 
Premium Paid Certificate. The customers can call 
the toll free number and request for Bitly Link to 
be sent via SMS for paying Renewal Premium 
using the mobile phone, customer can also 
request for a Bitly link to download soft copy 
of policy document and also request for Bitly 
link to access TDS certificate. The call centre 
also started promoting WhatsApp registration 
to every caller on the toll free number and 
successfully registered a good number of policy 
holders this year.

13.	 LEVERAGING DATA ANALYTICS:

	� SBI Life has been leveraging Analytics to help mitigate 
and control Risks in various business functions like 
Underwriting, Claims, Persistency etc. The outcomes 
of the various models are helping the respective 
functions to take more informed decisions, and 
helping in creating more efficient business processes.

	 New Business & Underwriting
	 •	 Risk Score Model
		�  We provide our Underwriters with a Risk Score 

for every prospective Customer. This score 
measures the likelihood of receiving an Early 
Claim from the customer. This score is utilized 
by the Underwriters to make prudent decisions. 
A Proposal that gets rated as ‘High Risk’ by the 
Risk Scoring Model, is paid special attention to and 
additional requirements are called for to verify the 
insurability of the Customer. Detailed Tele MER 
along with stringent Underwriting is followed for 
High Risk proposals. Currently the Model flags 
certain percentage of incoming proposals in 
to High Risk Bucket and certain percentage as 
Medium Risk Bucket. The rest are tagged as Low 
Risk. The Risk Score is made available in Real 
Time in the Work Flow Module. We also monitor 
the scores on a regular basis to ensure that 
the Model stays in conformity with the Actual 
Experience. The Risk Score Model was revised in 
November 2019 to align it with our Organization’s 
recent Early Claim experience.

	 •	 Net Promoter Score Analytics at on-boarding Stage –
		�  NPS is currently measured at three Moments of 

Truth viz. On-boarding, Renewal Payment and 
Living Benefits. For improving our on-boarding 
NPS score, the company undertook an NPS 
Analytics Project. It involved deep dives into the 
responses received from customers to help us 
benchmark the complete customer onboarding 
journey and gave a direction towards change and 

improvement. It helped in understanding customer 
experiences across various demographics and 
segments and in identifying pockets of concerns 
along with resolution methodologies, eventually 
improving our processes to ultimately create a 
better customer experience.

		�  The company also developed Dashboards  for 
the sales personnel to help them identify 
areas of improvement and causes of concern. 
The Dashboards provide customized 
recommendations at the Regional / Zonal Agency 
Manager / Divisional Sales Manager level for 
improving the NPS Scores.

	 Policy Servicing
	 •	 Persistency Model -
		�  Persistency Models are in place to help predict 

the likelihood of renewal premium payments. 
Separate models for 13th & non 13th Month 
persistency for each of the Channels are in 
place to cater to the varying payment dynamics. 
Predictions are made at the start of every month 
for policies due in the upcoming 3 months. 
Every policy gets flagged as RED, AMBER or 
GREEN, where RED denotes customers from 
whom we are least likely to get the renewal 
premium and GREEN denotes customers most 
likely to pay the renewals. These models help in 
channelizing our renewal collection efforts.

		�  During the course of implementation, it was noted 
that this common approach was not yielding 
required results for 13th month persistency. 
Hence, a dedicated 13th month persistency model 
was further developed and made live in the year 
under review. Later, a dedicated model for non-13th 
month persistency was also implemented in the 
year under review.

		�  All these developments and efforts have 
helped the company in improving collection 
efficiency and 13th Month Persistency and 61st 
Month persistency. In the year under review, 
overall collection efficiency is 85.2% and it has 
improved by 1.3% over last year. Our 13th Month 
and 61st month persistency also improved to 
86.14% & 59.90% from last year’s 85.07% and 
57.23% respectively.

	 •	 Lapse Revival Model –
		�  We have a Lapse Revival Model in place to 

predict the revival propensity for policies in 
Lapsed status. Given the different behaviour of 
ULIP and non-ULIP portfolios with respect to 
lapsed status, separate models are in place for 
each set of policies. The Models are run on a 
monthly basis and the outcome from the model 
provides the likelihood of revival within the next 
six months from the prediction date. All our 
Revival Campaigns utilize the data generated by 
this Model to improve the hit ratio.
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	 Claims
	 •	 Post Issuance Profile Verification (PIPV) Analytics -
		�  Even with the best of Risk Score Models in place, 

we must acknowledge that it’s not possible to 
detect all Fraudulent Customers at inception stage. 
Hence, suspicious policies must be identified 
immediately post issuance via Post Issuance 
Profile Verification (PIPV) to prevent fraudulent 
claims from arising in the future. The PIPV 
Analytics Model was developed with the aim of 
identifying the right set of policies that must be 
sent / selected for PIPV. Identifying the right set 
for PIPV increases the likelihood of capturing all 
fraudulent customers. By targeting a focus group 
of the total policy base, we were able to capture 
major events that includes Repudiations and PIPV 
Cancelled cases. By utilizing this Model, we hope 
to increase the accuracy of the PIPV investigation 
process and at the same time reduce the PIPV 
investigation costs.

14.	 PROJECTS OPERATIONS

	� Few initiatives taken in the year under review are 
enumerated below:

	 a.	� The vendor dashboard has been integrated with 
our CRM module, and every customer feedback 
is getting registered in the module as a Service 
Request (SR). This has facilitated us to review all 
feedbacks in a systematic manner and provide 
resolutions to the customers

	 b.	� NPS is now made available for all front line sales 
through smart advisor App. It is now at their 
fingertips and they can view their individual NPS. 
They can now directly interact with customer; 
based on feedback received and act upon

	 c.	� The NPS on-boarding survey is getting triggered 
in 10 vernacular languages to help in making a 
better connect with the customers and act upon 
their responses. The survey is available in Tamil, 
Telugu, Kannada, Punjabi, Oriya, Assamese, 
Marathi, Gujarati, Hindi and Bengali.

	 d.	� In On-boarding survey platform, we have 
introduced one pager on products and product 
videos for few products to educate and empower 
our customers about the product purchased in 
an easy manner.

	 	 Customer Education Product Videos:
		�  With a view to providing our customers with an 

in-depth and correct information / knowledge of 
our products, product videos for the following 
four products have been made and launched.

		  a.	 SBI Life Smart Wealth Builder

		  b.	 SBI Life Smart Bachat

		  c.	 SBI Life Smart Swadhan Plus

		  d.	 SBI Life Smart Money Back Gold

		�  An SMS is sent to the customers immediately 
after cashiering of a new proposal, with a bit.ly link 
that redirects to the product video. These videos 
have also been uploaded on SBI Life Official 
YouTube channel.

	 	 Hyper Personalized Communication campaigns:
		�  These campaigns were aimed at establishing 

a customer connect by taking up awareness 
campaigns via SMS/emails/videos etc. This is in 
compliance with IRDAI circular dated April 10, 
2019 where Insurers have been advised to send 
brief messages for the purpose of enhancing 
insurance awareness.

		  Various activities undertaken are given below:

Topic Media

Awareness on importance of 
registration for Auto deduction of 
premium

Email & SMS

Awareness on importance of 
updating contact details 

Email & SMS

Diwali Campaign Email & SMS
Awareness on spurious calls Email & SMS
Link to update email IDs SMS
Awareness on the CSS Portal Email & SMS
Importance of Reviving the Policy
(sent to customers whose policy 
are due for LTR) 

Email & SMS

15.	 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

	� FY20 has been a landmark year for SBI Life. 
We continued our digital journey by implementing 
innovative solutions for business and customer 
support, using cutting edge technology. The improved 
digital tools and intuitive customizations have played 
a significant role in enhancing the experience of 
both our internal and external customers. We have 
progressively improved the capacity and capabilities 
of our technology infrastructure that has consistently 
improved the availability of systems and applications 
for the business. A true test of the quality of support 
systems was the movement of all critical resources 
to “Work From Home” (WFH) during the COVID 19 
pandemic. The teams achieved this in quick time 
with no disruption in day-to-day working. All business 
operations and the financial year-end closure activities 
were completed by the respective stakeholder 
seamlessly, validating the technology capabilities and 
versatility of SBI Life, yet again.

	� Some of the improvements implemented during the 
year are listed below:

	 A.	 Infrastructure
		  	� Data Centre (DC), Disaster Recovery (DR) and 

Wide Area Network (WAN)
			�   We have been proactively managing our 

DC/DR/WAN infrastructure to ensure that 
our Head office, CPC and 900+ branches 
are adequately supported to handle the 
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business volumes and to provide quality 
service to our customers.

			�   During the year under review, the reach of 
MPLS network increased from 836 branches 
to 913 branches thereby consuming 1,687 
MPLS links from 6 telecommunication 
companies, thus providing customer services 
at branches with dual redundant links.

		  	 Email Security
			�   The company has finalized the plans for 

upgrading our existing email infrastructure 
thereby moving all users to a single 
email domain. This will increase the user 
experience and significantly enhance 
the security features including data loss 
prevention (DLP) capabilities. This will move 
into implementation stage in the FY 2020 -21.

		  	 VPN solution
			�   During Covid-19 locked down 1,800 plus 

employees were enabled with VPN to work 
from home (WFH) to continue critical business 
processes at Regions and Branches.

		  	� DDoS (Distributed Denial of Services) Mitigation 
Services

			�   The company obtained volumetric DDoS 
attack mitigation services on all central 
corporate Internet links in Data Centre. 
This will prevent DDoS attacks initiated 
globally across the Internet.

			�   The solution is also configured to prevent 
legit based (low & slow) DDoS attacks.

		  	 Network Access Control (NAC)
			�   The company has implemented NAC 

security feature of industry leading OEM, 
on all desktop systems in Corporate Office, 
CPC & branch offices.

			�   This is being effectively utilised to evaluate 
security policy compliance of desktop 
systems, before permitting access to 
corporate network.

		  	 Security Operation Centre: (SOC)
			�   In the year under review, the company has 

implemented state of art SOC to monitor 
24x7 all critical IT devices, websites, mobile 
applications and other domains, owned or 
used by the company.

			�   SOC monitors all production applications & 
related infrastructure devices for security 
alerts. Technology based on machine 
learning/artificial intelligence, data analytics, 
Threat Intelligence, Anticipation and 
Analytics with Threat Hunting, network 
behavior and user behavior are deployed. 
It has Capability to quickly identify and detect 
cyber threats. Brand protection services for 

Internet facing websites, mobile application 
and social media handles are in operations.

			�   Dark Web are monitored for SBI Life 
contents with Intelligence Feed and action 
based on Incident are taken.

		  	 Adoption of Virtualisation environment
			�   Over 900 Virtual servers created on 37 Host 

Servers resulting in power and space saving 
with optimum use of compute and storage.

			�   Deployed over 800 Thin Clients in 
lieu of Desktop using Virtual Desktop 
Infrastructure (VDI) technology. Helped in 
data loss prevention, quick rollout and ease 
of maintenance.

			�   During Covid-19 lockdown, 779 employees 
were enabled to WFH for Head Office and 
Central Processing Centre (CPC), using 
VDI technology. This helped the company 
in successfully carrying out all year-end 
activities within defined time-lines while 
working from home while fulfilling the 
desired security and data protection levels.

	 B.	 Process Area
		�  Following are the major process improvements 

done during the FY 2020:

		  	 New Policy Management System (PMS):
			�   “Ingenium”, the new Policy Management 

system, has been fully implemented in the 
year under review and currently services 
both Individual and Group products. This has 
resulted in improvement of customer service 
quality and shorter TAT (Turn Around Time) 
for new Product Launches.

			�   The older (Closed products) polices are also 
getting migrated to New System and 76% 
of data migration has been completed. 
This migration is a massive exercise, the 
biggest project in the insurance industry in 
India, and has been carried out in a smooth 
manner without any adverse impact to the 
end-customer. Going by the experience of 
the migration exercise that has taken place 
the company is confident to completed the 
balance migration in the first quarter of FY-21.

		  	� New Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
system: 

			�   “CRM Next” is the core system providing 
360-degree view of the customer, leading to 
better service across all touch-points. It has 
recently been upgraded to the latest version 
and further enhancements are planned in the 
upcoming FY21 which will further enhance 
the quality of customer engagement.
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		  	� Work Flow System: 
			�   The New Business Work Flow System 

caters to the on-boarding and Underwriting 
of new proposals. In Work Flow, all the new 
products are getting processed (except 1 
product which will get implemented shortly). 
This has greatly improved the efficiency of 
New Business and Underwriting Processes.

		  	� New product launches: 
			�   In the year under review, the majority of 

the existing products had to be relaunched 
to comply with the new product guidelines 
from the Regulator. In a short span of time 
(November 2019 to February 2020) we could 
launch 20+ individual and group products, 
covering all systems and touch-points 
(digital & physical), demonstrating the power 
of collaboration across all stakeholders.

		  	� Mobile Solutions: 
			�   Continuing the thrust from the previous 

year to adopt ‘Go Digital’, more than 98% 
of the Individual New Proposals are sourced 
through our Mobile Application - mConnect. 
We strengthened our stack of mobility 
solutions for our sales force, internal users 
and customers. mConnect application is the 
proposal sourcing application that enables 
our sales force to procure business anywhere 
any time. Smart advisor Plus is extensively 
used by our sales intermediaries for 
providing pre and post-sales support to their 
customers. This tools provides a bouquet of 
services to the Sales manager and they can 
get any policy related information on the fly. 
This tool reduced the burden on our branch 
offices by enabling the sales executive 
(Life Mitra, CIF in the bank or Business 
Development Manager or Unit Managers) 
to provide prompt information and services 
to their customers. Smart Advisor Plus is 
like a “mini Office in the pocket” for our sales 
intermediaries.

			�   We also provide a dedicated application 
to our customers known as ‘Easy Access’. 
Premium due alerts, ability to raise queries, 
submission of e-COE (Certificate of 
Existence) for pension products, are some 
of the key features of this application.

			�   In the year under review, with the focus 
continuing on “Go Digital”, many new 
initiatives were expedited and we are at the 
forefront in its adaptation in all areas starting 
from Customer enrichment, Distributor 
efficiency and / or Employee empowerment. 
This journey is here to remain for a 
long time for us.

		  	 Digital bouquet for partner on-boarding:
			�   Your company has developed a ready set of 

digital platform bouquet including mobility 
and API (application program Interface) and has 
been made available for quick integration 
and on-boarding of partners for new 
business and renewal premiums.

			�   Under the year under review, we have 
integrated Real time EFT for Allahabad 
Bank, Indian Bank and RinnRakha apart 
from already running 60 API’s which 
includes SBI YONO.

	 C.	 Business Intelligence and Reporting
		�  SBI Life has various reporting and analytics 

platforms for strategic decision making and 
actionable to a wide range of users, both 
internal and external. These platforms include 
reporting tools like AARAM, Crystal SAP BO, 
Banca Online, Agency Online and Analytics & BI 
platforms like AASAN. This includes users from 
Sales and Marketing, Senior Management, Audit, 
Risk, Business Strategy, Operations as well as 
Corporate Agents and Brokers. Further, mobile 
reporting and dashboard application is made 
available to SBI Controllers and other Bank 
Partners through SAARATHI. This apart, various 
trackers, notifications and operational MIS is 
made available through automated mailer on 
periodic basis to above users.

16.	 INVESTMENTS

	� Equity markets could not deliver any positive returns 
amidst increased volatility and global risk aversion. 
Nifty gave a negative return of 26% for the year. 
Uncertainty in equity markets came with global fears 
after the Covid-19 broke out in late December 2019. 
US entered a recession officially after 11 years of 
growth since the Global Financial Crisis. The virus 
affected Developed Markets initially and then it spread 
to Emerging Markets as well and that is when India 
entered a phase of extreme lockdown. India is 
expected to witness a 5% contraction of Real GDP 
based on estimates of various international agencies. 
INR weakened by 9.2% to 75.54 owing to a weakening 
growth, enlarged fiscal deficits and safe haven buying 
of the US dollar during the spread of Covid-19.

	� Yield on 10-year Government of India Bond fell 
massively as yields moved marginally lower by 122 
basis points to end the year at 6.13%. Markets reacted 
positively with huge monetary support by RBI cutting 
policy rates by 185 bps. The central bank also provided 
monetary support of around 1.3 lac crores through 
OMO purchases. Despite the central governments 
weakened finances bond yields fell due to lower 
growth and inflation trajectory

	� The Assets under Management (AUM) of the 
Company has increased by 13.7% from ` 1410.24 
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billion as on March 31, 2019 to ` 1603.63 billion as at 
March 31, 2020. The AUM was made up of ` 817.98 
billion of traditional funds (including shareholders’ and 
unclaimed funds) and ` 785.65 billion of Unit Linked 
Funds. The Unit linked portfolio majorly comprises of 
Equity funds, Bond funds and NAV guaranteed funds.

17.	 PERSISTENCY

	� Persistency is a critical indicator of business viability 
and brand success. During the FY 2020, the Company 
has witnessed 25% growth in Renewal Premium 
collection at ` 240.42 billion, which contributed to 
59% of Gross Written Premium. The Company has 
continued to focus on renewals and has undertaken 
initiatives to improve persistency of its existing 
policies. The independent Renewal Vertical is focusing 
on collection of renewal premiums and servicing 
policyholders. We shall continue to accord prime 
importance to this area.

18.	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

	� SBI Life, one of the most trusted private Life insurance 
brands is now more than 19 years old. SBI Life family 
has grown from 14,961 employees as on March 31, 
2019 to 16,759 employees as on March 31, 2020 
which depicts a growth of 12%. While the average age 
of employees is 35 years 8 months and the average 
tenure is 4 years 7 months.

	� In terms of Section 136(1) of Companies Act, 2013 
the Report and the Accounts are sent to the Members 
excluding the statement containing particulars of 
employees as required under Section 197(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The statement 
containing aforesaid details may be obtained by the 
Members by writing to the Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company.

19.	 EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

	� The SBI Life Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 
(‘ESOP 2018’) and SBI Life Employees Stock Option 
Scheme 2018 (‘the Scheme’ or ‘ESOS 2018’) has been 
approved by the shareholders of the Company in the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 27, 
2018 based on the recommendation of the Board 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) and 
Board of Directors (‘Board’) in their meetings held on 
August 31, 2018.

	� The maximum number of stock options granted to 
eligible employees in accordance with ESOP 2018 
shall not exceed 30,000,000 shares. During any one 
year, no Employee shall be granted Options equal to 
or exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the 
Company at the time of Grant of Options unless an 
approval from the Shareholders is taken by way of 
special resolution in a General Meeting. Further, the 
maximum number of Options in aggregate granted 

to an employee under this Plan shall not exceed 
1,00,00,000 Options. The Exercise Price shall be 
determined by the Board Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee in concurrence with the Board of Directors 
of the Company on the date the Options are granted 
and provided in the letter of grant.

	� During the year the NRC in its meeting held on July 23, 
2019 has approved the grant of the Employee Stock 
Options (‘Options’) under the provisions of ESOS 2018.

	� No employee was granted options during one year 
amounting to five percent or more of options granted 
during that year. Similarly, no employee was granted 
options during any one year, equal to or exceeding 
one percent of the issued capital of the company at 
the time of grant.

	� During the year FY 2020, the Company has not granted 
any loan to its employees for purchasing shares 
of the Company.

	� The Scheme is in compliance with Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations 2014, as amended 
from time to time (‘SEBI SBEB Regulations’). 
Further, there are no changes in the scheme. 
The below disclosures pursuant to the SEBI SBEB 
Regulations have been placed on website of the 
Company at https://www.sbilife.co.in/en/about-us/ 
investor-relations.

	� The disclosures pursuant to SEBI SBEB Regulations, 
Guidance Note on accounting for employee share 
based payments, disclosure of diluted EPS in 
accordance with ‘Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings 
Per Share’ issued by ICAI or any other relevant 
accounting standard have been disclosed in the Notes 
to Accounts which form part of financial statements in 
the Annual Report.

20.	� PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
THE WORKPLACE

	� Your Company has an Internal Committee to 
investigate and inquire into sexual harassment 
complaints in line with The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Company has in place a 
policy on Anti-Sexual Harassment, which reflects 
the Company’s zero-tolerance towards any form of 
prejudice, gender bias and sexual harassment at 
the workplace. Your Company has set up an Internal 
Committee (‘IC’) to receive and redress complaints of 
sexual harassment. Your Company undertakes ongoing 
trainings to create awareness on this policy. During FY 
2019-20, all employees were mandated to take online 
training on the subject with help of specially designed 
module, ‘Prathishta’ so that they understand the 
anti-sexual harassment policy, the complete framework 
adopted by the Company to report and resolve 
instances of sexual harassment etc., details of which 
have been mentioned in the Business Responsibility 
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Report, which is hosted on the Company’s web-link: 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/en/about-us/investor- 
relations. Further, the Company’s Policy on Prevention 
of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
along with the details of Internal Committee at 
each Region is accessible to all employees on the 
Company’s intranet, eBandhan. During the year 
under review, 5 sexual harassment cases were filed 
excluding three pending from previous year, out of 
which 6 were resolved as on March 31, 2020 and out of 
remaining 2, one was resolved during the FY 2020-21 
and the other is expected to be resolved shortly, within 
timelines. During FY 2019-20, classroom training was 
imparted to all IC members in order to understand 
the Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment and 
framework for reporting and resolving instances of 
sexual harassment.

21.	 RISK MANAGEMENT

	� SBI Life is in the business of covering life, health & 
longevity risks of its policyholders on the consideration 
of a premium. The Company as a part of its business, 
invests the premiums received and provides long term 
returns to the customers on its savings & investment 
products. Risk Management therefore becomes an 
integral part of its business activities. The Company 
recognises and manages its risks in a proactive, 
ongoing and positive manner. Risk philosophy of the 
Company is outlined in the Risk Management Policy. 
The Risk Management policy specifies the process 
for identification, measurement and analysis of the 
Company’s risk exposures; develop risk management 
strategies and its monitoring. The Risk Management 
Policy is supported by various other policies pertaining 
to insurance, market, compliance, outsourcing, 
fraud, information security and business continuity 
management. Above referred policies are reviewed 
by the Risk Management Committee of the Board on 
an annual basis.

	� The Company has formulated risk appetite statements 
at the corporate as well as at the functional level, which 
are reviewed and monitored by the Risk Management 
Committee of the Board and Internal Risk Management 
Committee respectively. The Company also carries 
out an ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment 
Process) activity, which details the assessment of 
material risks, estimation of capital requirement and 
adequacy for maintaining solvency requirements.

	� The Company has aligned its risk management 
practices to ISO 31000 standard on Risk Management. 
This implies that the Company has strong processes 
for risk identification, management and mitigation. 
The Company’s Business Continuity Management 
System (BCMS) is ISO 22301 certified and its 
Information Security Management System (ISMS) is 
ISO 27001 certified.

	� More information on the risk practices adopted by 
the Company is available in the ‘Enterprise Risk 

Management’ section appended to this report and 
‘Management Report’ section of the Annual report.

22.	 INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORK

	 Internal Audit:
	� The Company has in place a robust internal audit 

framework. The Inspection and Audit (I & A) 
Department undertakes risk based audit approach 
and it commensurate with the nature of the business 
and the size of its operations. The internal audit plan 
covers Information System Audit, different process 
audit as well as transaction based audits at the Head 
office, Regional Offices and across various branches 
of the Company.

	� The audits are carried out by the internal audit team 
of the Company and also by the outsourced chartered 
accountant’s firms. The approach of the audit is to 
verify compliance with the regulatory, operational and 
system related controls. Key audit observation and 
recommendations are reported to the Board Audit 
Committee of the Company. Implementation of the 
recommendations is actively monitored.

	 Concurrent Audit:
	� In accordance with Insurance Regulatory and 

Development Authority of India (Investment) 
Regulations, the Company has also engaged 
professional chartered accountants firm to carry out 
concurrent audit of investment operation as per IRDAI 
investment regulations / guidelines and guidance note 
on Internal / Concurrent Audit of Investment functions 
of Insurance Companies, issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Any significant 
findings in the concurrent audit are presented to the 
Audit Committee and reviewed by Board Investment 
Sub Committee and Board Investment Committee.

	 Compliance:
	� The Board Audit Committee of the Company has laid 

down governing principles to oversee the compliance 
framework of the Company. The Committee discusses 
the level of compliance in the Company and any 
associated risks. The Compliance function identifies 
and communicates regulatory requirements to 
relevant functions in a timely manner and monitors 
critical compliance risks based on suitable monitoring 
mechanism. The Compliance function liaisons with the 
regulators and provides clarifications to various functions 
on applicable laws, regulations and circulars issued 
by the regulatory authorities. A compliance certificate 
signed by the Managing Director & CEO is placed at the 
Board Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

	� The Company has also formulated various internal 
policies and procedures relating to working of various 
functions to ensure compliance.

23.	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

	� The Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board of 
Directors, to lay down adequate and effective internal 
financial controls with reference to the Financial 
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Statements and include it in the Board report. 
The Company has aligned its internal financial control 
system with the requirements of the Companies Act 
2013, on lines of globally accepted risk based framework 
as issued by Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
(COSO). The internal control framework is intended 
to increase transparency and accountability in an 
organization’s process of designing and implementing 
a system of internal control. The framework requires 
the Company to identify and analyse risks and manage 
appropriate responses. The key components of the 
internal financial control framework include:

	 Entity level controls:
	� Entity Level Controls (ELCs) operates at an organisation 

level. The Company has defined a set of entity level 
policies and controls. The ELCs set up by the Company 
includes various policies and procedure in place such 
as Anti Money Laundering and Counter-Financing of 
Terrorism policy, Business Continuity Management 
policy, IT and Information Security policy, Risk 
Management Policy, Whistle blower Policy etc.

	 Process level controls:
	� The Company has defined a set of process level 

controls across its business and support functions 
such as premium, reinsurance, claims management, 
agency management fixed assets etc. The control 
type covers key operating controls, financial reporting 
controls & IT controls have been done to ensure 
compliance with COSO framework.

	 Review controls:
	� The Company’s internal financial control framework is 

based on ‘three lines of defence model’. The Company 
has laid down standard operation procedures 
and policies to guide the business operations. 
The Company has a well-defined delegation of power 
with authority limits for approving revenue and capital 
expenditure. Statutory, Concurrent and Internal 
Auditors undertake rigorous testing of the control 
environment of the Company.

	� The Company has a Chief Audit Officer with a 
dedicated internal audit team which is commensurate 
with the size, nature & complexity of operations 
of the Company.

	� The Company also undergoes an independent 
internal/concurrent audit by specialised third party 
professional consultants to review function specific 
regulatory compliances as well as internal controls.

	� The audit committee reviews reports submitted 
by the Management and audit reports submitted 
by the internal auditors and statutory auditors. 
Suggestions for improvements are considered and 
the Audit Committee follows up on corrective actions. 
The Audit Committee also meets the Company’s 
statutory auditors to ascertain their views on the 
adequacy of internal control systems and keeps the 
board of directors informed of its major observations, 
if any periodically.

	 Auditor’s Report
	� There were no qualifications, reservations, adverse, 

remarks or disclaimers on Internal Financial Controls 
made by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2020.

24.	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

	� The Company has Policy on materiality of Related 
Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party 
Transactions to regulate the transactions with its related 
parties. As per the policy, all related party transactions 
require approval of the Board Audit Committee. As per 
Rule 6A of the Companies (Meeting of Boards and 
its Powers) Rules 2014, the Audit Committee may 
grant omnibus approval for related party transaction 
proposed to be entered into by the Company subject 
to terms and conditions mentioned in the said Rule.

	� All the Related Party Transactions entered during the 
financial year were on arm’s length basis and in ordinary 
course of business. All related party transactions are 
placed before the Audit Committee of the Board for 
its approval. During the year, there were no material 
contracts or arrangements or transactions with related 
parties that need to be disclosed as per Section 188(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

	� M/s. S.C. Bapna & Associates, Chartered Accountants, 
reviewed the related party transactions for the year 
ended March 31, 2020 and their certificate is placed at 
the meeting of the Board Audit Committee, along with 
details of such transactions.

	� All Related Party Transactions as required under 
Accounting Standards AS-18 are reported in Note 39 
of Schedule 16(C) – Notes to Accounts of the Financial 
Statements of the Company.

	� The policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions 
and on dealing with Related Party Transactions, has been 
hosted on the website of the Company can be viewed at 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/policy-on-materiality-and-on 
-dealing-with-related-party-transact

25.	 IND AS IMPLEMENTATION

	� The IRDAI (“Authority”) has issued a circular dated 
June 28, 2017, deferring the implementation of Ind AS 
in insurance sector in India for a period of two years 
to be effective from FY 2020-21. The said circular, 
however requires the submission of proforma Ind AS 
financial statements on quarterly basis.

	� The IRDAI (“Authority”) subsequently vide its circular 
dated January 21, 2020 has withdrawn its erstwhile 
circular dated June 28, 2017 on implementation of 
Ind AS from FY 2020-21 and dispensed with the 
requirement of quarterly submission of Proforma 
Ind AS financial statements on account of proposed 
amendments in IFRS 17 by International Accounting 
Standard Board (IASB). Thus, effective date of IND AS 
implementation shall be decided by the IRDAI post 
finalization of IFRS 17 by IASB.
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	� On March 17, 2020 the IASB discussed the last amendment to IFRS 17 to defer the effective date of IFRS 17 
(incorporating the amendments) to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

26.	� BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

	� Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s (KMPs) during the year
Name of the Director / KMP Nature of change With effect from

Mr. P. K. Gupta Ceased as Nominee Director due to superannuation March 31, 2020
Mr. Gregory M Zeluck Ceased as Non-Executive Director due to resignation March 20, 2020
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal Re-appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer March 10, 2020
Mr. Somasekhar Sundaresan Ceased as Independent Director due to resignation November 21, 2019
Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill Re-appointed as Independent Director for second term September 7, 2019
Mr. Nimesh Maniyar Ceased as Company Secretary due to resignation July 23, 2019
Mr. Vinod Koyande Appointed as a Company Secretary by Board July 23, 2019
Mr. Pierre De Portier De Villeneuve Ceased as Nominee Director due to resignation June 27, 2019
Mr. Julien Hautiere- Rey Ceased as Deputy Chief Executive Officer due to resignation May 31, 2019

	 Key Managerial Personnel
	� Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal (Managing Director & CEO), 

Mr. Sangramjit Sarangi (President & Chief Financial 
Officer) and Mr. Vinod Koyande (Company Secretary) 
are designated “Key Managerial Personnel” of 
the Company, under the provisions of Section 
203 of the Companies Act 2013. During the year 
Mr. Nimesh Maniyar (Company Secretary) has 
resigned and Mr. Vinod Koyande has been appointed 
as Company Secretary w.e.f. July 23, 2019.

	� Further, in accordance with Corporate Governance 
Guidelines (“CG Guidelines”) issued by IRDAI the 
Company has fifteen (15) Key Management Persons 
including above mentioned KMPs.

	 Declaration by directors
	� All independent Directors have registered themselves 

in the Independent Director Databank and have 
submitted declarations that they meet the criteria 
of independence as laid down under Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 16 of the Listing 
Regulations. There has been no change in the 
circumstances affecting their status as independent 
directors of the Company.

	� The Company has also received declarations from all 
its Directors as per Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013, confirming they are not disqualified from being 
appointed as Directors of the Company. The said 
declarations were noted by the Board of Directors at 
its Meeting held on May 5, 2020.

	 ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria
	� In accordance with Guidelines for Corporate 

Governance issued by IRDAI, the Directors of 
insurers have to meet the ‘fit and proper’ criteria. 
Accordingly, all the Directors of the Company have 
confirmed compliance with the ‘fit and proper’ 
criteria, prescribed under the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines issued by the IRDAI.

	 Directors & Officers Liability Insurance
	� Regulation 25 (10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosures Requirement) Regulations 2015 requires 
the Companies to take Directors and Officers 
Liability  Insurance (D&O) for all its Independent 
Directors.The Company has taken D&O Insurance for 
all its Board of Directors and Members of the Senior 
Management Team for such quantum and risks as 
determined by the Board.

	 Common Directorships
	� Pursuant to Section 48A of the Insurance Act, 1938, 

the Company has obtained the necessary approval 
from IRDAI for directors having common directorship 
with State Bank of India (being corporate agent 
of the Company).

	 Meetings
	� During the year, six Board Meetings were convened 

and held, the details of which are given in the Report 
on Corporate Governance, which is forming a part 
of this report. The intervening gap between the said 
Board Meetings was within the period prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the 
Board and Board Committee meetings, and the 
attendance of Directors thereat, forms part of the 
Corporate Governance Report, which is annexed to 
this Directors’ Report.

	 Secretarial Standards
	� During the FY 2020, the Company is in compliance 

with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect 
to board and general meetings.

	 Remuneration Policy
	� Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Board has approved the 
remuneration policy as recommended by the Board 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The details of 
the said policy are annexed as Annexure I to this Report.
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27.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	� The Corporate Governance philosophy of the Company 
is to comply with not only the statutory requirements 
but also to voluntarily formulate and adhere to a strong 
set of Corporate Governance practices which includes 
code of business conduct, corporate ethics, values, 
risk management, etc. The Company is committed to 
achieve the highest standard of Corporate Governance. 
The Report on Corporate Governance is annexed and 
forms part of this Annual Report.

28.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

	� The Company constituted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee (CSR) of the Board of 
Directors in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules 
2014, which drives the CSR program of the Company.

	� The CSR Committee of the Board confirms that 
the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, 
is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy 
of the Company.

	� The brief outline of CSR Policy, including overview of the 
program proposed to be undertaken, the composition 
of the CSR Committee, average net profits of the 
Company for the past three financial years, prescribed 
CSR expenditure and details of amount spent on CSR 
activities during the financial year have been disclosed 
in Annexure II to this report, as mandated under the 
said Rules. Further, the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy of the Company as approved by the Board has 
been hosted on the Company’s website

29.	� PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENT

	� In line with the clarification given by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs under the Removal of Difficulty 
Order dated 13 February 2015, the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 relating to 
loans, guarantees and investments do not apply 
to the Company.

30.	� SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES

	� The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint 
Ventures or Associate Company.

31.	 RURAL AND SOCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS

	� As per the regulatory requirements, the Company 
has met its Rural and Social Sector obligations for 
FY  2020. As against the minimum requirement of 
20%, the Company has issued 24.61% policies in the 
rural sector which affirms the Company’s approach 
towards life insurance inclusion. Further, 313,405 
new lives covered (5.83% of total new lives covered 
in preceding year) by the Company are from the 
underprivileged social sector as against the regulatory 

requirement of at least 5% of total lives covered in 
preceding year. Consequently, the Company has met 
the minimum social and rural regulatory norms.

32.	 MANAGEMENT REPORT

	� Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 3 of the 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
(Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations 2002, the 
Management Report is placed separately and forms 
part of the Annual Report.

33.	 STATUTORY AUDITORS

	� In view of the applicability of Section 139 of the 
Companies Act 2013, Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India (C&AG) appoints Statutory Auditors 
of the Company. Accordingly, C&AG appointed 
M/s R. Devendra Kumar & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants and M/s S.C. Bapna & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, as joint statutory auditors of 
the Company for FY 2019-20.

	� Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown and 
other restrictions imposed by the Government and 
local administration, the audit processes were carried 
out based on the remote access to the extent available/ 
feasible and necessary records made available by the 
management through digital medium.

	� Statutory Audit and other Fees paid to Joint Statutory 
Auditors for FY 2020 are given below:

(` in 000’s)

Particulars Amount

Joint Statutory Audit Fees 5,700
Other Certification Fees 1,653

34.	 STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

	� The Statutory Auditors’ Report (including annexure 
thereof) to the Members does not contain any 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer 
hence do not call for any further comments u/s 134 
(3) (f) of the Companies Act 2013. There were no 
reportable frauds identified by the statutory auditors 
during the FY2020.

35.	� COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR 
GENERAL OF INDIA ON THE ACCOUNTS OF THE 
COMPANY

	� The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) 
have conducted a supplementary audit u/s 143 (6) 
(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the accounts of 
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020. 
The C&AG vide their report no. GA/ CA-I /Accounts /SBI 
Life / 2019-20/ 67 dated August 11, 2020 have stated 
that there is nothing significant which would give rise 
to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory 
Auditors’ Report. The Report of C&AG is being placed 
with the report of Statutory Auditors of the Company.

109

Integrated Annual Report 2019-20



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTD.)

36.	 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

	� Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Company has appointed Mehta & Mehta, 
Company Secretaries, Mumbai as the Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company.

	� The Auditor has not made any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark or disclaimer in his report for FY 
2020. The detailed report on Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for FY 2020 is enclosed as Annexure III to 
the Board report.

37.	 COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

	� Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost 
audit as prescribed under the provisions of section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 
for the business activities carried out by the Company 
as the Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the 
Act for the services rendered by the Company.

38.	 ANNUAL RETURN

	� Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the 
Companies Act 2013 (as amended by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2017), read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014 an extract of the Annual Return (in form MGT 9) has 
been annexed as Annexure IV to this Report and the same 
has been hosted on the website of the Company and 
can be viewed at https://www.sbilife.co.in/en/about-us/ 
investor-relations

39.	� MATERIAL EVENTS, CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

	� The Outbreak of COVID-19 virus continue to spread 
across the globe including India, resulting in significant 
impact on global and India’s economic environment 
including volatility in the capital markets. This outbreak 
was declared as global pandemic by World Health 
Organisation (WHO) on March 11, 2020. The Company 
has assessed the overall impact of this pandemic 
on its business and financials, including valuation 
of assets, policy liabilities and solvency for the year 
ended March 31, 2020. Based on the evaluation, the 
company has made additional reserve amounting to 
` 0.60 billion resulting from COVID-19 pandemic over 
and above the policy level liabilities calculated based on 
prescribed IRDAI regulations and the same have been 
provided for as at 31/03/2020 in the actuarial liability. 
The Company will continue to closely monitor any 
future developments relating to COVID-19 which may 
have any impact on its business and financial position.

40.	� SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING 
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF 
THE COMPANY

	� During FY 2020, no significant or material orders were 
passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and Company’s 
operation in future.

41.	 OTHER EVENTS

	� State Bank of India (Promoter) has sold 21,000,000 
equity shares of ` 10 each in aggregate representing 
2.10% of the total issued and paid-up Equity Share 
capital of the Company. SBI has sold stake through 
offer for sale (OFS) on June 12, 2020 and June 15, 
2020 to achieve the minimum public shareholding 
(MPS) norms prescribed by the SEBI. This OFS has 
resulted in dilution of State Bank of India shareholding 
from 57.6% as on March 31, 2020 to 55.5% as on the 
date of this report.

42.	 DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	� In terms of Section 134(3) (c) read with 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines, your Directors confirm that;

	 a)	� in the preparation of the annual accounts for 
the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;

	 b)	� they have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2020 
and of the profit of the Company for the year 
ended on that date;

	 c)	� they have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

	 d)	� they have prepared the accounts for the current 
financial year ended March 31, 2020 on a 
going concern basis;

	 e)	� they have laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively; and

	 f)	� they have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.
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43.	� PARTICULARS OF CONVERSATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

	 A.	 Conservation of Energy
		�  In view of the nature of business activity of the Company, the information relating to the conservation of 

energy, as required under Section 134 (3) and Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not applicable 
to the Company.

	 B.	 Technology Absorption
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Remarks

Research & Development (R&D)
1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the 

Company
	� In the year under review, some of the areas where 

we have experimented in our Digilab includes Optical 
Character Recognition (OCR), communication through 
digital medium, voice processing and IoT

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D In the year under review, we have been able to roll out a 
number of initiatives based on the R&D done in Digilab. 
A few noted ones are provided below:-

	� Web OCR: Web OCR is in-house developed tool to 
identify the document type. It also performs Aadhaar 
masking.

	� Offline KYC: Customers are able to perform Offline KYC 
with the help of our mobile app during the proposal 
journey. The solution makes it convenient for the 
customers and sales agent in faster closure of cases

	� Chatbot Integration: Our Chatbot “RIA” has been 
integrated in a number of ways, with the website, on 
the intranet pages, on Whatsapp to answer customer 
queries, assist in premium payment through chat etc, 
to name a few.

	� e-Certificate of Existence (eCOE): A digital process has 
been introduced where the CoE can be submitted 
using mobile app, eliminating the need for a visit to our 
branch.

	 �Voice based solutions: These include, integration with 
Amazon Alexa, voice based search on our website, 
conversational analytics

3. Future plan of action 	� We will continue to work with the new technologies 
available and find ways to improve the experience for 
our stakeholders in technology area

4. Expenditure on R & D:

(a)	 Capital

(b)	 Recurring

(c)	 Total

(d)	� Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of 
total turnover

In-house development.

Technology absorption, adaption and innovation
1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology 

absorption, adaptation and innovation
	 �Insta PIVC: PIVC application acts as one solution that is 

now included in customer proposal form filling journey 
in all channels, where sales intermediary can get the 
customer verification done digitally by capturing photo / 
video. A transcript is generated for further processing.

	 �Travel Kit for Renewal: The Application is a Mobile based 
Traveller kit (integrated with Smart Advisor) to access 
Renewal data.

	� Let’s Huddle: Application for managed conference call 
through mobile now launched pan-India for various 
hierarchies.
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Sr. 
No.

Particulars Remarks

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, 
e.g., product improvement, cost reduction, 
product development, import substitution, etc.

Key benefits are faster turnaround for new business 
completion, improvement in the renewal premium 
collection and faster communication among the teams in 
corporate office and Regional offices

3. In case of imported technology (imported during 
the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of 
the financial year), following information may be 
furnished:

(a)	 Technology imported

(b)	 Year of import

(c)	 Has technology been fully absorbed?

(d)	� If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not 
taken place, reasons there for and future plans 
of action.

Nil

	 C.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

		  Details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo required under above Rules are as under:
(` in billion)

Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019

Foreign Exchange Earnings 0.09 0.28
Foreign Exchange Outgo 0.21 0.06

44.	 INVESTOR RELATIONS

	� The Company has always valued its customer 
relationships and it is the Company’s belief that 
all stakeholders should have access to complete 
information regarding its position to enable them to 
accurately assess its future potential. The Company 
disseminates information on its operations and 
initiatives on a regular basis. The Company’s website 
(www.sbilife.co.in) serves as a key awareness facility for 
all its stakeholders, allowing them to access information 
at their convenience. It provides comprehensive 
information on the Company’s strategy, financial 
performance, operational performance and the latest 
press releases.

	� The Company publishes financials results on a 
quarterly basis. The financial results of the Company 
are prepared and posted on the website of the 
Company for the current as well as previous years. 
Further, the quarterly results and earnings update 
are also posted on the website of the Company. 
Every quarter, the Managing Director & CEO alongwith 
the senior management officials of the Company 
participate on a call with the analysts / shareholders. 
The Company’s investor relations personnel respond 
to specific queries and play a proactive role in 
disseminating information to both analysts and 
investors. All information which could have a material 
bearing on the Company’s share price is released 
through as per regulatory requirements.

45.	 BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

	� Business Responsibility Report as stipulated under 
Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations form part of 

the Annual Report and has been hosted on the website 
of the Company https://www.sbilife.co.in/en/about-us/ 
investor-relations/annual-reports

46.	 INTEGRATED REPORTING

	� The Securities Exchange Board of India had 
recommended top 500 listed entities to voluntarily 
prepare their Annual Report adopting the principles of 
Integrated Reporting prescribed by the International 
Integrated Reporting Council.

	� In view of the above, the Company has voluntarily 
adopted the principles of integrated reporting for 
preparing this Annual Report.

47.	 IRDAI LICENSE

	� The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
of India (IRDAI) have renewed the annual license of 
the Company to continue the Life Insurance Business 
for the FY 2021.

48.	 OTHER INFORMATION

	 A.	 Economic Capital:
		�  The annual assessment of economic capital of 

SBI Life was carried out as on March 31, 2020. 
As part of this exercise, we have quantified the 
risk capital requirements relating to various risks 
such as Insurance Risks (Mortality risk, Lapse 
Risk, Expense Risk, etc.) and Non- Insurance 
Risks (Market Risk, Operational Risk, Default 
Risk etc.). The cost of guarantee for the products 
wherever applicable, is also calculated. A large 
part of the Company’s portfolio is now monitored 
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using a stochastic ALM model. The aggregate 
economic capital requirement for the risks of the 
Company including the guarantees is well within 
the statutory capital requirement. The current 
Solvency coverage ratio (Assets / [Liability + 
Economic Capital Requirement + Risk Margins, 
etc.]) on an economic basis is 115%.

	 B.	  Solvency Margin:
		�  The Directors are pleased to report that the assets 

of the Company are higher than the liabilities of the 
Company and the assets are more than sufficient 
to meet the minimum solvency margin level of 
1.50 times, as specified in section 64 VA of the 
Insurance Act, 1938 read with the IRDAI (Assets, 
Liabilities, and Solvency Margin of Life Insurance 
Business) Regulations, 2016. The Company has 
a strong solvency ratio of 1.95 as on March 31, 
2020 (Previous year ended March 31, 2019: 2.13) 
as against the Regulatory requirement of 1.50.

	 C.	 IRDAI Directions
		�  IRDAI has issued directions under Section 34 (1) 

of the Insurance Act, 1938 to distribute 
the administrative charges paid to master 
policyholders amounting to ` 843,174 thousand 
(previous year ended March 31, 2019: ` 843,174 
thousands) vide order no. IRDA/Life/ORD/ 
Misc/228/10/2012 dated October 5, 2012. 
The Company had filed an appeal against the said 
order with the Ministry of Finance, Government 
of India, which remanded the case back to 
IRDAI on November 4, 2015. Thereafter, IRDAI 
issued further directions dated January 11, 2017 
reiterating the directions issued on October 5, 
2012. The Company has filed an appeal against 
the said directions/ orders with the Securities 
Appellate Tribunal, which is pending final 
determination. The said amount is disclosed 
as contingent liability as at March 31, 2020 in 
Schedule 16C (1) of the notes to accounts.

		�  IRDAI has issued directions under section 34 
(1) of the Insurance Act, 1938 to refund the 
excess commission paid to corporate agents 
to the members or the beneficiaries amounting 
to `2,752,948 thousand (previous year ended 

March 31, 2019: `2,752,948 thousands) vide 
order no. IRDA/Life/ORD/Misc/083/03/2014 dated 
March 11, 2014. This has been set aside by order 
dated January 29, 2020 made by the Securities 
Appellate Tribunal (SAT). The SAT has remitted 
the matter to IRDAI to recalculate the interest 
earned on advance premium collected. The IRDAI 
recalculation, if any, has not been received 
by the Company.

	 D.	 Appointed Actuary’s Certificate
		�  The certificate of the Appointed Actuary on 

valuation and actuarial assumptions is enclosed 
in the financial statements.

	 E.	� Certificate from Compliance Officer (under the IRDAI 
Corporate Governance Guidelines)

		�  A Compliance Certificate, for complying with 
IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines, issued 
by the Company Secretary, designated as the 
Compliance officer under the IRDAI Corporate 
Governance Guidelines, is enclosed and forms 
part of the Corporate Governance Report.
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INTRODUCTION

Good corporate governance has always been at the core 
of the Company’s philosophy. Our corporate governance 
is a reflection of our value system encompassing our 
culture, policies, and relationship with our stakeholders. 
The Company is committed to the best practices in the area 
of Corporate Governance, in letter and in spirit.

The imperative need to have good governance surfaced 
to demarcate the division between its ownership and its 
management. Concept of corporate governance rests on 
the fulcrum of transparency behind all decisions taken, 
accountability for the said decisions and safeguarding the 
interests of stakeholders.

Company continues to lay great emphasis on the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance which are an integral 
part of all Company activities to ensure efficient conduct of 
the affairs of the Company, without compromising its core 
values. Effective corporate governance practices constitute 
the strong foundation on which successful commercial 
enterprises are built to last. 

Through the Governance mechanism in the Company, 
the Board along with its Committees undertakes its 
fiduciary responsibilities to all its stakeholders by ensuring 
transparency, accountability, fairness and independence in 
its decision making.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE:

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is 
laid on a foundation of Integrity, Excellence and Ethical 
values, which have been in practice since its inception. 
Strong leadership and effective corporate governance 
practices have been the Company’s inherited values from 
the SBI culture and ethos. The Board is committed to 
meet expectation of all the stakeholders and strive hard 
to fulfill them. SBI Life, in this pursuit, places emphasis in 
the philosophy of Corporate Governance by embedding 
values like transparency, accountability, integrity and fair 
disclosures in the Company Structure. This is ensured by 
taking ethical business decisions and conducting business 
with a firm commitment to values.

The Company believes in adopting and adhering to the best 
standards of corporate governance. Certain tenets of our 
Corporate Governance Philosophy are:

	� Appropriate composition, size of the Board 
and commitment to adequately discharge its 
responsibilities and duties;

	� Transparency and independence in the 
functions of the Board;

	� Maximum disclosure of information to the Board 
and its Committees for focused and meaningful 
discussions in the meetings;

	� Operating in a sound system of internal control 
and risk management with a thrust on integrity and 
accountability;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

	� Independent verification and assured integrity of 
financial reporting;

	� Timely and adequate disclosure of all material 
information to all stakeholders;

	� Compliance of applicable laws, rules, 
regulations & guidelines;

	� Fair and equitable treatment of all its stakeholders 
including employees, vendors, policyholders 
and shareholders.

The Company complies with the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines issued by the IRDAI. Further, the Company 
also complies with the Corporate Governance provisions 
prescribed under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) 
and as amended thereto. 

(I)	 Board of Directors (‘Board’)
	� The composition of the Board of Directors of 

the Company is governed by the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations issued by 
SEBI and Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2016 
issued by IRDAI. 

	� The Directors of the Company are from diverse 
backgrounds and enjoy a wide range of experience 
and expertise in various fields. The Company has 
established systems and procedures to ensure that 
its Board is well informed and well equipped to 
discharge its overall responsibilities and provide the 
Management with the strategic direction catering to 
exigency of long term shareholders value.

	� The Board of Directors comprises of Executive 
director, Non-Executive Non-independent directors as 
well as Independent Directors. There is an optimum 
combination of Executive, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors. Except the Managing Director 
and CEO, all other directors including Chairman of 
the Board are Non-Executive Directors. There is 
one Woman Independent Director on the Board of 
Company. The Directors possess experience in 
diverse fields including Banking, Finance, Insurance, 
Human Resource, Information Technology, Marketing 
and Actuarial. The skill and knowledge of the Directors 
have proved to be of immense value to the Company. 
There is no inter-se relationship between the Directors.

	� Video or tele-conferencing facilities are also used to 
facilitate Directors travelling or residing abroad or at 
other locations to participate in the meetings.

	� During the year, the Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions 
with the Company. They play a critical role in balancing 
the functioning of the Board by providing Independent 
judgments on various issues raised in the Board 
meetings like formulation of business strategies, 
monitoring of performances etc.

	� The Company has issued formal letters of appointment 
to Independent Directors in the manner as provided 
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in the Companies Act, 2013. All the Independent 
Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria 
of independence as laid down under Corporate 
Governance Guidelines issued by IRDAI and Listing 
Regulations issued by SEBI.

	� The Company has well-defined Policy for determining 
criteria for appointment of Directors and Senior 
Management personnel.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2020, the Board comprised of eight (8) 
Directors i.e. five (5) Independent Directors, three (3) 
Directors nominated by State Bank of India (“SBI”) including 
Managing Director & CEO. 

As per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, the 
number of Committees (Audit Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee) of public limited companies in 
which a director is a member or chairman is within the 
limits prescribed under the said regulation. 

The Board functions either as a full Board or through 
various Committees constituted to oversee specific 
areas. The Board has constituted nine Committees, 
namely, Board Audit Committee, Board Risk Management 
Committee, Board Investment Committee, Board 
Policyholders’ Protection Committee, Board Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, Board Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee, Board Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Board with Profits Committee and Board 
Information Technology & Information Security Committee.

The quorum of the Board is three members or one-third 
members, whichever is higher 

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Rajnish Kumar, is a 
Non-Executive Director.

The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director (DIN)
Number of other Directorships in Number of other 

Committee 
Membership#

Directorship in other listed entity (Category of Directorship)Indian Public Limited 
Companies*

Other  
Companies@ 

Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director, Nominated by SBI
1 Mr. Rajnish Kumar 

(05328267)
3 NIL NIL 1.	 State Bank of India (Chairman)

2.	� SBI Cards and Payment Services 
Limited (Non-Executive - Nominee 
Director-Chairperson)

2 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 
(06737041)

6 3 6 1.	 State Bank of India (Managing Director) 

2.	� SBI Cards and Payment Services 
Limited (Non-Executive, Nominee 
Director)

3 Mr. P K Gupta $  
(02895343)

2 NIL 2 1.	 State Bank of India (Managing Director)

Non-Executive, Independent Director
4 Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 

(00031213) 
8 NIL 8 1.	� SBI Cards and Payment Services 

Limited (Non-Executive, Independent 
Director)

2.	� Navneet Education Limited (Non-
Executive Director)

3.	� Thomas Cook (India) Limited (Non-
Executive, Independent Director)

4.	� PNB Housing Finance Limited (Non-
Executive, Independent Director)

5.	� IIFL Finance Limited (Non-Executive, 
Independent Director)

6.	�� IIFL Wealth Management Limited 
(Chairman and Non-Executive, 
Independent Director)

5 Mr. Ravi Rambabu 
(01845094) 

NIL NIL NIL -
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director (DIN)
Number of other Directorships in Number of other 

Committee 
Membership#

Directorship in other listed entity (Category of Directorship)Indian Public Limited 
Companies*

Other  
Companies@ 

6 Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 
(01571764)

5 3 6 1. �Jaiprakash Power Ventures Limited 
(Non‑Executive, Independent Director)

2. �Jaiprakash Associates Limited 
(Non‑Executive, Independent Director)

3. �Arihant Superstructures Limited 
(Non‑Executive, Independent Director)

7 Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill 
(05310881)

NIL NIL NIL -

8 Mr. Deepak Amin (01289453) NIL 2 NIL -
Executive, Non-Independent Director, Nominated by SBI
9 Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal^ 

(08075972) 
NIL NIL NIL -

$ Mr. P K Gupta resigned as nominee director from the Company w.e.f  March 31,2020 on account of superannuation from SBI.
* Comprises of public limited companies incorporated in India. 
@ �Comprises private limited companies incorporated in India and foreign companies but excludes Section 8 companies and not for profit 

foreign companies. 
# Comprises only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Indian public limited companies.
^ �Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was inducted as Managing 

Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

BRIEF PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Qualification
Field of Specialization/ skills/ expertise/ competencies fundamental for the effective 
functioning of the Company

1 Mr. Rajnish Kumar M.Sc. (Physics) and CAIIB More than 40 years of experience in Banking Industry 
and Financial Services. Knowledge and skills of strong 
management and leadership experience, including in 
areas of business development, strategic planning, 
banking, investments and finance.

2 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara M.Com, MBA and Associate from 
Indian Institute of Bankers

More than 35 years of experience in all facets of 
commercial banking such as retail credit, international 
banking operations, branch management etc.

Knowledge and skills in accounting and finance, business 
judgment, general management practices and processes, 
crisis response and management, industry knowledge, 
macro-economic perspectives, human resources, labour 
laws, international markets, sales and marketing, and risk 
management.

3 Mr. P. K. Gupta B.Com, A.C.S., CAIIB (Both parts) More than 38 years of experience in Banking Industry 
across retail and digital banking, compliance and risk, 
merchant banking, and international banking.

4 Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey B.Com, FCA Practicing Chartered Accountant having experience of 
35 years in the fields of auditing, taxation, corporate and 
personal advisory services, business and management 
consulting services, due diligence, valuations, inspections, 
investigation.

Knowledge and skills in accounting and finance, 
experience in developing and implementing good 
corporate governance practices, maintaining board and 
management accountability, managing stakeholders’ 
interests and Company’s responsibilities towards 
customers, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies and 
the communities in which it operates.

5 Mr. Ravi Rambabu B.Com, FCA Practicing Chartered Accountant having experience of 
more than 43 years in handling income tax cases, audit 
of various corporate and non-corporate organizations and 
corporate advisory in the areas of finance and accounting.

Knowledge and skills in governance, risk management, 
accounting and finance.
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Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Qualification
Field of Specialization/ skills/ expertise/ competencies fundamental for the effective 
functioning of the Company

6 Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj M.A. (Economics)
Diploma in Personnel Management 
& Industrial Relations

Vast experience in the field of Insurance Served as 
Managing Director of LIC and retired as Chairman of LIC.

Knowledge and skills in the field of Insurance and 
governance.

7 Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill Bachelor in Economics (Science) 
and Masters in Personnel 
Management and Industrial 
Relations

Experience and expertise in the field of Human Resources 
and Personnel Management

8 Mr. Deepak Amin Bachelors in Computer Science 
and Engineering and post graduate 
degree in Computer Science

Experience in the field of Information Technology and Risk 
Management

9 Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal Bachelor's Degree in Arts, Master’s 
Degree in Business Administration 
and CAIIB

More than 34 years in the field of banking.
Knowledge and skills in Strategy, Corporate Planning, 
Banking and Insurance.

BOARD MEETINGS

Notice, Agenda and Minutes
The meetings of the Board of Directors are usually held 
in Mumbai where the registered office of the Company is 
situated. The Board meets at least once in every quarter, 
a minimum of four (4) meetings are held in a financial 
year to review financial results and other regular agendas. 
The Board also meets as and when necessary to address 
specific issues concerning the businesses of the Company. 

The Board Meetings are governed by a structured Agenda. 
The Agenda along with detailed explanatory notes and 
supporting material are circulated in advance before 
each meeting to all the Directors for facilitating effective 
discussion and decision making. The proceedings of each 
meeting of the Board and its Committees are conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made thereunder.

The Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued there 
under, allows conducting of meetings through audio-visual 
means or video-conferencing. Accordingly, the Directors 
are given an option to participate at the meetings through 
video conferencing mode.

In case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s 
approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as 
permitted by the Companies Act, 2013, which is confirmed 
in the next Board Meeting. 

The Company Secretary is responsible for collation, 
review, preparation and distribution of the Agenda papers 
submitted to the Board and preparation of minutes. 
The Company Secretary attends all the meetings of the 
Board and its Committees. The Company Secretary acts 
as a mediator between the Board of Directors and other 
stakeholders to ensure proper flow of information for the 
smooth functioning of the business operations.

With a view to leverage on technology and as a Go Green 
initiative, the notice and agenda papers of Board and Board 
Committee meetings including presentations are circulated 
to the members and invitees in soft copy.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING FY 2019-20 

During the year under review, six (6) Board Meetings 
were held on the following dates as against the minimum 
requirement of four (4) meetings and the time gap 
between two successive Board meetings did not exceed 
more than 120 days.

	 April 25, 2019

	 July 23, 2019

	 October 15, 2019

	 December 24, 2019

	 January 22, 2020

	 March 04, 2020
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The attendance of Directors at the Company’s Board Meetings held during the FY 2019-20 and at the last General Meetings 
are as follows: 

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Directors
Board Meetings held during the tenure 

of the Director
Board Meetings attended during the 

tenure
Whether attended the last AGM held 

on August 23, 2019 (Yes/No)

1 Mr. Rajnish Kumar 6 3 Yes
2 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 6 6 Yes
3 Mr. P K Gupta$ 6 5 No
4 Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 6 5 Yes
5 Mr. Ravi Rambabu 6 5 Yes
6 Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 6 6 Yes
7 Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill 6 3 Yes
8 Mr. Deepak Amin 6 5 No
9 Mr. Somasekhar Sundaresan* 3 1 No
10 Mr. Gregory Micheal Zeluck** 4 0 NA
11 Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 6 6 Yes

$ Mr. P K Gupta resigned as Nominee Director of the Company w.e.f. March 31,2020 on account of superannuation from SBI.
*Mr. Somasekhar Sundaresan resigned as an Independent Director of the company w.e.f November 21, 2019.
** Mr. Gregory Micheal Zeluck resigned as Nominee Director of the company w.e.f. March 18, 2020. 
# �Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was inducted as Managing Director 

& CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

(II)	 Committees of the Board of Directors
	� The Committees constituted by the Board play a very 

important role in the governance structure of the 
Company and they deal in specific areas or activities 
that need closure or review. The Committees have 
been set up under the formal approval of the Board 
to carry out pre-defined roles and responsibilities. 
The terms of reference of these Committees are in 
line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2013, Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by 
IRDAI and Listing Regulations. The minutes of all the 
Committee meetings are placed before the Board of 
Directors. The Chairman of each Committee briefs the 
Board on the important deliberations and decisions of 
the respective Committees. 

	� The Board has Nine (9) Committees, where the 
members of the Committees take informed 
decisions in the best interest of the Company. 
Following Committees monitor the activities falling 
within their terms of reference:

	 A.	 Board Audit Committee

	 B.	 Board Investment Committee

	 C.	 Board Risk Management Committee

	 D.	 Board Policyholder Protection Committee

	 E.	 Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 F.	 Board Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

	 G.	 Board With Profits Committee

	 H.	 Board Stakeholders Relationship Committee

	 I.	� Board Information Technology and Information 
Security Committee

	 A.	 Board Audit Committee
		�  The Board Audit Committee assists the board 

of directors to fulfill its corporate governance 
and overseeing responsibilities in relation to 
an entity’s financial reporting, internal control 
system, risk management system & internal and 
external audit functions. Its role is to provide 
advice and recommendations to the Board within 
the scope of its terms of reference.

		�  The Committee acts as a link between the 
Management, Auditors and Board of Directors. 
As per Corporate Governance Guidelines, the 
association of the Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer in the Board Audit Committee 
is limited to eliciting any specific information 
concerning audit findings. The Chief Financial 
Officer, Chief Audit Officer, Compliance Officer 
and Appointed Actuary are the permanent 
invitees to the meetings.

		�  The Committee monitors the Company’s financial 
reporting process and appropriate disclosure of 
financial information to ensure that the financial 
statements are accurate and credible. The role of 
the Committee includes oversight of the financial 
reporting process, the audit process, the 
adequacy of internal controls, transactions with 
related parties and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations.

		�  The Committee reviews with the Management 
all the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial 
statements prior to recommending the same 
to the Board for approval. The Committee 
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also reviews any additional work entrusted 
to the auditors.

		�  The Audit Committee in co-ordination with 
Internal and Statutory Auditors on regular intervals 
reviews the adequacy of Internal Control Systems 
within the Company. 

		  Composition
		�  The composition of the Board Audit Committee 

is governed by the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and Corporate 
Governance Guidelines, 2016 issued by IRDAI. 

		�  The Company has a qualified Independent Audit 
Committee consisting of five (5) Independent 
Directors and one (1) Nominee Director. All the 
members of the Committee are financially literate 
and have necessary accounting & financial 
management expertise. Mr. Ravi Rambabu, 
Chairman of the Committee is a professional 
Chartered Accountant with strong financial 
analysis background. The quorum of the 
Committee is three members or one-third 
members, whichever is higher.

		�  Number of Board Audit Committee Meetings held 
during FY 2019-20

		�  During the year under review, five (5) Board 
Audit Committee Meetings were held on the 
following dates and the time gap between any 
two meetings was not more than 120 days. 

		  	 April 23 & 25, 2019

		  	 July 23, 2019

		  	 October 15, 2019

		  	 December 24, 2019

		  	 January 22, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition of Committee and 

attendance at the Company’s Board Audit 
Committee Meetings held during the FY 2019-20 
are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings 
held during 

the tenure of 
the Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Ravi Rambabu - Chairman 5 5

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 5 5
Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 5 5

Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill 5 2
Mr. Deepak Amin 5 5
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 5 5

		�  During the FY 2019-20, there were no instances 
of any non-acceptance of recommendation(s) of 
the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors.

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The scope and function of the Board Audit 

Committee is in accordance with Section 177 
of the Companies Act 2013, Regulation 18(3) 
of the Listing Regulations and Clause 7.1 of the 
Corporate Governance Guidelines and its terms 
of reference include, inter alia, the following:

		  I.	 Accounts and Audit:
			   1.	� Oversee the financial statements, 

financial reporting process, statement 
of cash flow and disclosure of its 
financial information, both on an 
annual and quarterly basis, to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, 
sufficient and credible;

			   2.	� Recommend to the board of directors 
the appointment, re-appointment, terms 
of appointment and, if required, the 
replacement; remuneration, reviewing 
(with management) performance, and 
oversight of the work of the auditors 
(internal/statutory/concurrent) and 
to review and monitor the auditor’s 
independence and performance, 
and effectiveness of audit process in 
accordance with applicable law;

			   3.	� Overseeing procedures and processes 
established to address issues relating 
to maintenance of books of account, 
administration procedure, transactions 
and other matters which would have a 
bearing on the financial position of the 
insurer, whether raised by the auditors 
or by any other person;

			   4.	� Evaluation of internal financial controls 
and risk management systems;

			   5.	� Discuss with the statutory auditors 
before the audit commences, about the 
nature and scope of audit, as well as, 
have post-audit discussions to address 
areas of concern;

			   6.	� Approval of payment to statutory 
auditors and internal auditors or any of 
its associated persons or companies, 
for any other services rendered by them;

			   7.	� Review with the management, the 
annual financial statements and 
auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, 
with particular reference to:

				    a)	� matters required to be included 
in the director’s responsibility 
statement to be included in the 
board’s report in terms of clause 
(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
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				    b)	� Changes, if any, in accounting 
policies and practices and 
reasons for the same;

				    c)	� Major accounting entries involving 
estimates based on the exercise 
of judgment by management;

				    d)	� Significant adjustments made in 
the financial statements arising 
out of audit findings;

				    e)	� Compliance with listing and 
other legal requirements relating 
to financial statements to the 
extent applicable;

				    f)	� Approval or any subsequent 
modification and disclosure of 
any related party transactions 
of the Company;

				    g)	� Modified opinion(s) in the 
draft audit report.

			   8.	� Review with the management, the 
quarterly, half-yearly and annual 
financial statements before submission 
to the board for approval;

			   9.	� To the extent applicable review with 
the management, the statement of 
uses/end use/application of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.) 
and related matter, the statement 
of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice and the 
report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 
making appropriate recommendations 
to the Board to take up steps 
in this matter;

			   10.	� Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and 
investments, if any;

			   11.	� Valuation of undertakings or assets of 
our Company, wherever it is necessary;

			   12.	� Carrying out any other function, if any, as 
is mentioned in the terms of reference 
of the Audit Committee and any other 
terms of reference as may be decided 
by the Board and/or specified/provided 
under the Companies Act, 2013 or the 
Listing Regulations, or by the Corporate 
Governance Guidelines or under any 
applicable law.

		  II.	 Internal audit:
			   1.	� Review the adequacy of internal audit 

function, if any, including the structure 
of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official 
heading the department, reporting 
structure, coverage and frequency of 
internal audit;

			   2.	� Oversee the efficient functioning of 
the internal audit department and 
review its reports. The Committee 
will additionally monitor the progress 
made in rectification of irregularities 
and changes in processes wherever 
deficiencies have come to notice;

			   3.	� Establishing procedures and processes 
to address all concerns relating to 
adequacy of checks and control 
mechanisms set in place;

			   4.	� Discussion with internal auditors of any 
significant findings and follow up there 
on; Review the findings of any internal 
investigations by the internal auditors 
into matters where there is suspected 
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature 
and reporting the matter to the Board;

			   5.	� Review with the management, 
performance of internal auditors, 
and the adequacy of the internal 
control systems;

			   6.	� Approving payments to statutory 
auditors for any other services rendered 
by the statutory auditors;

			   7.	� Review the functioning of the 
whistle blower/vigil mechanism for 
directors and employees.

		  III.	 Compliance and ethics:
			   1.	� Discuss the level of compliance in 

the Company and any associated 
risks and to monitor and report to the 
Board on any significant compliance 
breaches and act as a compliance 
committee to ascertain and monitor 
compliance level of the Company and 
any associated risks;

			   2.	� Act as a compliance committee to 
ascertain and monitor compliance level 
of the Company and any associated 
risks in order to report to the board 
of directors on any significant 
compliance breaches;

			   3.	� Approve compliance programmes, 
reviewing their effectiveness on a 
regular basis and signing off on any 
material compliance issues or matters;

			   4.	� Approval of appointment of Chief 
Financial Officer or any other person 
heading the finance function or 
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discharging that function after 
assessing the qualifications, experience 
and background, etc. of the candidate.

			�   In addition to the above, the powers of 
the Audit Committee, inter alia, include 
investigating any activity within its terms 
of reference and to seek information from 
any employee. The reviewing powers of 
the Audit Committee, inter alia, include 
review of management’s discussion and 
analysis of financial condition and results 
of operations and statement of significant 
related party transaction as defined by 
the Audit Committee and submitted by 
the management.

	 B.	 Board Investment Committee
		�  The objective of the Committee is to review 

various aspects of the investment activity to 
ensure that investments of shareholder and 
policyholder funds are made consistent with 
the product features, investment guidelines 
and policies (regulatory and internal) and keeps 
in view protection, safety and liquidity of such 
funds. The Committee periodically reviews the 
Investment policy based on the investment 
performance and evaluation of the dynamic 
market conditions. The Board Investment 
Committee has been constituted pursuant to 
the IRDAI (Investment) Regulations and IRDAI 
Corporate Governance Guidelines. 

		  Composition
		�  The Company’s Board Investment Committee 

consists of three (3) Independent Directors, one 
(1) Nominee Director, one (1) Managing Director 
& CEO, President & Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Investments Officer, President – Actuarial & Risk 
Management and Appointed Actuary. As per 
IRDAI regulations Board Investment Committee 
shall comprise of Appointed Actuary, Chief 
Investment Officer, Chief Financial Officer and 
Chief Risk Officer as members.

		�  The members of the Committee are fully 
conversant with the various responsibilities 
casted on them by IRDAI (Investment) Regulations 
and any amendments thereto. Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj, Independent Director, is the Chairman 
of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts 
as the Secretary to the Committee.

		�  The quorum of the Committee is three members 
or one-third members, whichever is higher.

		�  Number of Board Investment Committee Meetings 
held during FY 2019-20

		�  During the year under review, four (4) Board 
Investment Committee Meetings were held on 
the following dates and the time gap between any 
two meetings was not more than four months. 

		  	 April 23, 2019 

		  	 July 22, 2019 

		  	 October 14, 2019

		  	 January 21, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The composition and attendance of the Board 

Investment Committee held during the FY 
2019-20 are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj - 
Chairman

4 4

Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 4 2
Mr. Ravi Rambabu 4 4
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 4 0
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 4 4
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Pujari 4 3

Mr. Gopikrishna Shenoy 4 4
Mr. Sangramjit Sarangi 4 4
Mr. Subhendu Kumar Bal 4 4

		�  # Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the Board Investment 

Committee of our Company, inter alia, 
include the following:

		  1.	� Responsible for the recommendation of 
the Investment Policy and operational 
framework for the investment operations 
of the Company. The Investment Policy 
and operational framework should, inter 
alia, focus on a prudential asset liability 
management supported by robust internal 
control systems; and encompass aspects 
concerning liquidity for smooth operations, 
compliance with prudential regulatory norms 
on investments, risk management/mitigation 
strategies to ensure commensurate yield 
on investments in line with policyholders’ 
reasonable expectations and above all 
protection of policyholders’ funds;

		  2.	� Put in place an effective reporting 
system to ensure compliance with the 
Investment Policy set out by it apart from 
Internal/Concurrent Audit mechanisms for 
a sustained and on-going monitoring of 
Investment Operations;

		  3.	� To submit a report to the Board on the 
performance of investments at least on a 
quarterly basis and provide an analysis of its 
investment portfolio (including with regard 
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to the portfolio’s safety and soundness) and 
on the future outlook;

		  4.	� The committee should independently 
review its investment decisions and ensure 
that support by the internal due diligence 
process is an input in making appropriate 
investment decisions; and

		  5.	� Carrying out any other function, if any, as 
is mentioned in the terms of reference of 
the Investment Committee and any other 
terms of reference as may be decided by 
the Board and/or specified/provided under 
the Companies Act, 2013 or the Listing 
Regulations, or by the Corporate Governance 
Guidelines issued by the IRDAI, or under any 
applicable law.

		�  Additionally, the Investment committee is, inter 
alia, responsible for implementing the investment 
policy approved by the Board.

	 C.	 Board Risk Management Committee
		�  The Company recognizes that risk is an integral 

element of the business and acceptance of risk 
is essential for the generation of shareholder 
value. The Board Risk Management Committee 
is constituted pursuant to IRDAI Corporate 
Governance Guidelines and Listing Regulations. 

		�  The Company has in place a mechanism to 
inform the Board about the risk assessment 
and minimization procedures and periodical 
review to ensure that management controls risk 
through means of a properly defined framework. 
The Committee reviews the Risk Management 
policy of the Company, including Asset Liability 
Management (ALM), to monitor all risks across 
the various lines of business of the Company 
and establish appropriate systems to mitigate 
such risks. The Committee also ensures that 
the Company invests in a manner that would 
enable the Company to meet its obligations and 
at the same time deliver optimum return to the 
policyholders. 

		  Composition
		�  The Company’s Board Risk Management 

Committee consists of four (4) Independent 
Directors, one (1) Nominee Director and one (1) 
Managing Director & CEO. Mr. Ravi Rambabu, 
Independent Director, is the Chairman of the 
Committee. The quorum of the Committee 
is three members or one-third members, 
whichever is higher.

		�  Number of Board Risk Management Committee 
Meetings held during FY 2019-20

		�  During the year under review, four (4) Board Risk 
Management Committee Meetings were held on 
the following dates and the time gap between any 
two meetings was not more than four months:

		  	 April 23, 2019 

		  	 July 22, 2019 

		  	 October 14, 2019

		  	 January 21, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition and attendance 

at the Company’s Board Risk Management 
Committee Meetings held during the FY 2019-20 
are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings 
held during 

the tenure of 
the Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Ravi Rambabu - Chairman 4 4

Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 4 4
Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 4 4

Mr. Deepak Amin 4 4
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 4 1
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 4 4

		�  #Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

		  Terms of Reference
		  I.	 Risk management:
			   1.	� Assisting the Board in effective 

operation of the risk management 
system by performing specialised 
analysis and quality reviews;

			   2.	� Maintaining a group wide and 
aggregated view of the risk profile 
of the Company in addition to the 
individual risk profiles;

			   3.	� Reporting to the Board details of the 
risk exposures and the actions taken 
to manage the exposures, set the risk 
tolerance limits and assess the cost and 
benefits associated with risk exposure 
and review, monitor and challenge 
where necessary, risks undertaken 
by the Company;

			   4.	� Advising the Board with regard to risk 
management decisions in relation to 
strategic and operational matters such 
as corporate strategy, acquisitions and 
related matters;

			   5.	� Review the Company’s risk-reward 
performance to align with overall 
policy objectives;

			   6.	� Discuss and consider best practices 
in risk management in the market and 
advise the respective functions;

			   7.	� Maintain an aggregated view on the 
risk profile of the Company for all 
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categories of risk including insurance 
risk, market risk, credit risk, liquidity 
risk, operational risk, compliance risk, 
legal risk, reputation risk, etc.;

			   8.	� Review the solvency position of the 
Company on a regular basis;

			   9.	� Monitor and review regular updates on 
business continuity;

			   10.	� Formulation of a fraud monitoring 
policy and framework for 
approval by the Board;

			   11.	� Monitor implementation of anti-fraud 
policy for effective deterrence, 
prevention, detection and 
mitigation of frauds;

			   12.	� Review compliance with the guidelines 
on Insurance Fraud Monitoring 
Framework dated January 21, 2013, 
issued by the IRDAI; and

			   13.	� Carrying out any other function, if 
any, as is mentioned in the terms of 
reference of the Risk Management 
Committee and any other terms of 
reference as may be decided by the 
Board and/or specified/provided under 
the Companies Act, 2013 or the Listing 
Regulations, or by the Corporate 
Governance Guidelines issued by the 
IRDAI, or under any applicable law.

		  II.	 Asset Liability Management:
			   1.	� Formulating and implementing optimal 

ALM strategies, both at the product and 
enterprise level and meeting risk versus 
reward objectives and ensuring they 
remain within acceptable monitored 
tolerances for liquidity, solvency and 
the risk profile of the entity;

			   2.	� Reviewing the Company’s overall 
risk appetite and laying down the 
risk tolerance limits; including annual 
review of strategic asset allocation;

			   3.	� Monitoring risk exposures at periodic 
intervals and revising strategies as 
appropriate including those for ALM;

			   4.	� Placing information pertaining to ALM 
before the Board at periodic intervals;

			   5.	� Setting the risk/reward objectives 
i.e. the risk appetite of the Company 
informed by assessment of policyholder 
expectations and other relevant factors;

			   6.	� Quantifying the level of risk exposure 
(market, credit and liquidity) and 

assessing the expected rewards and 
costs associated with the risk exposure;

			   7.	� Ensuring that management and 
valuation of all assets and liabilities 
comply with the standards, prevailing 
legislation and internal and external 
reporting requirements;

			   8.	� Reviewing key methodologies and 
assumptions including actuarial 
assumptions, used to value assets 
and liabilities;

			   9.	� Managing capital requirements at the 
company level using the regulatory 
solvency requirements;

			   10.	� Reviewing, approving and monitoring 
capital plans and related decisions over 
capital transactions; and

			   11.	� Carrying out any other function, if 
any, as is mentioned in the terms of 
reference of the Risk Management 
Committee and any other terms of 
reference as may be decided by the 
Board and/or specified/provided under 
the Companies Act, 2013 or the Listing 
Regulations, or by the Corporate 
Governance Guidelines issued by the 
IRDAI, or under any applicable law.

	 D.	 Board Policyholder Protection Committee
		�  The Board Policyholder Protection Committee 

is established to assist the Board to protect the 
interests of the policyholders and improve their 
experiences in dealing with the Company at all 
stages and levels. The Committee monitors 
adoption of sound and healthy market practices 
in terms of sales, marketing, advertisements, 
promotion, publicity, redressal of customer 
grievances, consumer awareness and education.

		�  The Board Policyholder Protection Committee 
has been constituted pursuant to Corporate 
Governance Guidelines issued by IRDAI. 
The Committee is responsible to put in place 
proper procedures and effective mechanism 
to ensure that policyholders have access for 
redressal mechanisms. The Committee also 
establishes policies and procedures for the 
creation of a dedicated unit to deal with customer 
complaints and resolve disputes expeditiously. 
The Committee is responsible for ensuring 
compliance with the statutory requirements as 
laid down in the regulatory framework pertaining 
to policyholder’s protection.

		  Composition
		�  The Company’s Board Policyholder Protection 

Committee consists of four (4) Independent 
Directors, one (1) Nominee Director and one 
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(1) Managing Director & CEO. Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj, Independent Director is the Chairman 
of the Committee. The quorum of the Committee 
is three members or one-third members, 
whichever is higher.

		�  Number of Board Policyholder Protection Committee 
Meetings held during FY 2019-20

		�  During the year under review, four (4) Board 
Policyholder Protection Committee Meetings 
were held on the following dates and the time 
gap between any two meetings was not more 
than four months:

		  	 April 23, 2019 

		  	 July 22, 2019 

		  	 October 14, 2019

		  	 January 21, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition and attendance at 

the Company’s Board Policyholder Protection 
Committee Meetings held during the FY 2019-20 
are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 
- Chairman

4 4

Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 4 3
Mr. Ravi Rambabu 4 4

Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill 4 0
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 4 0
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 4 4

		  �# Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the Policyholders’ 

Committee of our Company include the following:

		  1.	� Putting in place proper procedures and 
effective mechanism to address complaints 
and grievances of policyholders including 
mis-selling by intermediaries;

		  2.	� Ensure compliance with the statutory 
requirements as laid down in the 
regulatory framework pertaining to 
policyholders’ protection;

		  3.	 Review the mechanism at periodic intervals;

		  4.	� Ensure adequacy of disclosure of 
“material information” to the policyholders. 
These disclosures shall, for the present, 
comply with the requirements prescribed 
by the IRDAI both at the point of sale and at 
periodic intervals;

		  5.	� Review the status of complaints of the 
policyholders and take steps to reduce these 
complaints at periodic intervals;

		  6.	� Provide the details of grievances at periodic 
intervals in such formats as may be 
prescribed by the IRDAI;

		  7.	� Provide details of insurance ombudsmen to 
the policyholders;

		  8.	� Shape the customer service philosophy 
and policies of the organisation based on 
the overall environment in the financial 
services industry;

		  9.	� Oversee the functions of the customer 
service council;

		  10.	� Review measures for enhancing the quality 
of customer service;

		  11.	� Provide guidance to improve in the overall 
satisfaction level of customers;

		  12.	� Adopt standard operating procedures to treat 
the customer fairly including time-frames for 
policy and claims servicing parameters and 
monitoring implementation thereof;

		  13.	� Put in place a framework for review of awards 
given by Insurance Ombudsman/Consumer 
Forums. Analyse the root cause of customer 
complaints, identify market conduct issues 
and advise the management appropriately 
about rectifying systemic issues, if any;

		  14.	� Review all the awards given by Insurance 
Ombudsman/Consumer Forums remaining 
unimplemented for more than three months 
with reasons therefore and report the same 
to the Board for initiating remedial action, 
where necessary;

		  15.	� Review of Claims Report, including status 
of Outstanding Claims with ageing of 
outstanding claims;

		  16.	� Reviewing Repudiated claims with 
analysis of reasons;

		  17.	� Status of settlement of other customer 
benefit payouts like Surrenders, Loan, and 
Partial withdrawal requests etc.; and

		  18.	� Review of unclaimed amounts of 
Policyholders, as required under the Circulars 
and guidelines issued by the IRDAI. 

		�  Additionally, the Policyholder’s Committee¸ inter 
alia, recommends the formulation of policies and 
establishing systems for customer education 
and to ensure that policyholders have access 
to redressal mechanism. It is also responsible 
for putting in place a dedicated unit to address 
complaints and grievances of policyholders. 
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	 E.	 Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee
		�  The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee is required to scrutinize the 
declarations of intending applicants before the 
appointment/reappointment/election of directors 
by the shareholders at the General Meetings. 
The Committee is also required to scrutinize the 
applications and details submitted by the aspirants 
for appointment as the Key Management Persons 
and assists in selection of Board Members from 
diversified field of specialization.

		�  The Composition of the Board Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee is governed 
by the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, 
Listing Regulations and Corporate Governance 
Guidelines, 2016 issued by IRDAI.

		�  The Committee consists of four (4) Independent 
Directors and one (1) Nominee Director. Mr. Ravi 
Rambabu is the Chairman of the Committee. 
The quorum of the Committee is three members 
or one-third members, whichever is higher.

		�  Number of Board Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meetings held during FY 2019-20

		�  During the FY 2019-20 three (3) Board Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee Meetings were 
held on the following dates:

		  	 April 23, 2019

		  	 July 22, 2019

		  	 March 04, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition and attendance at the 

Company’s Board Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meetings held during the FY 2019-20 
are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Ravi Rambabu - 
Chairman

3 2

Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 3 3

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 3 3
Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill 3 0
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 3 3

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, inter alia, include:

		  1.	� To formulate the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes 
and independence of a director and 
recommend to the board a policy, relating 
to the remuneration for the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees;

		  2.	� To consider and approve employee stock 
option schemes and to administer and 
supervise the same;

		  3.	 To devise a policy on diversity of the Board;

		  4.	� To identify persons who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be appointed 
in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down, recommend to the 
Board their appointment and removal, and 
formulate criteria for evaluation of every 
director’s performance;

		  5.	� To scrutinize the declarations of 
intending applicants before the 
appointment/re-appointment/election 
of directors by the shareholders at the 
annual general meeting; and to scrutinize 
the applications and details submitted by 
the aspirants for appointment as the key 
managerial personnel;

		  6.	� To consider whether to extend or continue 
the term of appointment of the independent 
director on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of independent 
directors; and;

		  7.	� Carrying out any other function, if any, as 
is mentioned in the terms of reference of 
the Board Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and any other terms of reference 
as may be decided by the Board and/or 
specified/provided under the Companies Act, 
2013 or the Listing Regulations, or by the 
Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by 
the IRDAI, or under any applicable law.

		�  Additionally, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee is empowered to frame suitable 
policies and systems to ensure that there 
is no violation by an employee of, inter alia, 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 and The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair 
Trade Practices relating to the Securities Market) 
Regulations, 2003 as amended.

	 F.	 Board Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
		�  Corporate Social Responsibility forms an integral 

part of the Company’s corporate principles 
and business philosophy. As a Company with a 
strong sense of values and commitment, SBI Life 
believes that profitability must go hand in hand 
with a sense of responsibility towards employees, 
stakeholders and the society. The purpose of 
the Committee is to formulate and recommend 
to the Board the CSR policy of the Company. 
It also assists in putting the annual CSR plan, and 
monitor the CSR activities and recommending 
it to the Board.
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		�  The Committee has been formed in line with 
provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
Rules, 2014 and as amended from time to time. 
The Committee consists of two (2) Independent 
Directors, one (1) Nominee Director, one (1) 
Managing Director & CEO, President – Actuarial 
& Risk Management and Chief Risk Officer, 
President & Chief Financial Officer and EVP & 
Chief of HR & Management Services. Mr. Raj 
Narain Bhardwaj, Independent Director, is the 
Chairman of the Committee. The quorum of 
the Committee is three members or one-third 
members, whichever is higher.

		�  A detailed report on CSR activities is enclosed as 
Annexure - II of the Directors’ report.

		�  Number of Board Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee Meetings held during FY 2019-20

		�  During the year under review, four (4) Board 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
Meetings were held on the following dates:

		  	 April 23, 2019 

		  	 July 22, 2019 

		  	 October 14, 2019

		  	 January 21, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition and attendance at the 

Company’s Board Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee meetings held during the FY 2019-20 
are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj - 
Chairman

4 4

Mr. Ravi Rambabu 4 4

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 4 0

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Pujari 4 3

Mr. Sangramjit Sarangi 4 4
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 4 4
Ms. Manjula 
Kalyanasundaram*

4 4

		�  # Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020

		�  *Ms. Manjula Kalyanasundaram ceased to be the member 
of the Committee w.e.f. May 19, 2020 and Ms. Seema 
Trikannad inducted as a member of the Committee 
w.e.f. May 20, 2020 

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee are set out below:

		  1.	� To formulate and recommend to the Board, a 
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which 
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken 
by the Company;

		  2.	� To recommend the amount of expenditure 
to be incurred on the Corporate Social 
Responsibility activities; and

		  3.	� To monitor the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy of the Company 
from time to time.

	 G.	 Board With Profits Committee
		�  The Board With Profits Committee is constituted 

pursuant to IRDAI (Non-linked Insurance 
Products) Regulations, 2019. The Committee 
has been constituted to deliberate on issues like 
investment income earned on the fund, working 
of asset share etc. The report of the Committee is 
required to be appended to the Actuarial Report 
and Abstract. The Committee consists of one (1) 
Independent Director, one (1) Nominee Director, 
one (1) Managing Director & CEO, President – 
Actuarial & Risk Management and Chief Risk 
Officer, Appointed Actuary and Independent 
Actuary. As per IRDAI regulations With Profit 
Committee shall comprise of Chief Financial 
Officer, Independent Actuary and Appointed 
Actuary. Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj, Independent 
Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. 

		�  The quorum of the Committee is three members 
or one-third members, whichever is higher. 
During the year, one (1) Board With Profits 
Committee Meeting was held on April 23, 2019. 

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of attendance at the Company’s Board 

with Profits Committee meetings held during the 
FY 2019-20 are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj - 
Chairman

1 1

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 1 0

Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal* 1 1

Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Pujari 1 1

Mr. Subhendu Kumar Bal 1 1

Ms. Hemamalini 
Ramakrishnan#

1 1

Mr. Saisrinivas Dhulipala$ - -
Mr. Sangramjit Sarangi$ - -

		�  #Ms. Hemamalini Ramakrishnan ceased to be the member 
of the committee w.e.f. August 12, 2019.

		�  *Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020
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		�  $Mr. Saisrinivas Dhulipala, Independent Actuary and Mr. 
Sangramjit Sarangi, Chief Financial Officer were introduced 
as member of the Board With Profit Committee pursuant to 
IRDAI (Non-Linked Insurance Products) Regulations, 2019. 

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the With Profits 

Committee include the following:

		  1.	� Maintaining the asset shares, at policy 
level, and ensuring that only the portion of 
expenses representing this business shall 
be allocated and interest rate credits to 
these asset shares represent the underlying 
assets of these funds;

		  2.	� Determining the asset share for each 
product in accordance with the guidance 
or practice standards, etc. issued by the 
Institute of Actuaries of India; and

		  3.	� Determining and providing approval for the 
detailed working of the asset share, the 
expense allowed for, the investment income 
earned on the fund of policyholders, etc. 
which were represented in the asset share.

	 H.	 Board Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
		�  The Board Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

is responsible for the redressal of shareholder 
grievances. The scope and function of the 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in 
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

		�  The committee consists of one (1) Independent 
Director, one (1) Nominee Director and one 
(1) Managing Director & CEO. Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj, Independent Director is the Chairman 
of the Committee. The quorum of the Committee 
is two members or one-third members, 
whichever is higher.

		�  During the year, four (4) Board Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 
the following dates:

		  	 April 25, 2019 

		  	 July 23, 2019 

		  	 October 15, 2019

		  	 January 22, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition and attendance at 

the Company’s Board Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee meetings held during the FY 2019-20 
are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj - 
Chairman

4 4

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 4 4

Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 4 4

		�  # Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

		�  Mr. Vinod Koyande, Company Secretary acts 
as the Compliance Officer of the Company 
with effect from July 23, 2019 in accordance 
with the requirements of Listing Regulations 
and Mr. Nimesh Maniyar resigned as 
Compliance Officer of the Company with effect 
from July 23, 2019.

		�  During the FY 2019-20, 149 investor complaints 
were received and resolved. No Complaints were 
pending for resolution as at March 31, 2020.

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee of our Company 
include the following:

		  1.	� Consider and review redressal and 
resolutions of the grievances of the security 
holders of the Company, including those of 
shareholders, debenture holders and other 
security holders;

		  2.	� Approval and rejection of transfer and 
transmission of shares or securities, 
including preference shares, bonds, 
debentures and securities;

		  3.	� Approval and rejection of requests for split 
and consolidation of share certificates;

		  4.	� Approval and rejection of issue of duplicate 
share certificates, issued from time to time;

		  5.	� Redemption of securities and the listing of 
securities on stock exchanges;

		  6.	 Allotment of shares and securities; and

		  7.	� Any other activities as decided by the 
Board or required under Companies 
Act/SEBI Listing Regulations and any other 
applicable laws.
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	 I.	� Board Information Technology & Information Security 
Committee

		�  The Board Information Technology & Information 
Security Committee (IT & IS) has been constituted 
on January 01, 2019 to provide strategic 
direction for the Company’s information 
technology and network related infrastructure, 
security and services. 

		�  The Company’s Board Information Technology 
& Information Security Committee consists of 
three (3) Independent Directors, one (1) Nominee 
Director and one (1) Managing Director & CEO. 
Mr. Deepak Amin, Independent Director, is the 
Chairman of the Committee.

		�  The quorum of the Committee is three members 
or one-third members, whichever is higher.

		�  During the year, two (2) Board Information 
Technology & Information Security Committee 
Meetings were held on the following dates:

		  	 July 22, 2019 

		  	 January 21, 2020

		  Attendance of Members
		�  The details of composition and attendance at 

the Company’s Board Information Technology & 
Information Security Committee meetings held 
during the FY 2019-20 are as follows:

Name of the Committee Member

Meetings held 
during the 

tenure of the 
Member

Number of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Deepak Amin- 
Chairman

2 2

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara 2 0

Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 2 2

Mr. Ravi Rambabu 2 2

Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal# 2 2

		�  #Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO 
w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was 
inducted as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

		  Terms of Reference
		�  The terms of reference of the Board Information 

Technology & Information Security Committee (IT 
& IS) of our Company include the following:

		  1.	� Provide strategic direction for the Company’s 
information technology and network related 
infrastructure, security and services. 

		  2.	� Recommending IT and IT Security policy 
documents to the Board of the Directors, 
ensuring that the management has put an 
effective strategic planning process in place; 

		  3.	� Promoting and supporting the development 
of best practices in the Company’s 
knowledge creation and dissemination 

imperatives through the provision of the 
best possible infrastructure and services. 

		  4.	� Ensuring that the IT Organisational 
structure complements the business 
model and its direction and reviewing IT 
performance measurement and contribution 
of IT to businesses (i.e. delivering the 
promised value); 

		  5.	� To ensure that the Company is adequately 
prepared to mitigate Information and 
cyber security related risks and develop an 
in-built governance mechanism for effective 
implementation of Information and cyber 
security frame work; 

		  6.	� Carrying out any other function, if any, 
as may be decided by the Board and/or 
specified/provided under the Companies Act, 
2013 or the listing regulations, or by the 
Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by 
the IRDAI, or under any applicable law. 

	 (III)	� Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
		�  Independent Directors are familiarised with 

their roles, rights and responsibilities in the 
Company as well as with the nature of industry 
and business model of the Company through 
induction programmes through presentations on 
economy and industry overview, key regulatory 
developments, strategy and performance which 
are made to the Directors from time to time. 
The policy on familiarisation programmes for 
independent directors and the details of the 
familiarisation programmes have been hosted on 
the website of the Company and can be accessed 
on the link https://www.sbilife.co.in/familiarization- 
programme-for-independent-directors 

	 (IV)	 Meeting of Independent Directors
		�  The meeting of the Independent Directors 

as envisaged under Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 was conducted on 
April 8, 2020. All Independent Directors attended 
the meeting through Video Conference. 
Mr. Raj  Narain  Bhardwaj was elected as the 
Chairman of the meeting.

		�  At the meeting, the Independent Directors 
reviewed the performance of the non-independent 
Directors (including the Chairman) and the 
Committees of the Board and the Board 
as a whole as per the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

	 (V)	� Annual Performance Evaluation of Board, Committees 
and Directors

		�  In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rules made thereunder, and the 
Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by IRDAI, 
the Board of Directors on the recommendation 
of the Board Nomination and Remuneration 
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Committee, have evaluated the effectiveness 
of the Board. Accordingly, the performance 
evaluation of the Board, each Director (including 
Independent Director) and Committees were 
carried out for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2020. 

		�  The evaluations of the Individual Performance 
of Directors (including Independent Directors), 
the Board, the Committees and the Chairman 
of the Board were undertaken through 
circulation of four questionnaires each for the 
Individual Performance of Directors, for the 
Board, Committee and Chairman of the Board. 
The performance of the Board was assessed 
on selected parameters related to roles, 
responsibilities and obligations towards the Board 
etc. The evaluation criterions for the Individual 
Performance of Directors were based on their 
participation, contribution, offering guidance etc. 
The evaluation criteria for the Committees related 
to its composition, adequate independence of 
the Committee etc. The evaluation criteria for the 
Chairman of the Board besides the general criteria 
adopted for assessment of all Directors, focused 
incrementally on leadership abilities, timely 
resolution of grievances of Board Members etc. 

	 (VI)	 Sitting Fees to Independent Directors
		�  The details of sitting fees paid to the Independent 

Directors, during the FY 2019-20, for attending 
Board and other Committee meetings are as under:

Name of Director Amount (`)

Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj 1,600,000
Mr. Ravi Rambabu 1,385,000
Mr. Nilesh S. Vikamsey 1,145,000
Ms. Joji Sekhon Gill 325,000
Mr. Deepak Amin 835,000
Mr. Somasekhar Sundaresan# 75,000
Total 5,365,000

		  Note – The amount mentioned above includes TDS
		�  #Mr. Somasekhar Sundaresan ceased as an Independent 

Director of the Company w.e.f. November 21, 2019.

		�  No remuneration or commission, other 
than the Sitting Fees for attending Board 
and/or its Committee meetings, is paid to 
Non-Executive Directors. 

	 (VII)	 Equity Shares held by Non-Executive Directors
		�  The details of equity shares held by the 

Non- Executive Directors as on March 31, 
2020 are as under:

Name of the Director No. of shares held

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara  
(DIN 06737041)

2*

		  *Equity shares held on behalf of and as nominee of SBI

	 (VIII)	�Disclosures of Remuneration pursuant to IRDAI 
Guidelines

		�  IRDAI guidelines on Remuneration of 
Non-Executive Directors and Managing 
Director/Chief Executive Officer/ Whole Time 
Directors of Insurers (IRDAI Guidelines) issued vide 
reference no. IRDA/F&A/GDL/LSTD/155/08/2016 
dated August 5, 2016 requires the Company to 
make following disclosures on remuneration on 
an annual basis in their Annual Report:

	 A.	 Qualitative Disclosures
	 1.	 Board Nomination & Remuneration Committee
		�  The Board Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

(“the Committee”) oversees the appointment 
and remuneration aspects of Key Managerial 
Personnel including Managing Director and 
Chief Executive Officer. The functions of the 
Committee include recommending appointments 
of Directors to the Board, identifying persons who 
are qualified and carrying requisite specialization 
to become Directors of the Company and who 
may be appointed as key managerial personnel 
in accordance with the criteria laid down, 
recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal, and formulate a criteria for evaluation of 
every director’s performance and recommend to 
the board a policy relating to the remuneration 
(including variable pay or performance linked 
bonus) of the key managerial personnel and other 
employees based on the financial and strategic 
plan approved by the Board. The Committee also 
evaluates the performance of Managing Director 
& Chief Executive Officer’s and Non- Executive 
Director’s once in a year. 

	 2.	 Objectives and key features of Remuneration Policy
		�  The purpose of the remuneration policy is to 

put in place a framework for remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees, keeping in view various regulatory 
and other requirements. This policy is guided by 
the set of principles and objectives as particularly 
envisaged under Section 178 of the Companies 
Act 2013, which include principles pertaining to 
determining the qualifications, positive attributes, 
integrity and independence of Director etc.

		�  The basic objectives of the Remuneration Policy 
are given below:

		  	� To be compatible with the organization’s 
Vision and Mission. 

		  	 To be externally & internally equitable. 

		  	� To ensure relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks. 

		  	� To provide to Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management reward linked 
directly to their effort, performance, 
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dedication and achievement relating to the 
Company’s operations. 

		  	� To retain, motivate and promote talent 
and to ensure long term sustainability of 
talented managerial persons and create 
competitive advantage. 

		  	� While making appointment of employees 
for particular positions their relevant 
qualification, experience and expertise shall 
be taken into account.

		�  The Remuneration Policy was reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting 
held on May 29, 2020. 

	 3.	� Remuneration of Managing Directors and Other Senior 
Management Personnel 

		�  As per Article of Association of the Company, 
the Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company is appointed by State 
Bank of India and the appointment is subject to 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
of India (IRDAI) approval. The remuneration of 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 
is governed by SBI Officers Service Rules and 
is being reimbursed by the Company to State 
Bank of India. 

		�  The appointment of other Key Management 
Personnel & Senior Management staff at SBI Life 

and their removal from services of the Company 
are governed by the HR policies of the Company 
and approved by the Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer / Board wherever applicable.

		�  Remuneration aims to motivate personnel to 
deliver Company’s key strategies, create a strong 
performance-oriented environment and reward 
achievement of meaningful targets over the short 
and long term. 

		�  The Company has an annual increment and 
variable pay policy which is based on merit pay 
philosophy. The performance linked incentive is 
based on both individual as well as Company’s 
performance. Various performance parameters 
for the Company (based on the financial and 
strategic plan approved by the Board) are 
reviewed by the Committee and approved by the 
Board at the beginning of every year. 

		�  Based on the predefined parameters the actual 
performance of the company is reviewed by 
the Committee to award a performance rating. 
The company performance rating is approved 
by the Board based on the recommendations 
of the Committee at the end of every financial 
year. The framework of annual increment and 
performance linked Variable Pay for all SBI Life 
employees is also reviewed by the Committee 
and approved by the Board every year.

	 B.	 Quantitative Disclosures
		�  The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the details of quantitative disclosure for remuneration of 

Executive Directors/Whole Time Directors/ Managing Director and CEO: 

(` in million)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As on

March 31, 2020
As on

March 31, 2019

1 Number of WTD/ CEO/ MD having
received a variable remuneration award during the financial year*

1 1

2 Number and total amount of sign on awards made during the financial year Nil Nil
3 Details of guaranteed bonus, if any, paid as joining/ sign on bonus Nil Nil
4 Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration, split into cash, shares and 

share linked instruments and other form
Nil Nil

5 Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in the financial year Nil Nil
6 Breakup of amount of remuneration

awarded for the financial year to show fixed and variable, deferred and non-
deferred:
Fixed 5.02 4.78
Variable 0.94 1.28
Non-Deferred - -
Share Linked Instrument - -

		�  *Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was inducted as 
Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020

		  Disclosure required with respect to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
		  (i)	� The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company 

for the financial year; 

			   Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal 	 15.6:1 
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		  (ii)	� The percentage increase in remuneration of 
each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

			�   The percentage increase in remuneration 
of MD & CEO, Chief Financial Officer 
and Company Secretary ranged 
between 7% to 17%.

		  (iii)	� The percentage increase in the 
median remuneration of employees in 
the financial year

			�   The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees, who are part 
of annual bonus plan, in the financial year 
was around 11.3%

		  (iv)	� The number of permanent employees on the 
rolls of company; 

			�   The number of permanent employees on the 
rolls of company is 16,759

		  (v)	� Average percentile increase already made 
in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase 
in the managerial remuneration; 

			�   The average percentage increase in the 
salaries of total employees other than the 
Key Managerial Personnel for fiscal 2020 was 
around 10.9%, while the average increase 
in the remuneration of the Key Managerial 
Personnel was in the range of 7% to 17%.

		  (vi)	� Affirmation that the remuneration is as per 
the remuneration policy of the company. 

			�   Yes, the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company.

	 (IX)	� Recording of Minutes of Proceedings of Board / Board 
Committee Meetings:

		�  The Company Secretary records the Minutes 
of the proceedings of each Board and Board 
Committee Meetings. The finalized Minutes are 
entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days from 
the conclusion of that meeting. The decisions and 
Action Taken reports are communicated promptly 
to concerned departments for their necessary 
action. Action taken reports on decision or 
minutes of the previous meeting(s) are placed at 
the succeeding meeting of the Board or Board 
Committee for noting.

	 (X)	 Other Key Governance Practices
	 (a)	 Policies, Procedures and Compliance
		�  The Company has put in places the following 

Board approved polices, which are reviewed on 
an annual basis and status update of compliance 
is placed before the Board / Management 
on regular basis.

		  	� Prohibition of Insider Trading and Code of 
Conduct for Dealing in Securities 

		  	 Whistle Blower Policy 

		  	 Fraud Prevention Policy

		  	� Policy for Opening, Relocation and Closure 
of Offices (Places of Business)

		  	 Asset Liability Management Policy

		  	 Compliance Policy

		  	 Audit Policy

		  	 Investment Policy

		  	 Insurance Awareness Policy

		  	� Policy for Protection of Policyholders’ 
Interests

		  	� Anti Money Laundering and Counter 
Financing of Terrorism Policy

		  	 Risk Management Policy

		  	� Underwriting Policy and Health Insurance 
Underwriting Policy 

		  	 Retention and Reinsurance Policy

		  	 Bonus Policy

		  	 Information and Cyber Security Policy

		  	 Information Technology Policy

		  	 Outsourcing Policy

		  	 Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

		  	 Stress Test Policy

		  	� Policy on Allotment and Servicing of 
Orphaned policies

		  	 Remuneration Policy

		  	 Sexual Harassment Policy

		  	� Policy on matters relating to Insurance 
Agents

		  	 Business Continuity Management Policy

		  	� Policy on Telemarketing and Distance 
Marketing

		  	� Policy on Materiality of Related Party 
Transactions and on dealing with Related 
Party Transactions
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		  	� Record Maintenance and Document 
Retention Policy 

		  	� Policy on Empanelment and On-boarding of 
Insurance intermediaries

		  	� Policy for Allocation and Apportionment of 
Expense of Management

		  	 Liquidity Policy

		  	 Stewardship Policy

		  	� Policy on Succession Planning for the Board 
and Senior Management

		  	� Policy for Determination of Materiality and 
Disclosure of events / information

		  	� Performance evaluation policy of Directors

		  	 Customer Awareness Policy

		  	 Dividend Distribution Policy

		  	 Voting Policy

		  	 Policy on Product Suitability 

		  	 Interest Rate Risk Hedging Policy

		  	� Insurance Agent and Insurance 
Intermediaries Debit Balance Write-off Policy

		  	� Policy on Declaration of Interest Rates under 
Group Savings Insurance Products

	 (b)	 Compliance Certification
		�  Information relating to applicable laws, 

regulations and circulars related to insurance and 
other regulatory requirements is disseminated to 
various functions across the Company. In order 
to ensure existence of compliance culture at 
all the levels, the Company has put in place a 
robust compliance certification process, wherein 
respective functional Heads provides certificate 
of Compliance on a quarterly basis to the 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. 
Based on the certification from respective 
functional heads, a compliance certificate by the 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 
along with Compliance Officer is placed at the 
Board Audit Committee and then placed before 
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

	 (c)	 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
		�  The Company has laid down its code of 

conduct and ethics by adopting the following 
practices and policies:

		  	 Confidentiality of Information

		  	 Employment conduct 

		  	 Conflict of Interest 

		  	� Compliance to Laws, Rules and Regulations

		  	� Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment

		  	� Code of conduct for all the Directors and 
senior management

		  	� Familiarization programme for Independent 
Directors

		�  As per regulation 46 of the Listing 
Regulations, the Code of conduct for all 
the Directors and senior management is 
hosted on the website of the Company 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/code-of-conduct- 
ethics-for-directors-and-senior-management-pers

	 (d)	 Whistle Blower Policy
		�  The Company has a Board approved ‘Whistle 

Blower Policy’ in place which allows for disclosure 
by employees and permits the Company to 
address such disclosures or complaints by taking 
appropriate action, including but not limited 
to, disciplining or terminating the employment 
and/or services of those responsible. The purpose 
of this Policy is to provide a framework to 
promote responsible and secure whistle 
blowing. The details of whistle blower cases 
are presented to the Board Audit Committee 
on a quarterly basis. The Whistle Blower Policy 
is hosted on the website of the Company 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/whistle-blower-policy.

	 (e)	� Prohibition of Insider Trading and Code of Conduct for 
Dealing in Securities

		�  The Company’s Board has prescribed policy 
on ‘Prohibition of Insider Trading and Code of 
Conduct for Dealing in Securities’ as required 
under ‘Technical Guide on review and certification 
of Investment Risk Management Systems & 
Processes of Insurance Companies’ issued by 
ICAI and IRDAI (Investment) Regulations as 
amended from time to time. 

		�  The scope of policy covers monitoring the 
investment transactions done by the ‘Access 
Personnel’ to avoid any conflict of interest 
vis-à-vis Company’s investment activities. 

		�  The policy ensures that all security transactions 
by these ‘Access Personnel’ does not affect any 
actual or potential interest of the Company and 
the ‘Access Personnel’ have not taken any undue 
advantage of any price-sensitive information that 
they may have in the course of working with 
the Company. The policy stipulates conditions 
for prior approvals for investment purposes by 
the ‘Access Personnel’ and quarterly / annual 
disclosures of investments transactions and 
holdings. A status report on the implementation 
of the policy and instances of violation, if any, is 
placed before the Board Audit Committee on a 
quarterly basis.

		�  Pursuant to amendments in the SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, the insider 
trading policy was amended during the year to 

132

SBI Life Insurance Company Limited 

https://www.sbilife.co.in/code-of-conduct- ethics-for-directors-and-senior-management-pers
https://www.sbilife.co.in/code-of-conduct- ethics-for-directors-and-senior-management-pers
https://www.sbilife.co.in/whistle-blower-policy


Integrated Report
Statutory Reports

Financial Statem
ents

A
dditional Inform

ation

include the requirements in compliance with the 
provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2018.

	 (f)	 Dividend Distribution Policy
		�  The Company may declare dividend from, inter 

alia, profits for the Fiscal, or from profits for any 
previous year, or from free reserves available. 
The declaration of dividend is required to be 
in compliance with Companies Act, Insurance 
Act, the Listing Regulations and our Article of 
Association. The dividend policy stipulates, 
inter alia, certain financial and external factors 
which will be considered before declaration 
of dividend by our Board. Such factors 
include profitability and key financial metrics, 
available solvency margin, capital expenditure 
requirements and such other factors and or 
material events which our Board may consider. 
The Dividend distribution Policy is hosted on the 
website of the Company https://www.sbilife.co. 
in/dividend-distribution-policy.

	 (g)	 Stewardship Policy
		�  The Company has put in place a Stewardship 

policy pursuant to IRDAI Guidelines on 
Stewardship Code for Insurers in India vide letter 
ref no. IRDA/F&A/GDL/CMP/059/03/2017 and 
subsequent amendments / revisions thereto. 
The policy aims at laying down set of principles 
to engage with the management of the investee 
company at a greater level to improve governance.

	 (h)	 Sexual Harassment Policy
		�  The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
provides protection against sexual harassment of 
women at workplace and for the prevention and 
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment. 
The Company has a laid down policy on sexual 
harassment at work place and has communicated 
to all its employees about the same. The Company 
believes in providing a safe working environment 
at the workplace.

		�  The details of the total filed and disposed 
cases pertaining to incidents under the policy 
are as follows:

Particulars No. of Cases

Number of complaints pending at 
the beginning of the financial year

3

Number of complaints received 
during the financial year 

5

Number of complaints disposed-
off during the financial year

6

Number of complaints pending at 
the end of the financial year*

2

		�  *Two pending cases were closed in FY 2020-21 within the 
stipulated timeline.

	 (i)	 Holding Company
		�  The Company is a listed Indian subsidiary company 

of State Bank of India (SBI), which holds 57.60% 
of the Company’s share capital. The Company 
regularly reports all its material information to the 
Stock Exchanges (“BSE” or “NSE”). 

	 (j)	� Compliance with mandatory requirements and 
adoption of non-mandatory requirements

		�  The Company has adhered to all the mandatory 
requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 
27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of 
Regulation 46 and some of the discretionary 
requirements pertaining to Corporate Governance 
stipulated under the Listing Regulations. 

		�  The Company has adopted following 
discretionary requirements: 

		  (a)	 Modified opinion(s) in audit report:
			�   During the year under review, there was no 

audit qualification in financial statements. 
The Company continues to adopt best 
practices to ensure regime of unqualified 
financial statements.

		  (b)	� Separate posts of Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer: 

			�   The Company has complied with the 
requirement of having separate persons 
for the posts of Chairman and Managing 
Director & Chief Executive Officer. 

		  (c)	 Reporting of internal auditor: 
			�   The internal auditor presents their reports 

directly to the Audit Committee.

	 (k)	 Management Discussion and Analysis
		�  Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of Listing 

Regulations, the Annual Report has a separate 
chapter titled Management Discussion & Analysis.

	 (XI)	 Shareholder and General Information
	 A.	 Corporate Information
		�  SBI Life Insurance Company Limited was 

incorporated as a public limited company on 
October 11, 2000 under the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Company has been constituted as a joint 
venture between State Bank of India and BNP 
Paribas Cardif S.A. The Company is registered 
with the Insurance Regulatory and Development 
Authority of India and is carrying on the business 
of life insurance and annuity.
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		  The key information of the Company is as follows:

1. Date of Incorporation October 11, 2000
2. Corporate Identification No. (CIN) L99999MH2000PLC129113
3. Financial Year April 1 to March 31
4. IRDAI Registration No. 111
5. Permanent Account No. (PAN) AAFCS2530P
6. ISIN INE123W01016
7. Registered Office & Corporate Office / Address for 

Correspondence
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited
‘NATRAJ’ M. V. Road & Western Express Highway 
Junction, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400069
Tel. No.: +91 22 61910000
Fax No.: +91 22 61910517
Website: www.sbilife.co.in

8. Company Secretary Mr. Vinod Koyande
Tel. No.: +91 22 61910050
E-mail: vinod.koyande@sbilife.co.in

	 B.	 Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchange
		�  The Company has listed its equity shares on the following Stock Exchanges:

Stock Exchange Code

BSE Limited (BSE) (Equity)
Phiroze Jeejabhoy Tower, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001

540719

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) (Equity)
‘Exchange Plaza’, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),  
Mumbai- 400051

SBILIFE

		�  The equity shares of the Company got listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (‘NSE’) and BSE Limited 
(‘BSE’) on October 3, 2017. The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the relevant periods to BSE and NSE 
where its equity shares are listed.

	 C.	 Dematerialisation of Company Shares and Liquidity 
		�  Company’s equity shares are regularly traded in dematerialised form on NSE and BSE. As at March 31, 2020, 

approximately 100.00% equity shares of Company were held in dematerialised form. 

		�  The details of mode of holding equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2020 is given below:

Mode of holding
Number of  

Equity Shares
% to paid-up 

capital

Electronic or Dematerialised:
Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) 584,943,724 58.49%
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 415,082,566 41.51%
Physical* 5 0.00%
Total 1,000,026,295 100.00%

		  *Physical holding of equity shares is less than 0.01%

	 D.	 Registrar and Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System
		�  The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent is the KFin Technologies Private Limited (RTA). All shares transfers 

and related operations are conducted by RTA. 

		  Address:
		  KFin Technologies Private Limited
		  Selenium bldg, Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32,
		  Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
		  Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India - 500032
		  Tel: (91 40) 23311968
		  Fax: (91 40) 23420184
		  E-mail: support@karvy.com
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	 E.	 General Body Meetings
		  a)	 The details of forthcoming 20th Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Financial Year AGM Date and Time Venue

2019-20 20th September 24, 2020 at 3:00 P.M. In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the AGM will be conducted through Video 
Conference (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).
The deemed venue for 20th AGM shall be the 
registered office of the Company

			   Financial Year: April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 

			   No interim or final dividend has been  declared for FY 2019-20

		  b)	 The details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and special resolutions passed thereat:

Financial Year AGM Date and Time Venue Business Transacted by Special Resolutions

2018-19 19th August 23, 2019 at 
10:30 A.M.

SBI Auditorium,
State Bank Bhavan, 
Madame Cama Road, 
Nariman Point,
Mumbai – 400021

1.	� Re-appointment of Ms. Joji Sekhon 
Gill as an Independent Director of the 
Company

2.	� Continuation of Directorship of Mr. Raj 
Narain Bhardwaj as an Independent 
Director of the Company

3.	� Revision in the remuneration of 
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal, Managing Director 
and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company

4.	� Increase in Foreign Portfolio Investment 
Limits in the Company

5.	� Appointment of Mr. Gregory Michael 
Zeluck as Non-Executive Director

2017-18 18th September 27, 2018 
at 10:30 A.M.

SBI Auditorium,
State Bank Bhavan, 
Madame Cama Road, 
Nariman Point,
Mumbai – 400021

1.	� Appointment of Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal as 
Managing Director and Chief Executive 
Officer (DIN: 08075972).

2.	� Approve SBI Life Employee Stock Option 
Plan 2018 and Scheme 2018.

2016-17 17th September 07, 2017 
at 10:45 A.M.

10th Floor,
Conference Room, 
Corporate Centre,
State Bank Bhavan, 
Madame Cama Road, 
Nariman Point,
Mumbai – 400021

1.	� Amendments of Articles of Association of 
the Company.

2.	� Re-appointment of Mr. Nilesh S. 
Vikamsey (DIN 00031213) as an 
Independent Director

3.	� Re- appointment of Mr. Ravi Rambabu 
(DIN 01845094) as an Independent 
Director

4.	� Re-appointment of Mr. Raj Narain 
Bhardwaj (DIN 01571764) as an 
Independent Director

			   Note: - No Voting was carried out through Postal Ballot during the year ended March 31, 2020

		  c)	� The details of Extraordinary General Meetings (EGMs) held in last three financial years and special resolutions 
passed thereat:

Date and Time Venue Business Transacted

January 24, 2018 at 10:30 A.M SBI Auditorium, State Bank Bhavan, 
Madame Cama Road, Nariman Point, 
Mumbai – 400021

To approve the amendments 
carried out to the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

July 13, 2017 at 04:30 P.M 10th Floor, Corporate Centre, State Bank 
Bhavan, Madame Cama Road, Nariman 
Point, Mumbai – 400021

To approve the amendments 
carried out to the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

March 22, 2017 at 03:30 P.M 10th Floor, Corporate Centre, State Bank 
Bhavan, Madame Cama Road, Nariman 
Point, Mumbai – 400021.

To approve the amendments 
carried out to the Articles of 
Association of the Company.

			   Note: - No Voting was carried out through Postal Ballot during the year ended March 31, 2020
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	 F.	 Dividend History
Sr. 
No.

Financial Year Interim / Final Rate of Dividend Date of Declaration
Date of Payment (Date of dividend 
Warrant)

1 2011-12 Final 5% (`0.50 per share) July 14, 2012 August 06, 2012

2 2012-13 Interim 5% (`0.50 per share) March 25, 2013 April 05, 2013

3 2013 -14 Interim 10% (`1.0 per share) March 25, 2014 April 10, 2014

4 2014-15 Interim 12% (`1.2 per share) March 27, 2015 April 06, 2015

5 2015-16 Interim 12% (`1.2 per share) March 28, 2016 April 11, 2016

6 2016-17 Interim 15% (`1.5 per share) March 22, 2017 April 17, 2017

7 2017-18 Interim 20% (`2 per share) March 23, 2018 April 12, 2018

8 2018-19 Interim 20% (`2 per share) March 26, 2019 April 22, 2019

			�   No interim or final dividend was declared by the Board of Directors for FY 2019-20 in accordance with IRDAI circular 
no. IRDAI/F&A/CIR/MISC/099/04/2020 dated April 24, 2020 on “Prudent management of financial resources of insurers 
in the context of Covid-19 pandemic”.

	 G.	 Information on shareholding
		  (a)	 The Shareholding pattern of the Company as at March 31, 2020:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Shareholders No. of holders
No. of Equity 
Shares held

% of Shareholding

 1 Promoters* 2 628,007,092 62.80%
 2 Banks / Financial Institutions 5 435,219 0.04%
 3 Mutual Funds 29 44,544,812 4.45%
 4 Alternate Investment Funds 22 12,402,110 1.24%
 5 Foreign Portfolio Investors 516 258,748,952 25.87%
 6 NBFCs Registered with RBI 5 172,748 0.02%
 7 Non Resident Indians 3,096 631,342 0.06%
 8 Non Resident Indians- Non-Repatriable 1,598 334,832 0.03%
 9 Bodies Corporate 978 4,156,584 0.42%
 10 Clearing Members 235 987,881 0.10%
 11 Trusts 13 1,726,363 0.17%
 12 Foreign Bodies 4 15,101,637 1.52%
 13 Qualified Institutional Buyers 14 10,110,556 1.01%
 14 Resident Individuals 314,573 22,666,167 2.27%

Total 321,090 1,000,026,295 100.00%

			   * includes six equity shares held by five individuals on behalf of and as nominee of SBI

		  (b)	 Top ten Shareholders of the Company as at March 31, 2020:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Shareholders$ No. of Equity 
Shares held

% of Shareholding

1 State Bank of India* 576,000,000 57.60%
2 CA Emerald Investments 60,000,000 6.00%
3 BNP Paribas Cardif S.A. 52,007,092 5.20%
4 Canada Pension Plan Investment Board 28,583,625 2.86%
5 ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund 20,984,960 2.10%
6 Government of Singapore 15,448,447 1.54%
7 Macritchie Investments Pte Ltd 15,100,000 1.51%
8 Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund 6,600,511 0.66%
9 Stichting Depositary APG Emerging Markets 5,698,199 0.57%
10 Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund 5,474,500 0.55%

			   $ The list of top 10 shareholders is derived on the basis of PAN consolidation.
			   * includes six equity shares held by five individuals on behalf of and as nominee of SBI.
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		  (c)	� Shareholders of the Company with more than 1% holding as at March 31, 2020 (other than promoters 
of the Company):

Sr. 
No.

Name of Shareholders$ No of Shares
% of Total Equity 

Shares

1 CA Emerald Investments 60,000,000 6.00%
2 Canada Pension Plan Investment Board 28,583,625 2.86%
3 ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund 20,984,960 2.10%
4 Government of Singapore 15,448,447 1.54%
5 Macritchie Investments Pte Ltd 15,100,000 1.51%

			   $ The list of shareholders is derived on the basis of PAN consolidation

		  (d)	 Distribution of shareholding of the Company as at March 31, 2020:

Sr. 
No.

Category No. of Holders % To Holders Amount (`) % To Equity

1 1-5000 316,331 98.52 138,511,130.00 1.39
2 5001-10000 2,519 0.78 17,693,020.00 0.18
3 10001-20000 906 0.28 12,916,390.00 0.13
4 20001-30000 274 0.09 6,814,190.00 0.07
5 30001-40000 125 0.04 4,471,560.00 0.04
6 40001-50000 98 0.03 4,477,860.00 0.04
7 50001-100000 202 0.06 14,717,440.00 0.15
8 100001 & Above 640 0.20 9,800,661,360.00 98.00

Total 321,095 100.00 10,000,262,950.00 100.00

	 H.	 Means of Communication
		�  It is the Company’s belief that all stakeholders should have access to complete information regarding its 

position to enable them to accurately assess its future potential. The Company disseminates information on 
its operations and initiatives on a regular basis. The Company’s website (www.sbilife.co.in) serves as a key 
awareness facility for all its stakeholders, allowing them to access information at their convenience. It provides 
comprehensive information on the Company’s strategy, financial performance, operational performance and the 
latest press releases. 

		�  The Company’s investor relations personnel respond to specific queries and play a proactive role in disseminating 
information to both analysts and investors. All information which could have a material bearing on the Company’s 
share price is released through as per regulatory requirements. The information is also disseminated to the 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) from time to time. Other information 
such as press-releases, stock exchange disclosures & presentations made to analyst/investors etc. are regularly 
displayed on company’s website.

		�  The financial and other information and the various compliances as required/ prescribed under the Listing 
Regulations are filed electronically with NSE and BSE through NSE Electronic Application Processing (NEAP) 
System and through BSE Listing Centre respectively and are also available on their respective websites in 
addition to the Company’s website. Additionally, information is also disseminated to BSE/NSE where required 
by email or fax. 

		�  The Company’s quarterly financial results are published in the Financial Express (Mumbai, Ahmedabad, Delhi, 
Chennai, Kolkata, Hyderabad, Bangalore, Chandigarh, Lucknow, Pune & Kochi edition), Loksatta and Navshakti 
(Mumbai edition) and Business Standard – English (Kolkata, Bangalore, Chennai, Hyderabad, New Delhi, 
Chandigarh, Lucknow, Kochi, Bhubaneswar, Mumbai, Pune & Ahmedabad edition). The financial results, official 
news releases, analyst call transcripts and presentations are also available on the Company’s website.
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	 I.	 Stock Market Price Information
		�  The reported high and low prices and volume of equity shares of the Company traded on NSE and BSE during 

each month in the period (i.e. from April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2020) are set out in the following table:

Month
NSE BSE Total volume 

Traded of BSE 
& NSE

High
(`)

Low
(`)

Volume
(in shares)

High
(`)

Low
(`)

Volume
(in shares)

April 644.80 583.40 14,344,831 644.50 583.75 1,273,044 15,617,875
May 704.00 594.65 13,882,230 702.85 595.05 1,193,966 15,076,196
June 744.00 669.50 27,192,939 744.35 669.25 1,575,998 28,768,937
July 808.50 716.05 23,907,306 808.10 716.35 1,447,394 25,354,700
August 862.45 752.55 20,596,094 862.40 753.15 1,390,142 21,986,236
September 851.60 777.10 24,798,181 851.00 777.15 4,942,067 29,740,248
October 1,030.00 804.00 33,053,521 1,030.00 804.00 1,361,110 34,414,631
November 1,026.00 916.00 146,352,925 1,025.55 916.00 7,961,198 154,314,123
December 1,011.70 924.50 28,234,310 1,011.40 924.50 974,864 29,209,174
January 1,020.00 958.00 13,409,094 1,019.65 958.50 659,140 14,068,234
February 1,012.90 856.65 24,562,158 1,012.85 855.05 964,057 25,526,215
March 914.00 519.40 31,185,862 913.55 520.00 1,802,994 32,988,856
Fiscal 2020 1,030.00 519.40 146,352,925 1,030.00 520.00 7,961,198 154,314,123

	 J.	 Share Price Performance

	 SBI Life share price versus the NSE - NSE Nifty share price movement (rebased to 100)*:

 Nifty 50 SBI Life
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	 * Share price and index are rebased to 100 for closing price/value on March 31, 2019.
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	 SBI Life share price versus the BSE - BSE Sensex share price movement (rebased to 100)*:

 Sensex SBI Life
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	 * Share price and index are rebased to 100 for closing price/value on March 31, 2019.

	 K.	 Unclaimed Suspense Accounts
		�  Pursuant to Regulation 39 read with Part F of schedule V of Listing Regulations, details of unclaimed suspense 

provided by our Registrar and Transfer Agent are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Description No. of shareholder No. of shares

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying unclaimed 
as on April 1, 2019

Nil Nil

2 Number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares 
from suspense account during the year

Nil Nil

3 Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense 
account during the year

Nil Nil

4 Aggregate Number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying unclaimed 
as on March 31, 2020

Nil Nil

	 L.	 Fit and Proper criteria for investors and continuous monitoring requirement
		  The IRDAI guidelines for Listed Indian Insurance Companies prescribe the following:

		  	� Self-certification of ‘fit and proper person’ criteria by a person holding/intending to acquire equity shares of 
1% or more of paid-up equity share capital.

		  	 Prior permission of IRDAI for holding shares beyond 5% of the paid-up equity share capital.

		�  Further information on detailed procedure and format for self-certification is hosted on the Company’s website 
https://www.sbilife.co.in/fit-and-proper-criteria-for-investors.

	 M.	 Plant Locations
		  Since the Company is in the business of Life Insurance, the disclosure with regard to plant location is not applicable. 

	 N.	 Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging Activities
		  This is not applicable since the Company does not have any derivatives or liabilities denominated in foreign currency.

	 O.	 Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 
		�  The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past and 

hence as on March 31, 2020, the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any 
convertible instruments.
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	 P.	� Queries related to the Operational and Financial 
Performance of the Company may be addressed to:

		  Mr. Sangarmjit Sarangi
		  Investor Relations 
		  SBI Life Insurance Company Limited
		  Ph: 91 22 61910281
		  investorrelations@sbilife.co.in 

	 Q.	 Other disclosures
	 1.	 Accounting Standards
		�  The Company has complied with the Accounting 

Standards notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 
of the Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014, further 
amended by Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016, to the extent applicable.

	 2.	 Secretarial Standards 
		�  The Company has complied with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, from time to time. 

	 3.	 Related Party Transactions
		�  There are no materially significant related party 

transactions that may have potential conflict with 
the interest of the Company.

		�  During the year, there were no material individual 
transactions with related parties, which were not in 
the normal course of business, nor were there any 
material transactions with related parties or others, 
which were not on an arm’s length basis. The policy 
on materiality of Related Party Transactions and 
on dealing with Related Party Transactions, has 
been hosted on the website of the Company can 
be viewed at https://www.sbilife.co.in/policy- 
on-materiality-and-on-dealing-with-related-party- 
transact 

	 4.	� Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, 
strictures imposed on the Company by the stock 
exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any 
matter related to capital markets, during the last three 
financial years

		�  The Equity shares of the Company were listed on 
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and 
BSE Limited on October 3, 2017. There are no 
penalties or strictures imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchanges, the Securities & 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other 
statutory authority, for any non-compliance on 
any matter relating to capital markets, during the 
last three years viz. FY 2018, FY 2019 and FY2020. 

	 5.	 Whistle Blower
		�  In terms of the Whistle Blower Policy of the 

Company, no employee of the Company has 
been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

	 6.	� Loans and advances to subsidiaries, associates and 
related entities

		�  As per Listing Regulations, disclosures pertaining 
to loans and advances given to subsidiaries, 
associates and related entities are given below:

		  	� During the year, there were no loans and 
advances given to subsidiaries, associates 
and firms/companies in which directors 
are interested.

		  	� There are no investments by the loanee in 
the shares of the Company.

	 7.	� Disclosure of Material Events, pursuant to Listing 
Regulations

		�  Pursuant to Regulation 30 of the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has made necessary 
disclosures of material events to the Stock 
Exchanges from time to time as per the Policy 
for Determination of Materiality and Disclosure of 
events / information.

	 8.	� Disclosure Requirements as prescribed by the IRDAI 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Insurance 
Sector

		�  The following disclosures are made in accordance 
with the IRDAI Corporate Governance guidelines 
for insurer in India. 

		  (a)	� Basis, methods and assumptions on which the 
financial information is prepared and impact of 
changes, if any

			�   The basis, methods and assumptions used 
in preparation of the financial statements has 
been disclosed in Schedule 16: Significant 
accounting policies and notes forming part 
of the financial statements.

		  (b)	� Quantitative and qualitative information on the 
Company’s financial and operating ratios, namely, 
commission and expenses ratios

			�   Quantitative and qualitative information 
on the financial and operating ratios has 
been disclosed in the Management and 
Discussions Analysis section forming part of 
the Annual Report and “Ratios as prescribed 
by IRDAI” of Schedule 16: Significant 
accounting policies and notes forming part 
of the financial statements.

		  (c)	� Actual solvency margin details vis-à-vis the required 
margin

			   The details of the solvency ratio are as below:

Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019

Actual solvency ratio 
(ASM)

1.95 2.13

Required solvency ratio 
(RSM)

1.50 1.50

		  (d)	 Persistency ratio
			�   Persistency ratio based on number of policies 

and based on premium is disclosed in 
“Ratios as prescribed by IRDAI” of Schedule 
16: Significant accounting policies and notes 
forming part of the financial statements.
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		  (e)	 Financial performance including growth rate and current financial position of the insurer
			�   Financial performance of the Company including growth rate and current financial position has been furnished 

in the Management Discussion & Analysis section forming part of the Annual Report.

		  (f)	 Description of the risk management architecture
			�   The risk management architecture of the Company has been disclosed in “Enterprise Risk Management” 

section forming part of the Annual Report.

		  (g)	 Details of number of claims intimated, disposed of and pending with details of duration
			   Movement of claim outstanding:

Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019

Claims Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,095 5,364
Claims reported during the year 1,427,518 1,349,734
Claims Settled during the year 1,407,107 1,349,677
Claims Repudiated during the year 1,441 1,126
Claim Rejected 4 3
Claims Written Back 135 197
Claims Outstanding at end of the year 22,926 4,095

			   Ageing of claims intimated and settled:
Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019

On or before maturity 642,577 638,418
Less than 1 month 757,021 681,501
1 month to 3 months 4,145 28,155
3 months to 6 months 940 687
6 months to 1 year 1,126 577
1 year and above 1,298 339
Claims settled during the year 1,407,107 1,349,677

			   Ageing of claims intimated and outstanding:
Particulars FY 2020 FY 2019

Less than 3 months 21,283 2,862
3 months to 6 months 1,104 1,220
6 months to 1 year 536 1
1 year and above 3 12
Claims Outstanding at end of the year 22,926 4,095

		  (h)	 All pecuniary relationships or transactions of non-executive directors
			�   The Company’s Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors do not have any pecuniary relationships 

or transactions with the Company except sitting fees paid for attending Board and Committee Meetings 
which is disclosed in the Corporate Governance report.

		  (i)	 Elements of remuneration package (including incentives) of MD & CEO and all other directors and Key Management Persons
			�   In line with the disclosure requirements under the Corporate Governance Guidelines of IRDAI, the details in 

respect of remuneration of Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO) and KMPs are as follows:

(` in million)

Particulars
FY 2020 FY 2019

MD & CEO^ Other KMPs*# MD & CEO& Other KMPs*#

Basic  1.53  62.52 1.48 55.53
Allowances/Perquisites$  3.49  87.56 3.30 74.20
Retiral Benefits  0.16  11.08 0.15 9.75
Bonus@  0.94  54.53 1.28 60.57
Total  6.12  215.69 6.21 200.05

			   * Excluding remuneration of Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
			   # KMP’s are as defined under IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines
			   @ performance linked incentive paid in FY 2019-20 for FY 2018-19 & paid in FY 2018-19 for FY 2017-18
			   $ excluding perquisite such as furnished house, vehicle etc. provided by the Company.
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			   ^ �Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing director & CEO w.e.f. May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was inducted as 
Managing Director & CFO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

			   & �Mr. Arijit Basu resigned as Managing Director and CEO w.e.f. March 10, 2018 and Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal was inducted as Managing 
Director and CEO w.e.f. March 10, 2018.

		  (j)	 Payments made to group entities from the Policyholders Funds

			�   The detail of payment made to group entities by the Company has been disclosed in Note no. 39 “Related 
party disclosures as per Accounting Standard 18” of Schedule 16: Significant accounting policies and notes 
forming part of the financial statements.

		  (k)	 Any other matters which have material impact on the financial position
			�   There are no matters which have material impact on the financial position except those disclosed in the 

financial statements and notes to accounts.

	 R.	 CEO/CFO Certification 
		�  In terms of the Listing Regulations, the certification by the Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer 

on the financial statements and internal controls relating to financial reporting for the year ended March 31, 2020 
has been obtained.

	 S.	 Certificate from Company Secretary
		�  The Company has obtained a certificate from a Company Secretary, in practice confirming that none of the 

directors on the board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority.

	 T.	 Compliance Certificate of the Secretarial Auditor
		�  The Company has annexed to this report (Annexure V), a certificate obtained from the Secretarial Auditor, 

M/s. Mehta & Mehta Associates, Company Secretaries, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance as per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of Listing Regulations.

	 U.	 Certification for Compliance of the Corporate Governance Guidelines 
		�  I, Vinod Koyande, hereby certify that the Company has, for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, complied 

with the Corporate Governance Guidelines as prescribed by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of 
India as amended from time to time and nothing has been concealed or suppressed.

	 V.	 Compliance with the Code of Conduct for all the Directors and Senior Management 
		�  I confirm that all Directors and members of the senior management have affirmed compliance with Code of 

Conduct for all the Directors and Senior Management for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

Mahesh Kumar Sharma 
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 008740737

Date: August 20, 2020

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE - I

REMUNERATION POLICY

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to attract, motivate 
and retain manpower in a competitive market, and in terms 
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Policy on 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees has been put in place.

The Company’s Remuneration Policy is guided by a reward 
framework and set of principles and objectives as more 
fully and particularly envisaged under section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Objectives of the remuneration policy:
Compensation and benefits play a critical role in every 
organization. A well-defined compensation and benefits 
system helps to attract, motivate, and retain the deserving 
employees for achievement of organizational objectives. 
The policy reflects our commitment to good corporate 
governance as well as sustained long-term value creation 
for shareholders.

Philosophy
At SBI Life, we follow contribution-oriented philosophy 
and our compensation programs are performance-driven, 
emphasizing and recognizing the contributions that 
individual employees make to the organization. 
It accentuates performance-based pay, incentives, and 
shared responsibility for benefits. Its basic objective is to:

	� Be compatible with the organization’s 
Vision and Mission;

	 Be externally & internally equitable;

	� Ensure relationship of remuneration to performance is 
clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

	� Provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management reward linked directly to their effort, 
performance, dedication and achievement relating to 
the Company’s operations;

	� Retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long 
term sustainability of talented managerial persons and 
create competitive advantage.

While making appointment of employees for particular 
positions their relevant qualification, experience and 
expertise shall be taken into account.

Reward Policies:
	� Remuneration packages for Whole Time Directors 

are designed subject to the limits laid down under 
the Companies Act 2013 to remunerate them fairly 
and responsibly.

	� Remuneration also aims to motivate personnel 
to deliver Company’s Key strategies, create a 
strong performance-oriented environment and 
reward achievement of meaningful targets over the 
short and long term.

	� Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and 
other Senior Management personnel will be with 
approval of the Managing Director & CEO.

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Appointment, remuneration, repatriation etc. of Key 
Management Personnel such as MD & CEO and few other 
Key Functional Heads like Audit, Human Resources etc. 
is governed by SBI Officers’ service rules as they are on 
Deputation from SBI.

Appointment of other Key Management Personnel & Senior 
Management staff at SBI Life and their removal from 
services of the Company are governed by the HR policies 
of the Company and approved by the MD & CEO / Board 
wherever applicable. 
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1.	� A brief outline of the Company’s Corporate Social 
Responsibility (“CSR”) policy, including overview of projects 
or programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

	� Being a socially responsible company, SBI Life 
continues its commitment to improve community 
wellbeing through its various CSR activities primarily 
in healthcare and education. We have also contributed 
towards environment protection and disaster 
relief. The focus of the CSR activities is to help 
disadvantaged section of people to meet their basic 
needs and extending to them opportunities to fulfill 
their aspirations for better life.

	� The amount of CSR expenditure in last six financial 
years from FY 2014-15 to FY2019-20 is ` 87.40 crores.

	� Details about the CSR policy and initiatives taken by 
the Company on CSR during the year are available 
on our website:

	� For CSR Policy: https://www.sbilife.co.in/corporate- 
social-responsibility-policy

	� For CSR activities: https://www.sbilife.co.in/en/about- 
us/corporate-social-responsibility

2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee:
	� Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSRC) 

has been constituted for overseeing the Company’s 
CSR programs, ensuring its compliance and reporting 
to the Board on a timely basis. The members of the 
CSRC comprise of;

Chairman: Mr. Raj Narain Bhardwaj
Members: Mr. Ravi Rambabu, Director

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara, Director
Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal, Managing 
Director and CEO#

Mr. Sanjeev Pujari, President – Actuarial 
and Risk Management
Ms. Manjula Kalyanasundaram, EVP & 
Chief of HR & Management Services*
Mr. Sangramjit Sarangi, President & 
Chief Financial Officer

	� #Mr. Sanjeev Nautiyal resigned as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 
May 08, 2020 and Mr. Mahesh Kumar Sharma was inducted as 
Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. May 09, 2020.

	� *Ms. Manjula Kalyanasundaram ceased to be the member of 
the Committee w.e.f. May 19, 2020 and Ms. Seema Trikannad 
inducted as a member of the Committee w.e.f. May 20, 2020.

3.	� Average net profit of the Company for last three financial 
years:

	� The average net profit of the Company for the last 
three financial years calculated as specified by the 
Companies Act 2013 is ` 1,101.54 crores.

4.	� Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the said profits as 
stated in item 3 above):

	� The prescribed CSR Expenditure requirement for FY 
2020 is ` 22.03 crores.

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

(As prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules 2014)
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